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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

We are a biopharmaceutical company engaged iniseevkry and development of therapeutic productiickates designed to extend
and enhance the quality of human life. Throughathglication of our proprietary technologies, we dasgtablished a pipeline of
therapeutic product development programs in mdtiibease areas. We are committed to developimgpbetic products that we
believe have best-in-class potential, meaning peréc candidates that have the potential to ber safore effective products than
the current standard of care or other product®irebpment, and that may have other advantagels,asusuperior scalability or ease
of administration. Our current product developmamtfolio consists of MultiSterft, a patented and proprietary stem cell product
that we are developing as a treatment for multiidease indications and that has been evaluatukirfully enrolled clinical trial

and is currently being evaluated in two ongoingichl trials, and has been authorized for usefouah clinical trial. In addition, we
are developing novel pharmaceuticals to treat atébos such as obesity and related metabolic dondisuch as diabetes. We are
also focused on the development of small molecomepounds with potential applications in other aygaduding the treatment of
certain neurological conditions, and for the motiataof stem cells or related applications in tegenerative medicine area.

We were incorporated in Delaware on October 24518 June 8, 2007, we merged with a wholly owndssiliary of BTHC VI,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and, on August 3D72BTHC VI, Inc. changed its name to Athersys, Inc

Recent Developments

In February 2011, we completed a registered dofeting generating net proceeds of $11.8 millibrotigh the issuance of
4,366,667 shares of common stock and five-yearamésrto purchase 1,310,000 shares of common stitlclaw exercise price of
$3.55 per share. The securities were sold in nlettipf a fixed combination of one share of commtorlsand a warrant to purchase
0.3 of a share of common stock at an offering poic®3.00 per fixed combination.

Business Strategy

Our principal business objective is to discovexalep and commercialize novel therapeutic prodfatslisease indications that
represent significant areas of clinical need ardroercial opportunity. The key elements of our siygitare outlined below.

. Efficiently develop product candidates in estatdidlareas of significant clinical neeWe are focused on the development
of best-in-class product candidates with differatetil profiles, meaning improved safety and/or afficrelative to current
standards of care. Our intention is to developpraducts for ultimate commercialization by us, partners or licensees
after they have received approval from the U.S draed Drug Administration, or FDA, and/or otherukegory agencies

»  Apply our proprietary technologies toward the id&cation, validation, and development of therapeyroduct
candidatesWe will continue to use our proprietary technolagie identify and validate therapeutic product ¢datbs.
We believe our technologies, including MultiStentd &0AGE (Random Activation of Gene Expressi®n)rovide us witl
a competitive advantage in discovery and productid@ment by allowing us to move product candidatgskly from the
discovery phase into clinical trials. We selectdidates for internal development based on sevachbfs, including the
required regulatory approval pathway, the potemtiatket into which the product may be sold andataility to feasibly
fund development activitie

. Enter into licensing or ¢-development arrangements for certain product cdatgis.In addition to our internal
development efforts, an important part of our paidievelopment strategy is to work with collaboratand partners to
accelerate product development, reduce our devenpowosts, and broaden our commercialization ctipesi We have
entered into multiple licensing and product co-depment arrangements with qualified commercial peng to achieve
these objectives. We anticipate that this strategyhelp us to develop a portfolio of high qualiyoduct development
opportunities, enhance our clinical development@rdmercialization capabilities, and increase duilitg to generate
value from our proprietary technologit
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Continue to expand our intellectual property poliioOur intellectual property is important to our buese and we take
significant steps to protect its value. We haveaimg research and development efforts, both throntgiinal activities

and through collaborative research activities witters, which aim to develop new intellectual prtypand enable us to
file patent applications that cover new applicaiof our existing technologies or product candislatecluding MultiSterr

Out-license non-core applications of our technodsgCertain elements of our technologies may not bevegit to the key
elements of our corporate strategy. We believeethggplications may have significant potential vahmwvever, and may
provide capital to us that can be applied to obeotlevelopment efforts. Where appropriate, we sk to license non-
core applications of our technologies to othens#dize this value

Our Current Programs

By applying our proprietary cell therapy platforMultiStem, we have established therapeutic prodegelopment programs in the
areas of treating cardiovascular disease, neudbdisease, and immune system disorders. To watbave advanced four
programs to clinical development stage, including:

An ongoing Phase Il clinical study involving adhisiration of MultiStem to patients suffering frartcerative colitis, the
most common form of inflammatory bowel diseasedB®. This study was authorized by the FDA in NoveanB010 and
is being conducted with our partner, Pfizer Inc.Pézer. This trial began enrolling patients i $tudy in February 201

A Phase | clinical study involving administratiohMultiStem to patients that have suffered ant@coyocardial

infarction, or AMI, more commonly referred to abeart attack. We announced initial results for gigly in July 2010,
demonstrating a consistent safety profile and eragpng signs of improvement in heart function ampatients who had
received treatment after experiencing a heartlatiad exhibiting severely compromised heart functi&e intend to
initiate a Phase Il study in 2011 with our partengiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or Angiotechgvaluate the safety and
efficacy of MultiStem administration to AMI patiesy

An ongoing Phase | clinical study involving admtration of MultiStem to patients suffering froeukemia or certain
other blood-borne cancers, in which patients urmeadiation therapy and then receive a hematopasétim cell, or HSC,
transplant. Such patients are at risk for seriampications, including graft versus host diseas&;VHD, which is an
imbalance of immune system function caused by plansed immune cells that attack various tissuelsaggans in the
patient. In January 2011, we announced that weshadessfully completed enroliment for the singleeasling dose
portion of this clinical trial and expect to anngemreliminary results in the second quarter of1204 addition, the
multiple ascending dose portion of this study igang.

An FDA authorized Phase | clinical study to ewduadministration of MultiStem to patients thatdauffered an
ischemic stroke. We are currently working with eolinical advisors to modify the proposed study desincluding
increasing the size of the study so that we catuatasafety and efficac

In addition to our current and anticipated clinidaelopment activities, we are engaged in prexdirdevelopment and evaluation of
MultiStem in other disease indications in the cawdscular, neurological and immune disorder aM&sconduct such work both
through our own internal research efforts, andubtoa broad network of collaborations we have disteddd with investigators at
leading research institutions across the UniteteStand in Europe.

We are also engaged in the development of novell snadecule therapies to treat obesity and relatedabolic conditions, including
diabetes, as well as other conditions. Currenthaveefocused on the development of potent, higblgcive compounds that act
through stimulation of a specific receptor in thaib that controls appetite — the 5HT2c serotorteptor. We are conducting
preclinical evaluation of novel compounds that wgéddeveloped that exhibit outstanding selectiaity intend to select a clinical
development candidate for this program in 2011.
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Regenerative Medicine Progran
MultiStem— A Novel Allogeneic Approach to Stem Cell Theepy Regenerative Medicine

We are developing a proprietary nonembryonic, @lfegc stem cell product candidate, MultiStem, tiatelieve has potential
utility for treating a broad range of diseases emad have widespread application in the field lofical regenerative medicine.
Unlike traditional bone marrow transplants or otbam cell therapies, MultiStem may be manufactored large scale (with
hundreds of thousands to millions of doses obtafrad a single healthy donor), and may be admirgstevithout tissue matching
the need for immune suppression, analogous to@ypkod. Potential applications of MultiStem inctutthe treatment of
cardiovascular disease, neurological disease aryinand conditions involving the immune systenejuding autoimmune disease
and other conditions. We believe that MultiStenrespnts a significant advancement in the fielderscell therapy and could have
broad clinical application. We currently have opevestigational New Drug applications, or INDs, the study of MultiStem in fot
distinct clinical indications.

MultiStem is a patented biologic product that iswnfactured from human stem cells obtained fromtdatuhe marrow. The product
consists of a special class of human stem celtdhénge the ability to express a range of therapellyi relevant proteins and other
factors, as well as form multiple cell types. Fastexpressed by MultiStem have the potential tiveeh therapeutic benefit in
several ways, such as the reduction of inflammatiegulation of immune system function, protectidmamaged or injured tissue,
the formation of new blood vessels in regions ofiésmic injury and augmenting tissue repair andihgah other ways. Like drugs,
these cells may be stored for an extended peritichef(in frozen form) and used off-the-shelf. Baling administration, the cells
express multiple therapeutically relevant proteind are subsequently cleared from the body ove.tim

The therapeutic benefit of bone marrow transpléamdtas been recognized for decades, and its alinge has grown since Congr
passed the National Organ Transplant Act in 19&#4the National Marrow Donor Registry was establisime1990. However,
widespread bone marrow or stem cell transplantdtamyet to become a reality. Some of the limitetithat have prevented broader
clinical application of bone marrow or stem cedirtsplantation include the requirement for tissu&chiag between donor and
recipient, the typical need for one donor for epatient (a reflection of the inability to expandlgén a controlled and reproducible
manner), frequent use of immune suppressive dougsdid rejection or immune system complicatiohs, inability to efficiently
produce significant quantities of stem cells, amdrage of potential safety issues.

A stem cell therapy that has the potential to askltbe challenges mentioned above could repredmetéithrough in the field of
regenerative medicine, since it could greatly exigue clinical application of stem cell therapyotiner forms of regenerative
medicine. In 2003, we acquired technology originditveloped at the University of Minnesota related novel stem cell, the
Multipotent Adult Progenitor Cell, or MAPC, whichay be isolated from adult bone marrow as well agohonembryonic tissues.
Over the past several years, we have further dpedithis technology and the manufacturing of thetls for use in ongoing clinici
trials. Our current product platform is referreca®@MultiStem. During several years of preclinizark, MultiStem has demonstrated
the potential to address many of the fundamentitdtions observed with traditional bone marrovhematopoietic stem cell
transplants.

We believe that MultiStem represents a potentiat-reclass stem cell therapy because it exhilsithef the following
characteristics based on research and developmedaté:

. Broad plasticity and multiple potential mechanismhsiction.MultiStem cells have a demonstrated ability in aadim
models to form a range of cell types and also apjoelae able to deliver therapeutic benefit throughitiple mechanisms,
such as producing factors that protect tissuesragdamage and inflammation, as well as enhangaipdaging a direct
role in revascularization or tissue regenerat

. Large scale productiorUnlike conventional stem cells, such as blood-foigndr hematopoietic stem cells, MultiStem
cells may be produced on a large scale, proceasdd;ryogenically preserved, and then used clilyigala rapid and
efficient manner. Material obtained from a singtendr may be used to produce hundreds of thousanudlmns of
individual doses, representing a yield far gretitan other stem cells have been able to ach
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e “Off-the-shelf” utility. Unlike traditional bone marrow or hematopoietiosteell transplants that require extensive genetic
matching between donor and recipient, MultiStemdministered without tissue matching or the regquést for immune
suppressive drugs. MultiStem is administered ayagenically preserved allogeneic product, meativag these cells are
not genetically matched between donor and recipigris feature, combined with the ability to estsiblarge MultiStem
banks, could make it practical for clinicians tficéntly deliver stem cell therapy to a large nwenbf patients

. Safety Other stem cell types, such as embryonic stem, @alispose serious safety risks, such as the faxmat ectopic
tissue or tumor-like growths. In contrast, Multi®teells have an outstanding safety profile thatties=n compiled over
several years of preclinical study in a range afnahmodels by a variety of investigators and ibaupported by
emerging clinical date

At each step of the MultiStem production procesfis@re analyzed according to pre-establishedr@ito ensure that a consistent,
well characterized product candidate is producedls@re harvested from a pre-qualified donor #eh texpanded to form a Master
Cell Bank from which we subsequently produce chhgrade material. In multiple animal models, Mstém has been shown to be
non-immunogenic, and is administered without theegie matching that is typically required for contienal bone marrow or stem
cell transplantation.

MultiStem allows us to pursue multiple high valwrnercial opportunities from a single product mati, because, based upon
work that we and independent collaborators havelacted over the past several years, we believevb#iStem has the potential to
treat a range of distinct disease indications uidiclg ischemic injury and cardiovascular diseasgam neurological diseases,
autoimmune disease, transplant support (includirgnicology patients), and a range of orphan disieaseations. As a result, we
believe we will be able to leverage our foundatibsafety and efficacy data to add clinical indicas efficiently, enabling us to
reduce development costs and timelines substantiall

MultiStem for Cardiovascular Disease, Immune Sy$dsuorders, and Neurological Conditiol

Working with independent investigators at a numdfdeading institutions, such as the UniversityMifinesota, the Cleveland Clin
the National Institutes of Health, the Medical @gk of Georgia, the University of Oregon HealtreSces Center and the Katholit
Universiteit Leuven, we have studied MultiStem iraage ofin vitro and preclinical animal models that reflect varityses of
human disease or injury in the cardiovascular, slegical and immunological areas. To date, we haudished research results
illustrating the potential benefits of MultiStemarrange of indications including myocardial inféon, vascular disease, ischemic
stroke, traumatic brain injury, brain damage dueetdricted blood flow in newborns, spinal corduiyj, and bone marrow transplant
support/GVHD. In addition, we have explored anémat to further explore, the potential applicatiéaltiStem in the treatment of
a range of other conditions, including other foiwfisardiovascular disease, neurological conditiams, immune related disorders.

As stated above, we have consistently observedbliStem is safe and effective in animal modéls.a result, we have advanced
MultiStem to clinical development stage in foun@ial indications or disease areas: treatment Bf (Bitially focused on ulcerative
colitis); treatment of damage caused by myocaidfatction; support in the hematologic malignanestiag to reduce certain
complications associated with traditional bone maror HSC transplantation; and treatment for strodesed by a blockage of blc
flow in the brain.

We have advanced four programs to clinical devekmrstage, including:

. A Phase | clinical study involving administratiohMultiStem to patients that have suffered an AMith our partner,
Angiotech, and we intend to initiate in 2011 a Rhihstudy to evaluate the safety and efficacy ofithbtem
administration to AMI patients

. An ongoing Phase | clinical study involving admtration of MultiStem to patients suffering froeukemia or certain
other bloodborne cancers, in which patients undergo radigtierapy and then receive a HSC transplant andt aigk&or
serious complications, including GVHD. We have ssxtully completed enroliment for the single asdempdose portion
of this trial and the multiple ascending dose porif this study is ongoing
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. An ongoing Phase Il clinical study involving achisiration of MultiStem to patients suffering frartcerative colitis, the
most common form of IBD with our partner, Pfizehid trial began enrolling patients in the studyabruary 2011; an

. An FDA authorized Phase | clinical study to ewtuadministration of MultiStem to patients thatdauffered an
ischemic stroke, and we are working with our clihiadvisors to modify the proposed study desigthabwe can evaluate
safety and efficacy

We may expand to other clinical indication areaseaslts warrant and resources permit.

Cardiovascular Disease— Evaluating MultiStem for Heart Attack

In a Phase | clinical trial, we have been explotimg use of MultiStem as a treatment for damageezhby myocardial infarction, or
heart attack. Myocardial infarction is one of teading causes of death and disability in the Urfitedes. Myocardial infarction is
caused by the blockage of one or more arteriesstigily blood to the heart. Such blockages caraheed, for example, by the
rupture of an atherosclerotic plaque deposit. Adioy to the American Heart Association 2010 StatétUpdate, there were
approximately 935,000 cases of myocardial infarctimat occurred in the United States in 2006 ant@agpmately 8.5 million
individuals living in the United States that haéyiously suffered a heart attack. In addition, ¢heere more than 831,000 deaths
that occurred from various forms of cardiovascdiaease, including 567,000 individuals that died assult of a myocardial
infarction or congestive heart failure. A variefyrisk factors are associated with an elevatedafakyocardial infarction or
atherosclerosis, including age, high blood pressmeking, sedentary lifestyle and genetics. Whieances in the diagnosis,
prevention and treatment of heart disease have lpagitive impact, there is clearly room for impeavent — myocardial infarction
remains a leading cause of death and disabilitheriUnited States and the rest of the world.

MultiStem has been studied in validated animal fedeAMI, including at both the Cleveland Clinia@the University of
Minnesota. Investigators demonstrated that the midtration of allogeneic MultiStem into the heasfsaanimals damaged by
experimentally induced heart attacks resultedgnificant functional improvement in cardiac outpund other functional parameters
compared with animals that received placebo oreatment. Furthermore, the administration of imnauppressive drug was not
required and provided no additional benefit in stisdy, and supports the concept of using MultiSasman allogeneic product.

Working with a contract research organization, wmpleted additional preclinical studies in estdidi$ pig models of AMI using
catheter delivery and examining various factorqiagthe route and method of MultiStem adminisirgtdose ranging, and timing
of treatment. In 2008, we initiated a multicentgyen-label Phase | clinical trial in this indicatiand we completed enrollment in
2010. In July 2010, we announced the interim redutim this trial, which showed that MultiStem wasl| tolerated at all dose levt
and exhibited a favorable safety profile. In adulitipatients that received treatment with MultiStxhibited meaningful
improvements in cardiovascular function, includiefy ventricular ejection fraction, wall motion ses, and other parameters.

We are developing MultiStem for this indicationdonjunction with our partner, Angiotech. We enteirgd a product co-
development collaboration with Angiotech in 2006 tlee potential application of MultiStem in multptardiovascular indications
including myocardial infarction, peripheral vasautisease and certain other indications. Basethi®@mnesults from the preclinical
studies and Phase | clinical trial results, wendto initiate a Phase Il clinical trial involviregiministration of MultiStem to AMI
patients in 2011.
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Immunological Disorders— MultiStem for IBD and HSC Transplant Support

In multiple studies, MultiStem has shown potent inmomodulatory properties, including the abilityéaluce active inflammation
and immune system imbalance. Accordingly, we belignat MultiStem could have broad application ia #inea of treating immune
system disorders, including certain autoimmuneasdiee and other conditions, including GVHD, which fsequent immunological
complication associated with bone marrow or HS@sptantation.

In 2009, we entered into a collaboration agreemsétht Pfizer to develop and commercialize MutiSteamthe treatment of IBD for
the worldwide market. IBD is a group of inflammat@nd autoimmune conditions that affect the colat small intestine, typically
resulting in severe abdominal pain, weight lossnitimg and diarrhea. The most common forms of tiseake include ulcerative
colitis and Crohn’s disease, which are estimateaffect more than 2.3 million people in the Unitt@tes, five major European
markets (United Kingdom, Germany, France, Italy 8pdin) and Japan. Chronic IBD can be a severdilid¢ing condition, and
advanced cases may require surgery to remove finged region of the bowel, and may also requingpierary or permanent
colostomy or iliostomy. In many cases, surgery dugsachieve a permanent cure, and patients salffeturn of the disease.
Enrollment commenced in February 2011 in our Paglical study being conducted with our partnefizer, to administer
MultiStem to patients suffering from ulcerativeitisl

Another area of focus is the use of MultiStem garaative treatment for HSC/bone marrow transpla®dias therapy in hematolo
malignancy. For many types of cancer, such as haigker other blood-borne cancers, treatment tylyiéavolves radiation therapy
or chemotherapy, alone or in combination. Suchtrmeat can substantially deplete the cells of tl®dland immune system, by
reducing the number of stem cells in the bone mafrom which they arise. The more intense the itéatitreatment or
chemotherapy, the more severe the resulting deplé&tiof the bone marrow, blood, and immune systether tissues may also be
affected, such as cells in the digestive tractiaritle pulmonary system. The result may be seveeené, immunodeficiency,
substantial reduction in digestive capacity, aficeoproblems that may result in significant disépibr death.

One strategy for treating the depletion of bonerowvatis to perform a peripheral blood stem cell s@lant or a bone marrow
transplant. This approach may augment the patiabilgy to form new blood and immune cells andyide a significant survival
advantage. However, finding a closely matched dafrequently difficult or even impossible. Evehen such a donor is found, in
many cases there are immunological complicatiamnsh s GVHD, which may result in serious disabititydeath.

Working with leading experts in the stem cell até marrow transplantation field, we have studiedtitem in animal models of
radiation therapy and GVHD. In multiple animal misdéultiStem has been shown to be non-immunogevien when
administered without the genetic matching thayjédally required for conventional bone marrow tams cell transplantation.
Furthermore, in animal model systems testing imnmeaetivity of T-cells against unrelated donoruissMultiStem has been shown
to suppress the T-cell-mediated immune respons¢sth an important factor in causing GVHD. Muki®ttreated animals also
displayed a significant increase in survival refatio controls. As a result, we believe that theaiagstration of MultiStem in
conjunction with or following standard HSC transpktion may have the potential to reduce the imzideor severity of
complications and may enhance gastrointestinattiomevhich is frequently compromised as a resultagfiation treatment or
chemotherapy.

In 2008, we initiated a Phase | clinical trial taeine the safety and tolerability of MultiStempatients receiving a bone marrow or
hematopoietic stem cell transplant related to ttreatment for hematologic malignancy. The trigdiisopen label, multicenter trial
that involves leading experts in the field of banarrow transplantation. In January 2011, we annedticat we had successfully
completed enrollment for the single ascending gms&on of this clinical trial and established teximum tolerated dose, and we
expect to announce preliminary results in the sécprarter of 2011. In addition, the multiple asdeagdiose portion of this study is
ongoing.
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Neurological Diseas«— MultiStem for Ischemic Stroke

Another focus of our regenerative medicine progisuthe use of MultiStem for the treatment of neagidal injury as a result of
ischemic stroke or other conditions. To date, weehaublished research with independent collabagatimestigators that
demonstrates that MultiStem conveys biological fienm preclinical models of ischemic stroke, tnaatic brain injury, neonatal
hypoxic ischemia (a leading cause of cerebral patsyd spinal cord injury. We have also conductestimical work in other
neurological areas, and have been awarded grastgppmrt work in areas such as the indicationsrdest above and for evaluating
the potential of MultiStem to treat ParkinssiDisease. Research has shown that MultiStem cerbanefits through multiple distir
mechanisms, including reducing inflammatory damagetecting at risk tissue at the site of injungdahrough direct neurotrophic
effects. As a result, we believe that MultiStem rhaye relevance to multiple forms of neurologicgiiy and disease.

Our initial clinical focus in the neurological aremolves evaluating administration of MultiStemtteat ischemic stroke. Ischemic
stroke is a leading cause of death and disabilalally, and accounts for approximately 85% ofsailbkes. Recent progress toward
the development of safer and more effective treatmfr ischemic stroke has been disappointingpideshe fact that ischemic
stroke is one of the leading causes of death asabidiity in the United States, affecting more ti7&0,000 new patients annually
according to the United States Centers for Dis€as#rol and Prevention, or CDC, there has beda fittogress toward the
development of treatments that improve the prognimsistroke victims. The only FDA-approved drugreatly available for
ischemic stroke is the anti-clotting factor, tPAcclrding to current clinical guidelines, tPA mustddministered to stroke patients
within three hours after the occurrence of theéscit stroke to remove the clot while minimizing gatial risks, such as bleeding
into the brain. Administration of tPA after thisni frame is not recommended, since it can causelipig or even death. Given this
limited therapeutic window, it is estimated thatdehan 5% of ischemic stroke victims currentlyeree treatment with tPA.

In preclinical studies conducted by investigatarsluding at both the University of Minnesota ahé Medical College of Georgia,
significant functional improvements have been obsgiin rodents that have undergone an experimgntalliced stroke, or that he
incurred significant neurological damage as a teffuleonatal hypoxic ischemia, and then receivedtinent with MultiStem.
Published research has demonstrated that admtiostiat MultiStem even one week after a surgicallguced stroke results in
substantial long-term therapeutic benefit, as exédd by the improvement of treated animals compartidcontrols in a battery of
tests examining mobility, strength, fine motor kkibnd other aspects of neurological functiongriomement. We believe that this
benefit is achieved through several mechanismgjdimg reduction of inflammation and immune systeimdulation in the ischemic
area, and the protection and rescue of damagetuoed cells, including neuronal tissue. More reégesearch results, presented at
the 2011 American Heart Association Internatiortedk& Conference by collaborators from the Uniugrsf Texas Health Science
Center at Houston, demonstrated that administratidviultiStem 24 hours following a stroke reducaflammatory damage in the
brain, and resulted in significant functional impement, and that some of these results were achigweeducing the inflammatory
response emanating from the spleen. These resuifsra that MultiStem treatment is well toleratelhes not require
immunosuppression, and results in a robust andbthutherapeutic benefit even when administerecbugme week after the initial
stroke event.

In 2008, we completed additional preclinical safgtydies and submitted an IND for this applicatiwhijch has been authorized by
the FDA. The Phase | safety clinical trial autheddy the FDA is a double blind, placebo controiady that allows for
administration of MultiStem to patients 48 to 6Quafter the ischemic stroke, which, if shown ¢éoshfe and effective, would
represent a significant extension of the treatmeéntlow relative to existing standard of care. Hoemsince this study was
authorized, we have generated additional precligind clinical data that demonstrates the condistafiety profile of MultiStem.
Accordingly, we are focused on modifying the desifithis study, including increasing the trial sige that we can evaluate clinical
safety and efficacy in a more robust manner.
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Pharmaceutical Program:
Novel 5HT2c agonists for the treatment of obegity eelated condition

Obesity is a substantial contributing factor t@aage of diseases that represent the major causkestif and disability in the
developed world today. Individuals that are clitlicabese have elevated rates of cardiovascul@adis, stroke, certain types of
cancer and diabetes. According to the CDC, thelerae of obesity in the United States has increasad epidemic rate during the
past 20 years. CDC now estimates that 66% of akkeans are overweight, including more than 30% ahe considered clinically
obese. The percentage of young people who are eigitwhas more than tripled since 1980. There lsaskeeen a dramatic rise in
the rate of obesity in Europe and Asia. Despitentiagnitude of this problem, current approachedingcal obesity are largely
ineffective, and we are aware of relatively few rtberapeutic approaches in clinical development.

We are developing novel pharmaceutical treatmemtelfesity, which are compounds designed to astibyulating a key receptor
the brain that regulates appetite and food intakdhe-5HT2c receptor. The role of this receptoreiguiating food intake is well
understood in both animal models and humans. 116,188/eth Pharmaceuticals launched the anti-obesity Redux®
(dexfenfluramine), a nospecific serotonin receptor agonist that was uséd twe stimulant phentermine in a combination caniy
known as fen-phen. This diet drug combination géiragid and widespread acceptance in the clinieaketplace and was shown to
be highly effective at regulating appetite, redgdiood intake, and causing significant weight lagsfortunately, in addition to
stimulating the 5HT2c receptor, Redux also stinedahe 5SHT2b receptor that is found in the hedre activation of 5HT2b by
Redux is believed to have caused significant caedioular problems in a number of patients and,raswt, Redux was withdrawn
from the market in 1997. In 1996, doctors wrotariBion monthly prescriptions for drugs constitugithe fen/phen combination. In
that same year, these drugs generated sales o¢gtiean $400 million, serving as a benchmark fiergubstantial market opportur
for an effective drug to treat clinical obesity.

Since the withdrawal of Redux from the market, salvgroups have published research and clinical thett implicate stimulation of
the 5HT2b receptor as the underlying cause of éhe@i@vascular problems. These findings suggesthtigaly selective compounds
that stimulate the 5HT2c receptor, but that doapgreciably stimulate the SHT2b receptor, could&eecloped that maintain the
desired appetite suppressive effects without th@i@aascular toxicity. Recent clinical data suppdttis hypothesis and also suggests
that the 5HT2c agonists may also cause a statlgtgignificant reduction in HbAlc and fasting ghse levels, clinically relevant
measures for patients suffering from diabetes.

We initiated a drug development program focusedreating potent and selective compounds that stitauhe SHT2c receptor, but
that avoid the 5HT2b receptor and other recepsudh as 5HT2a. Our specific goal has been to dpwaimrally administered pill
that reduces appetite by stimulating the 5SHT2cptare but that does not stimulate the SHT2b reagpih@ 5HT2a receptor, or other
receptors that could cause adverse side effecsgdBan extensive preclinical studies that we hawnelgcted with compounds that
have generated, we have demonstrated the abildguelop compounds that are highly potent and eéefor the SHT2c receptor,
and that lack activity at either 5HT2a or 5SHT2b. Bétieve that this achievement represents a siggmifiadvance in the field, and
that the potency and selectivity profile displaysdcompounds we are developing will result in sabgally better efficacy and a
cleaner safety and tolerability profile in clinidakls, as well as a more convenient dosing scleethan other SHT2c agonist
programs. Our goal is to select a clinical candidat this program in 2011.
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Other Small Molecule Programs & Key Technologies

In addition to our other programs, we believe thate are significant opportunities for synergywsstn our small molecule progra
capabilities and our MultiStem technology. Speaeifi, we believe that substantial opportunitiessefor identifying small molecule
modulators of therapeutically relevant biologicetiivaty exhibited by MultiStem or other stem cefpes. We believe that applying
our capabilities in both areas could lead to nextegation product development opportunities, inclganore potent stem cell based
therapies that have been optimized for use in §peacdication areas.

In addition to our current product development pangs, we developed our patented RAGE technologyptteides us with the
ability to produce human cell lines that expresctjt, biologically well validated drug targetstivbut relying upon cloned and
isolated gene sequences. While our RAGE technakggt a product, it is a commercial technologyt tha have successfully
applied for the benefit of our partners and thatwaee also used for our own internal drug develagmeograms. Modern drug
screening approaches typically require the physsoddtion and structural modification of a generdérest, an approach referred to
as gene cloning, in order to create a cell lin¢ éxaresses a drug target of interest. Researat®rshen use the genetically modif
cell line to identify pharmaceutical compounds tin&tbit or stimulate the target of interest. Th&@GE technology enables us to turn
on or amplify the expression of a drug target withieaving to physically clone or isolate the gdneeffect, the technology works
through the random insertion of tiny, proprietagngtic switches that randomly turn genes on withequiring their physical
isolation, or any advance knowledge of their stitet This technology provides us with broad freedomwork with targets that may
be otherwise unavailable as a result of intelldghuaperty restrictions on the use of specific édrand isolated genes. Over the past
several years, we have produced cell lines thatesspdrug targets in a range of disease areasasutletabolic disease, infectious
disease, oncology, cardiovascular disease, inflailomaand central nervous system disorders. Marth@ge were produced for drug
development programs at major pharmaceutical corapdhat we have collaborated with, such as Bristgérs Squibb, and some
have been produced for our internal drug developmpergrams.
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Collaborations and Partnerships
Pfizer

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we entered into kaboration agreement with Pfizer to develop anchewercialize MultiStem for the
treatment of IBD for the worldwide market. Undee tierms of the agreement, we received a non-rehledgfront cash payment
$6 million from Pfizer and will receive researcinéling and support during the initial phase of thlaboration. In addition, we are
also eligible to receive milestone payments ofaup205 million upon the successful achievementeaotfain development, regulatory
and commercial milestones, though there can bessarance that we will achieve any milestones, anohifestones were received
of December 31, 2010. We will be responsible fonafacturing and Pfizer will pay us for manufactgriproduct for clinical
development and commercialization purposes. Pfigiéhave responsibility for development, regulat@and commercialization and
will pay us tiered royalties on worldwide commertaales of MultiStem IBD products. Alternatively, lieu of royalties and certain
commercialization milestones, we may elect to ceetlgp with Pfizer and the parties will share depeh@nt and commercialization
expenses and profits/losses on an agreed basisiiegiat Phase 11l clinical development.

The Pfizer collaboration does not have a specfimination date, but will terminate upon the laséxpire royalty term, unless
terminated earlier by either party. Either partg tarminate the agreement for an uncured materéaldh or default. Pfizer is
permitted to terminate the agreement upon advamiteemwnotice to us if we sustain certain turnolesels for employees working ¢
the program, if our license with the UniversityMinnesota is terminated, if we experience a spetifihange of control event, or in
its sole discretion. We can terminate the agreeifiantertain milestone event has not occurred dgfaned period of time, or if we
reasonably believe that Pfizer has failed to sattsfobligations to progress the development efghogram. Following termination
of the agreement by us, all licenses granted wePfo develop and commercialize MultiStem for IBil terminate, other than
certain more limited research licenses, and owiistregulatory and clinical data will revert te.UFollowing termination of the
agreement by Pfizer, the licenses granted to Pfileremain in effect according to their termsJess the termination is due to our
breach, employee turnover or termination of therige with University of Minnesota, in which casgmants to us will be reduced
from what was otherwise payable. Also, if Pfizeantaates in its sole discretion, then Pfizer redata obligation to fund our reseai
and development costs as set forth in the agreement
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Angiotech

In May 2006, we established a collaboration withgiatech that is focused on co-developing MultiSfemthe treatment of damage
caused by myocardial infarction and peripheral ulsdisease. In support of the collaboration, Ategh invested $10.0 million in

us and we may also receive up to $3.75 milliondafidonal equity investments and $63.75 millioraggregate cash payments based
upon the successful achievement of specified @irdevelopment and commercialization milestones gh there can be no
assurance that we will achieve any milestones.dfe,ather than the initial investment of $10.0lioml in the Company by

Angiotech in installments in 2006 and 2007, we hawvereceived any additional payments from Angibtas equity investments or
milestone payments.

Under the terms of the collaboration, the partiesj@intly funding clinical development activitieshereby preclinical costs are bo
solely by Athersys, costs for Phase | and Phasknital trials are borne 50% by Athersys and 50p#giotech, costs for the first
Phase 1l clinical trial will be borne 33% by Atlsgs and 67% by Angiotech, and costs for any PHas#nical trials subsequent to
the first Phase lll clinical trial will be borne @6by Athersys and 75% by Angiotech. We have reck$24 million from Angiotech
as its cumulative share of clinical development cesnbursements, representing billings throught&aper 30, 2010. We have lead
responsibility for preclinical and early clinicadgelopment and manufacturing of the MultiStem poidand Angiotech will take the
lead on pivotal and later clinical trials and connaiadization. We will receive nearly half of thetq@ofits from the sale of any joint
developed, approved products. In addition, we regiihin the commercial rights to MultiStem for alher therapeutic applications,
including treatment of stroke or other neurologicdgications, bone marrow transplantation and argykupport, blood and immu
system disorders, autoimmune disease, and othieatiahs that we may elect to pursue.

The Angiotech collaboration does not have a spetgfimination date, but will terminate upon thelieat to occur of the following:

. if at least one cell therapy product has obtaiegailatory approval and we and Angiotech haveeshprofits with respect
to sales of at least one cell therapy productdtte that there has been no sales for 12 montsyofell therapy product
that has been the subject of profit-sharing, urdestnical development candidate is in at leaBhase 11l clinical or later;
and

. the later of (1) the expiration date of the lessexpire patent licensed to Angiotech and (2)lthe/ear anniversary, which
would be May 2021

Currently, the expiration date of the last-to-egpiatent licensed to Angiotech is in 2025. Addiiopatent applications that are
under active prosecution are also part of the boHation, and we continue to develop intellectuaperty and prosecute filed patent
applications that, once issued, would likely extpatent coverage and may be licensed to Angiotaderuthe collaboration.

Neither we nor Angiotech may terminate the collalion at will; however, either party may elect attain points to not mov
forward with individual product development progmarif either party breaches its material obligasiand fails to cure that breach
within 60 days after notice from the non-breachpagty, the non-breaching party may terminate tHalsoration. Angiotech has a
right to immediately terminate the collaboratiorongertain bankruptcy events involving us. Angibtatso has the right to termin
the collaboration upon 120 days’ prior notice ifgdotech, in its reasonable judgment, determines {hja primary endpoint in a
clinical trial within a clinical development plara$ not been met; (2) the clinical efficacy andafety with respect to a clinical
development candidate or a cell therapy produce mt been demonstrated; (3) applicable regulasmyirements for cells, a
clinical development candidate or a cell therapydpict in one or more major markets shall have @rizadverse impact on the
ability to obtain regulatory approval for a celethpy product in such markets; (4) our data reggrdells, a clinical development
candidate or a cell therapy product were obtaimedhole or in part, through scientific fraud; &) @ cell therapy product is not (or
is not expected to be) commercially viable or pedfie in at least one major market.

In January 2011, Angiotech announced its plansiteye a recapitalization transaction through itsimary filing under the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act in Canadadhé&event that Angiotech elects not to continud witr collaboration,
Angiotech would return all rights to us and we wbhhve an outstanding claim related to Angiotechitmbursement of our fourth
quarter 2010 collaboration costs and the costaitifrdanuary 28, 2011, which was Angiotech’s petitate. In the event that
Angiotech fails to fund its obligations under tleenis of our collaboration agreement, our net dastsubsequent AMI clinical trials
would increase or alternative funding would be regglifor such clinical trials.
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RTI Biologics, Inc.

In September 2010, we entered into an agreemehntRAiit Biologics, Inc., or RTI, to develop and conraialize MAPC technology-
based biologic implants for certain orthopedic aggions in the bone graft substitutes market. dgneement provides for a

$5.0 million license fee, potential milestone paytseand tiered royalties on worldwide commercidsaf implants using our
technologies. We are currently working with RTidevelop products for these applications.

Bristol-Myers Squibb

In December 2000, we entered into a collaboratigh Bristol-Myers Squibb to provide cell lines eggsing well validated drug
targets produced using our RAGE technology for commgl screening and development. This initial catabion was expanded in
2002 and again in 2006, and is now in its finalgghas amended in 2009. Bristol-Myers Squibb usesdH lines in its internal drug
development programs and, in exchange, we recieimase fee and milestone payments and will beleatib receive royalties on t
sale of any approved products. Depending on thefliaeell line by Bristol-Myers Squibb and the gress of drug development
programs benefiting from the use of such a cedl,lime may receive as much as approximately $5l&mper cell line in additional
license fees and milestone payments, though weota@ssure you that any further milestones will tiegieved or that we will receive
any additional milestone payments. In Septembe82Bfistol-Myers Squibb successfully advanced Phase Il clinical
development a drug candidate discovered usinggattarovided by us, thereby triggering a clinicatedlopment milestone payment
to us.

Since the beginning of the collaboration, we hanavided 27 cell lines to Bristol-Myers Squibb undee collaboration.
Additionally, as of December 31, 2010, we have iramkan aggregate amount of $1.7 million in milestpayments and $8.0 milli
in license fees from Bristol-Myers Squibb under tlolaboration.

We are preparing and delivering the final validadeag target for use by Bristol-Myers Squibb indtsig discovery efforts under the
collaboration and do not expect any significant dachfor new targets. We will remain entitled toaiee license fees for targets
delivered to Bristol-Myers Squibb, as well as ntibee payments and royalties on compounds develop&tistol-Myers Squibb
using our technology.

The Bristol-Myers Squibb collaboration does notéawspecific termination date, but will terminateen Bristol-Myers Squibb no
longer has an obligation to pay us royalties, whibhgation generally continues until the lateitioé expiration of the Bristol-Myers
Squibb patent covering an approved product angie¢ans after commercial sales of that product beghaugh we expect Bristol-
Myers Squibb to file for and be issued patentpfoducts developed under the collaboration, wenat@ware of any patents issued
to Bristol-Myers Squibb covering any potential puots related to the collaboration. If either pditgaches its material obligations
and fails to cure that breach within 60 days aftiice from the non-breaching party, the non-braagparty may terminate the
collaboration.

Competition

We face significant competition with respect to #aeious dimensions of our business. With regarutoefforts to develop
MultiStem as a novel stem cell therapy, curreritigre are a number of companies that are activalgldping stem cell products,
which encompass a range of different cell typeduiting embryonic stem cells, umbilical cord steslis; adult-derived stem cells,
and processed bone marrow derived cells.

Osiris is currently engaged in multiple Phase H &hmase 111 clinical trials involving Prochymal, alogeneic stem cell product ba:
on mesenchymal stem cells, or MSCs, that are adddimom healthy consenting donors, and are adremgdtwithout tissue
matching. However, in contrast to MultiStem, MS@spthy limited expansion potential and more limitgdlogical plasticity. In
November 2008, Osiris announced a partnership iocwBenzyme acquired development rights to Prochyonaertain market
outside the United States and Canada in excham@i8® million in license fees, up to $1.25 billionclinical and sales milestones,
and royalties. Osiris retains commercial developmigihts to Prochymal for the United States andagian
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Mesoblast is currently engaged in clinical trialaleating the safety and efficacy of Revascor, lloganeic stem cell product based
on mesenchymal stem cell precursors that are @adiom healthy consenting donors. These cellsadpear to display limited
expansion potential and more limited biologicalsgilzity. In December 2010, Mesoblast announcedtm@aship with Cephalon, in
which Cephalon paid an upfront license fee of $i@llon, and agreed to invest an additional $220iom in equity for a 19.9%
stake in the company. In addition, total regulatmilestone payments to Mesoblast could reach $lli@n) assuming that the
agreement results in commercial treatments for itiomd including congestive heart failure, acuteoegrdial infarction, Parkinson’s
disease, and Alzheimer’s disease.

Other public companies are developing stem-reltitedapies, including Geron, Aastrom BiosciencespSCells Inc., Johnson &
Johnson, Celgene, Advanced Cell Technology, CRY@iCternational, Pluristem and Cytori Therapeuticsaddition, private
companies, such as Cognate Therapeutics, GamitiaP@ekon, Cellerix and others, are also develgiell therapy related produ:
or capabilities. Given the magnitude of the potdrdpportunity for stem cell therapy, we expect petition in this area to intensify
in the coming years.

We also face competition in our efforts to devetopnpounds for the treatment of obesity. There isetily one approved
therapeutic product on the market for obesity, Xah{also known as Alli), which is marketed by RecRotential side effects
associated with taking Xenical / Alli include craimg, intestinal discomfort, flatulence, diarrheagddeakage of oily stool. Another
obesity drug, Meridia, was approved for clinicat @sd marketed by Abbott Pharmaceuticals, but e@ently withdrawn from the
market due to concerns regarding increased rigiuafiovascular disease and stroke among patigatgytthe drug.

There are many other companies attempting to dpvedoel treatments for obesity, and a wide rangappfoaches are being taken.
Some of these companies include large, multinatipharmaceutical companies such as Bristol-Myerst#y Merck, Roche,
SanofiAventis, GlaxoSmithKline, Eli Lilly and others. Treeare also a variety of biotechnology companieidping treatments fc
obesity, including Arena Pharmaceuticals, Orexigénys, Neurosearch, Amgen, Regeneron, Nastechnitautical Company,
Alizyme, Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Neurocrine Biosaies, Shionogi, Metabolic Pharmaceuticals, Kyoharfaceutical, and othe
It is likely that, given the magnitude of the markeportunity, many companies will continue to fe@n the obesity area, and that
competition will remain high. If we are successitileveloping a 5HT2c agonist as a safe and efettatment for obesity, it is
likely that other companies will attempt to devebkader and more effective compounds in the sanss cta will attempt to combine
therapies in an effort to establish a safer anceneffiective therapeutic product.

We believe our most significant competitors aréyfiitegrated pharmaceutical companies and biotelclgy companies that have
substantially greater financial, technical, satearketing, and human resources than we do. Thespatites may succeed in
obtaining regulatory approval for competitive prottumore rapidly than we can for our products.ddition, our competitors may
develop technologies and products that are chesafer, or more effective than those being develdpeds or that would render our
technology obsolete. Furthermore, some of thesgaoias may feel threatened by our activities atedgit to delay or impede our
efforts to develop our products or apply our tedbgies.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent applicationdepts, trademarks, and contractual provisions atept our proprietary rights. We
believe that to have a competitive advantage, wst mevelop and maintain the proprietary aspectaiptechnologies. Currently, v
require our officers, employees, consultants, @mérs, manufacturers, outside scientific collatmysaand sponsored researchers,
and other advisors to execute confidentiality agreas in connection with their employment, consgltior advisory relationships
with us, where appropriate. We also require ourleyges, consultants, and advisors who we expegbt& on our products to agree
to disclose and assign to us all inventions corezkduring the work day, developed using our prgpert which relate to our
business. We currently have an aggregate of 6%{safier our technologies.
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We have a broad patent estate with claims diredctedmpositions, methods of production, and mettuddsse of certain non-
embryonic stem cells and related technologies. ¥gaieed ownership of part of our stem cell techggland intellectual property as
a result of our 2003 acquisition of a holding compavhich held the rights to the technology oridindiscovered at the University
of Minnesota. We also have an exclusive licensadttitional MAPC-related inventions (or in other wsyimprovements) developed
by the University of Minnesota through May 2009damder a collaborative research agreement witkK#ikolieke Universiteit
Leuven, or KUL, we have an exclusive license to MCARlated inventions developed at KUL using the MCAiechnology or
intellectual property or that result from sponsoresearch funded by us. We also own and licensiéi@ui intellectual property
develop by us and others. We have 21 issued pdsauen U.S. patents and fourteen internation&ns)t and more than 150 patent
applications related to our stem cell technologfies$ currently provide patent coverage throughatesads 2025. Of the 21 patents
related to our stem cell technologies, four U.Septs and nine non-U.S. patents apply to MAPC-baseldrelated products.
Additional patent applications are pending thaisstied, could extend beyond this date. Furtherpiom@ertain jurisdictions (such as
the United States) a patent term may be extendsflext the length of time a product is under tatpry review, and/or an extended
period of market exclusivity may apply for certgiroducts (e.g. exclusivity periods for orphan ddegignation or biologics).

We have established a broad intellectual propestifgio related to our functional genomics tectogies and small molecule
product candidates. We have a broad patent esititelaims directed to compositions, methods of imgkand methods of using ¢
small molecule drug candidates. We have three patents and four patent applications with broagndalirected to selective
5HT2c agonists discovered at Athersys that culygartbvide patent coverage through as late as Z828n our Histamine H3
program, we have four U.S. patents and two patgpitGations with broad claims directed to compoudidsovered at Athersys fro
two distinct chemical series that currently providdent coverage through as late as 2028. In additie currently have 35 issued
patents (sixteen U.S. patents and nineteen inten@patents) and six patent applications relatingompositions and methods for
the RAGE technology that currently provide patemterage through as late as 2017, and two U.S. {sad@d nine patent
applications relating to human proteins and carididaug targets that we identified through the mpgibn of RAGE and our other
technologies that currently provide patent covethgeugh as late as 2022. The RAGE technology wasldped by Dr. John
Harrington and other Athersys scientists internallthe mid-1990s.

We believe that we have broad freedom to use aminecially develop our technologies and producticdates. However, if
successful, a patent infringement suit broughtreggais may force us or any of our collaboratorécensees to stop or delay
developing, manufacturing, or selling potentialguots that are claimed to infringe a third pariptellectual property, unless that
party grants us rights to use its intellectual prty In such cases, we may be required to obi@@ndes to patents or proprietary
rights of others to continue to commercialize owoducts. However, we may not be able to obtainl@eynses required under any
patents or proprietary rights of third parties coeptable terms, or at all. Even if we were ablelttain rights to the third party’s
intellectual property, these rights may be non-asivle, thereby giving our competitors access tcsdme intellectual property.
Ultimately, we may be unable to commercialize saheur potential products or may have to cease sufoerr business operations
as a result of patent infringement claims, whichldseverely harm our business.

Research and Development

Our research and development costs, which congimsagly of costs associated with external clinit@l costs, preclinical study
fees, manufacturing costs, salaries and relatesbpeel costs, legal expenses resulting from irgieldd property application
processes, and laboratory supply and reagent eesits,$14.8 million in 2010, $11.9 million in 2088d $16.5 million in 2008.

Government Regulation
Any products we may develop and our research anelolement activities are subject to stringent goweznt regulation in the
United States by the FDA and, in many instancesdmgesponding foreign and state regulatory agendiee European Union, or

EU, has vested centralized authority in the Eurnpdadicines Evaluation Agency and Committee on Retqry Medicinal Produc
to standardize review and approval across EU memddéns.
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These regulatory agencies enforce comprehensitigesaregulations, and guidelines governing thg dievelopment process. This
process involves several steps. Initially, the canypmust generate preclinical data to show safetyrb human testing may be
initiated. In the United States, the drug compamgisubmit an IND to the FDA prior to securing authation for human testing.
The IND must contain adequate data on product datelichemistry, toxicology and metabolism and, wtagpropriate, animal
research testing to support initial safety.

A CTA is the European equivalent of the U.S. INOILACrequirements are issued by each competent atytlvathin the European
Union and are enacted by local laws and Directives.

Any of our product candidates will require regulgtapproval and compliance with regulations madé&Jhited States and foreign
government agencies prior to commercializationuichscountries. The process of obtaining FDA orifpreegulatory agency
approval has historically been extremely costly tim& consuming. The FDA regulates, among othemgthithe development,
testing, manufacture, safety, efficacy, record kagdabeling, storage, approval, advertising, pstion, sale, and distribution of
biologics and new drugs.

The standard process required by the FDA befoteaanpaceutical agent may be marketed in the UnitateSincludes:
. preclinical tests in animals that demonstrate ageable likelihood of safety and effectivenessumhn patients

. submission to the FDA of an IND, which must beeosffective before clinical trials in humans camooence. If Phase |
clinical trials are to be conducted initially outsithe United States, a different regulatory filimgequired, depending on
the location of the trial

. adequate and well controlled human clinical $rial establish the safety and efficacy of the dnuiologic in the intended
disease indicatior

«  for drugs, submission of a New Drug Application NiDA, or a Biologic License Application, or BLA, tii the FDA; anc
. FDA approval of the NDA or BLA before any commeidale or shipment of the dru

Preclinical studies can take several years to cetapand there is no guarantee that an IND basédose studies will become
effective to permit clinical trials to begin. Thinical development phase generally takes fiveetzes years, or longer, to complete
(i.e., from the initiation of Phase 1 through coetjgn of Phase 3 studies). After successful conguladf clinical trials for a new drt
or biologic product, FDA approval of the NDA or BLAust be obtained. This process requires substtintaand effort and there
no assurance that the FDA will accept the NDA oABubr filing and, even if filed, that the FDA witirant approval. In the past, the
FDA's approval of an NDA or BLA has taken, on awg@aone to two years, but in some instances maydakstantially longer. If
guestions regarding safety or efficacy arise, éoithl studies may be required, followed by a ressbion of the NDA or BLA.
Review and approval of an NDA or BLA can take upéweral years.

In addition to obtaining FDA approval for each pmot] each drug manufacturing facility must be ircépe and approved by the
FDA. All manufacturing establishments are subjedhspections by the FDA and by other federalestand local agencies, and rr
comply with GMP requirements. We do not currentlyd any GMP manufacturing capabilities, and wily @n contract
manufacturers to produce material for any clintcals that we may conduct.

We must also obtain regulatory approval in othemtdes in which we intend to market any drug. Téguirements governing
conduct of clinical trials, product licensing, pnig, and reimbursement vary widely from countrgtantry. FDA approval does not
ensure regulatory approval in other countries. dlveent approval process varies from country tontgy and the time spent in
gaining approval varies from that required for FBygproval. In some countries, the sale price ofitlug must also be approved. The
pricing review period often begins after marketrappl is granted. Even if a foreign regulatory awity approves a drug product, it
may not approve satisfactory prices for the product
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In addition to regulations enforced by the FDA, ave also subject to regulation under the OccupatiBafety and Health Act, the
Environmental Protection Act, the Toxic Substan€estrol Act, the Resource Conservation and Recoketyand other present a
potential future federal, state, or local regulasioOur research and development involves the atedruse of hazardous materials,
chemicals, biological materials, and various radive compounds. Although we believe that our safebcedures for handling and
disposing of such materials currently comply innaditerial respects with the standards prescribestdig and federal regulations, the
risk of accidental contamination or injury from sigematerials cannot be completely eliminated. énetbent of such an accident, we
could be held liable for any damages that reswutary such liability could exceed our availableoreses.

Employees

We believe that our success will be based on, artimay things, the quality of our clinical prograroar ability to invent and
develop superior and innovative technologies aodycts, and our ability to attract and retain cépalanagement and other
personnel. We have assembled a high quality tessnieftists, clinical development managers, andwiess with significant
experience in the biotechnology and pharmaceutichaistries.

As of December 31, 2010, we employed 44 full tirgaiealent employees, 20 with Ph.D. degrees. Intaddio our employees, we
also use the service and support of outside cagsland advisors. None of our employees is repteddy a union, and we believe
relationships with our employees are good.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports-orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and miéadments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ord)%( the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are abddl free of charge on our
website, www.athersys.copas soon as reasonably practicable after theffl@dewith, or furnished to, the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The statements in this section, as well as statentescribed elsewhere in this annual report, other SEC filings, describe risks
that could materially and adversely affect our bass, financial condition and results of operatimmd the trading price of our equ
securities could decline. These risks are not th risks that we face. Our business, financialditon and results of operations
could also be affected by additional factors thiatreot presently known to us or that we currentigsider to be immaterial to our
operations.

Risks Related To Our Business and Our Industry

We have incurred losses since inception and we expe incur significant net losses in the foresedaliuture and may never
become profitable.

Since our inception in 1995, we have incurred sigat losses and negative cash flows from opemati@/e have incurred net losses
of $18 million in 2008, $15 million in 2009 and $tillion in 2010. As of December 31, 2010, we hacdacumulated deficit of
$205 million, and anticipate incurring additionas$es for at least the next several years. We eigspend significant resources
over the next several years to enhance our tecgiesl@and to fund research and development of @alipe of potential products. ~
date, substantially all of Athersysvenue has been derived from corporate collalmmstiicense agreements and government g
In order to achieve profitability, we must devejmoeducts and technologies that can be commerathbyeus or through future
collaborations. Our ability to generate revenuescome profitable will depend on our ability, rsdoor with potential
collaborators, to timely, efficiently and succedigfaomplete the development of our product cangisaWe have never earned
revenue from selling a product and we may nevesajas none of our product candidates have beenaapfor sale, since they are
currently being tested yet in humans and animalistu We cannot assure you that we will ever eewarnrue or that we will ever
become profitable. If we sustain losses over aaraldd period of time, we may be unable to contowrebusiness.

We will need substantial additional funding to ddep our products and for our future operations. ifie are unable to obtain the
funds necessary to do so, we may be required tayjedcale back or eliminate our product developmaativities or may be unabl
to continue our business.

The development of our product candidates will nega commitment of substantial funds to conduetdbstly and time-consuming
research, which may include preclinical and clihteating, necessary to obtain regulatory approaats bring our products to
market. Net cash used in our operations was $llmih 2008, $5 million in 2009 and $11 million 2010. We expect to have
available cash to fund our operations through 28dsled on our current business and operational plathgssuming no new
financings or collaborations. Our future capitajugements will depend on many factors, including:

. the progress and costs of our research and gewelat programs, including our ability to develop ourrent portfolio of
therapeutic products, or discover and develop ness)

. our ability, or our partners ability and willingss, to advance partnered products or programgharspeed in which they
are advancec

» the cost of prosecuting, defending and enforcirtgnitaclaims and other intellectual property rigl

. the progress, scope, costs, and results of egfipical and clinical testing of any current otute pharmaceutical or
MultiStem related product

e  the time and cost involved in obtaining regulatapprovals
e the cost of manufacturing our product candide
. expenses related to complying with GMP of theraipquribduct candidate:

. costs of financing the purchases of additionaltehpiquipment and development technolog
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. competing technological and market developme

. our ability to establish and maintain collaboratand other arrangements with third parties tstssbringing our
products to market and the cost of such arrangesy

. the amount and timing of payments or equity itwesnts that we receive from collaborators or charig@r terminations
of future or existing collaboration and licensimgamgements and the timing and amount of expenesgaaur to
supporting these collaborations and license agretsy

. costs associated with the integration of any nperation, including costs relating to future mesgend acquisitions with
companies that have complementary capabili

. expenses related to the establishment of satemanketing capabilities for products awaiting aai or products that
have been approve

» the level of our sales and marketing expenses
. our ability to introduce and sell new produr

We cannot assure you that we will not need additicapital sooner than currently anticipated. Wk ngied to raise substantial
additional capital to fund our future operationse \daAnnot be certain that additional financing tvélavailable on acceptable terms
at all. In recent years, it has been difficult (ompanies to raise capital due to a variety ofiactwhich may or may not continue.
the extent we raise additional capital throughsthle of equity securities, the ownership positibowr existing stockholders could
substantially diluted. If additional funds are eaighrough the issuance of preferred stock or sketatrities, these securities are likely
to have rights, preferences and privileges sepiout common stock. Fluctuating interest ratesdalgo increase the costs of any
debt financing we may obtain.

Failure to successfully address ongoing liquidd@guirements will have a material adverse effeabambusiness. If we are unable to
obtain additional capital on acceptable terms wireded, we may be required to take actions that bar business and our ability
to achieve cash flow in the future, including pbsthe surrender of our rights to some technolegieproduct opportunities,
delaying our clinical trials or curtailing or ceagioperations.

We are heavily dependent on the successful devetagrand commercialization of MultiStem, and if waeounter delays or
difficulties in the development of this product cditlate, our business would be harmed.

We are heavily dependent upon the successful dewelot of MultiStem for certain diseases and coodgiinvolving acute or
ischemic injury or immune system dysfunction. Ousibess could be materially harmed if we encoutiféculties in the
development of this product candidate, such as:

. delays in the ability to manufacture the prodoajuantities or in a form that is suitable for apguired preclinical studies
or clinical trials;

. delays in the design, enroliment, implementationanpletion of required preclinical studies andicl trials;

. an inability to follow our current developmentagegy for obtaining regulatory approval from tH@A-because of changes
in the regulatory approval proce

. less than desired or complete lack of efficacyadety in preclinical studies or clinical trials;ch

. intellectual property constraints that preventnesif making, using, or commercializing the prodwmdidate
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The results seen in animal testing of our producralidates may not be replicated in humans.

This annual report discusses the safety and effisaen in preclinical testing of our lead produmdidates, including MultiStem, in
animals, but we may not see positive results wherother product candidates undergo clinical tgsitinhumans in the future.
Preclinical studies and Phase | clinical trials e primarily designed to test the efficacy ofraguct candidate in humans, but ra
to:

e  test shorterm safety and tolerabilit
e study the absorption, distribution, metabolism aliwhination of the product candida

. study the biochemical and physiological effedtthe product candidate and the mechanisms ofrihg action and the
relationship between drug levels and effect;

. understand the product candic's side effects at various doses and schec

Success in preclinical studies or completed clirtigals does not ensure that later studies olstriacluding continuing non-clinical
studies and large-scale clinical trials, will besessful nor does it necessarily predict futureltesThe rate of failure in drug
development is quite high, and many companiesarbtbtechnology and pharmaceutical industries Isaered significant setbacks
in advanced clinical trials, even after promisieguits in earlier trials. Product candidates méydashow desired safety and effici
in larger and more diverse patient populationsiarl stage clinical trials, despite having progedsfirough early stage trials.
Negative or inconclusive results from any of ougaoing preclinical studies or clinical trials coulesult in delays, modifications,
abandonment of ongoing or future clinical trialsl@he termination of our development of a produastdidate. Additionally, even if
we are able to successfully complete pivotal Pliaséinical trials, the FDA still may not approwaur product candidates.

Our product candidates are in an early stage of d@pment and we currently have no therapeutic protiiapproved for sale. If
we are unable to develop, obtain regulatory approbeamarket any of our product candidates, our finaial condition will be
negatively affected, and we may have to curtailcease our operations.

We are in the early stage of product developmertt,vee are dependent on the application of our t&lcigies to discover or develop
therapeutic product candidates. We currently desethtany approved therapeutic products and d@xpéct to have any products
commercially available for several years, if at #lbu must evaluate us in light of the uncertama@d complexities affecting an
early stage biotechnology company. Our product icktels require additional research and developrpegtjinical testing, clinical
testing and regulatory review and/or approvalslearances before marketing. To date, no one ti&woaonwledge has commercialized
any therapeutic products using our technologiesnandight never commercialize any product usingteahnologies and strategy.

In addition, we may not succeed in developing newdpct candidates as an alternative to our exigiortfolio of product candidate
If our current product candidates are delayed ibrdawe fail to successfully develop and commalize new product candidates,
financial condition may be negatively affected, ar@lmay have to curtail or cease our operations.

We may not successfully maintain our existing cdilarative and licensing arrangements, or establisbvmones, which could
adversely affect our ability to develop and commialize our product candidates.

A key element of our business strategy is to consralize some of our product candidates throughabaltations with other
companies. Our strategy includes establishing lsoitations and licensing agreements with one or mpbegmaceutical,
biotechnology or device companies, preferably aftethave advanced product candidates through ified tages of clinical
development. However, we may not be able to establi maintain such licensing and collaboratioamgements necessary to
develop and commercialize our product candidatesnBf we are able to maintain or establish licegsir collaboration
arrangements, these arrangements may not be orabd@derms and may contain provisions that walniet our ability to develop,
test and market our product candidates. Any faitanmaintain or establish licensing or collabomatéasrangements on favorable
terms could adversely affect our business prosptistscial condition or ability to develop and cavercialize our product
candidates.
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Our agreements with our collaborators and license®shave provisions that give rise to disputesurgigg the rights and obligatic

of the parties. These and other possible disagnesnseuld lead to termination of the agreementedays in collaborative research,
development, supply, or commercialization of cerf@ioduct candidates, or could require or resulitigption or arbitration.
Moreover, disagreements could arise with our coltators over rights to intellectual property or aghts to share in any of the
future revenues of products developed by our cotlatiors. These kinds of disagreements could resatistly and time-consuming
litigation. Any such conflicts with our collaboraocould reduce our ability to obtain future cobedition agreements and could have
a negative impact on our relationship with existiodjaborators.

Currently, our material collaborations and licegsamrangements are our collaboration with Pfizeteeelop and commercialize
MultiStem for the treatment of IBD, our product development collaboration with Angiotech to jointlgvelop and ultimately
market MultiStem for the treatment of damage caulmechyocardial infarction and peripheral vasculizsedse, our collaboration
agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb pursuant tockhive provide cell lines produced using our RAGEht®logy, our
collaboration with RTI to develop and commercialAPC technology-based biologic implants for certarthopedic applications
in the bone graft substitutes market, and our fieenith the University of Minnesota pursuant to ethive license certain aspects of
the MultiStem technology. These arrangements ddvae¢ specific termination dates; rather, eachngement terminates upon the
occurrence of certain events.

If our collaborators do not devote sufficient timend resources to successfully carry out their catted duties or meet expect
deadlines, we may not be able to advance our prodandidates in a timely manner or at all.

Our success depends on the performance by oubodditors of their responsibilities under our calleiion arrangements. Some
potential collaborators may not perform their oltigns in a timely fashion or in a manner satisfacto us. Typically, we cannot
control the amount of resources or time our coltatmys may devote to our programs or potential petglthat may be developed in
collaboration with us. We are currently involvednultiple research and development collaboratioitls academic and research
institutions. These collaborators frequently depenautside sources of funding to conduct or coteplesearch and development,
such as grants or other awards. In addition, cadamic collaborators may depend on graduate stsidmedical students, or resec
assistants to conduct certain work, and such iddals may not be fully trained or experienced iriap areas, or they may elect to
discontinue their participation in a particulareasch program, creating an inability to completgaing research in a timely and
efficient manner. As a result of these uncertagtiee are unable to control the precise timing exetution of any experiments that
may be conducted.

Additionally, our current or future corporate cdaltaators will retain the ability to pursue othesearch, product development or
commercial opportunities that may be directly cotitiwe with our programs. If these collaboratorsatlto prioritize or pursue other
programs in lieu of ours, we may not be able toaade product development programs in an efficiesffiective manner, if at all. If
a collaborator is pursuing a competitive program @ncounters unexpected financial or capabilitytiitions, they may be motivatt
to reduce the priority placed on our programs dayleertain activities related to our programs emnwilling to properly fund their
share of the development expenses for our programesof these developments could harm our prodadttachnology developme
efforts, which could seriously harm our business.

Under the terms of our collaboration agreement Witlgiotech, either party may choose, following toenpletion of Phase | trials,
opt-out of its obligation to fund further produehelopment on a product-by-product basis, provitdlinical trials concerning
such product candidate are currently ongoing. ifidtech should decide to opt-out of funding thealepment of any of the product
candidates for the covered indications, for angeaawe may be unable to fund the development owwn and could be forced to
halt one or more MultiStem development programdanuary 2011, Angiotech announced its plans teysua recapitalization
transaction through its voluntary filing under BempaniesCreditors Arrangement Act in Canada. In the evieat Angiotech elec
not to continue with our collaboration, Angiotecbuwld return all rights to us and we would have ats@nding claim related to
Angiotech’s reimbursement of our fourth quarter @@bllaboration costs and the costs through Jar2@&rg011, which was
Angiotech’s petition date. In the event that Angudt fails to fund its obligations under the terrheur collaboration agreement, our
net costs for subsequent AMI clinical trials wouldrease or alternative funding would be requidstich clinical trials.
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Even if we or our collaborators receive regulatoapproval for our products, those products may nebercommercially
successful

Even if we develop pharmaceuticals or MultiStenatesti products that obtain the necessary regulafmpyoval, and we have access
to the necessary manufacturing, sales, marketidglestribution capabilities that we need, our sssatepends to a significant deg
upon the commercial success of those productseffe products fail to achieve or subsequently rm@imharket acceptance or
commercial viability, our business would be sigrafitly harmed because our future royalty revenugtor revenue would be
dependent upon sales of these products. Many faotay affect the market acceptance and commergiakss of any potential
products that we may discover, including:

. health concerns, whether actual or perceivedntavorable publicity regarding our obesity drugtem cell products or
those of our competitor

» the timing of market entry as compared to competifiroducts
» the rate of adoption of products by our collabarsitnd other companies in the indus

. any product labeling that may be required by thé\D other United States or foreign regulatory ages for our produc
or competing or comparable produc

. convenience and ease of administrat

. pricing;

. perceived efficacy and side effec

. marketing;

. availability of alternative treatment

. levels of reimbursement and insurance coverage

. activities by our competitor:

We may experience delays in clinical trials and tdgtory approval relating to our products that calidversely affect our
financial results and our commercial prospects four pharmaceutical or stem cell product

In addition to the regulatory requirements for pharmaceutical programs, we will also require ratprly approvals for each distinct
application of our stem cell product. In each casewill be required to conduct clinical trialsdemonstrate safety and efficacy of
MultiStem, or various products that incorporateise MultiStem. For product candidates that advémeéinical testing, we cannot
be certain that we or a collaborator will succelbgitomplete the clinical trials necessary to reeaiegulatory product approvals.
This process is lengthy and expensive.

We intend to seek approval for our product canésigrough the FDA approval process. To obtainlegégry approvals, we must,
among other requirements, complete clinical triflswing that our products are safe and effectivafoarticular indication. Under
the approval process, we must submit clinical astclinical data to demonstrate the medicatiorafe sand effective. For example,
we must be able to provide data and informatiorickvmay include extended pharmacology, toxicolagproductive toxicology,
bioavailability and genotoxicity studies to establsuitability for Phase Il or large scale Phakelimical trials.

All of our product candidates are at an early stafgdevelopment. As these programs enter and psedheough early stage clinical
development, or complete additional non-clinicaliteg, an indication of a lack of safety or lackefficacy may result in the early
termination of an ongoing trial, or may cause uamy of our collaborators to forego further develemt of a particular product
candidate or program. The FDA or other regulat@greies may require extensive clinical trials dreottesting prior to granting
approval, which could be costly and time consuntingonduct. Any of these developments would hinded potentially prohibit,
our ability to commercialize our product candidai&e cannot assure you that clinical trials wilfatt demonstrate that our produ
are safe or effective.
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Additionally, we may not be able to find acceptgtddients or may experience delays in enrollingepés for our currently planned
or any future clinical trials. The FDA or we mayspend our clinical trials at any time if eitheribees that we are exposing the
subjects participating in the trials to unaccemdigalth risks. The FDA or institutional review bisand/or institutional biosafety
committees at the medical institutions and heafthacilities where we seek to sponsor clinicaltrimay not permit a trial to
proceed or may suspend any trial indefinitely étHind deficiencies in the conduct of the trials.

Product development costs to us and our potertdlilmorators will increase if we have delays irtitesor approvals or if we need to
perform more or larger clinical trials than plannéée expect to continue to rely on third party idat investigators at medical
institutions and healthcare facilities to conduat dlinical trials, and, as a result, we may faddigonal delaying factors outside our
control. Significant delays may adversely affeat fimancial results and the commercial prospeat®to product candidates and
delay our ability to become profitable.

If our pharmaceutical product candidates do not siessfully complete the clinical trial process, wélwot be able to partner o
market them. Even successful clinical trials maytrresult in a partnering transaction or a marketadlproduct and may not be
entirely indicative of a product’s safety or efficg.

Many factors, known and unknown, can adverselycaffbnical trials and the ability to evaluate aguct’s efficacy. During the
course of treatment, patients can die or suffeeragldverse events for reasons that may or mayenalated to the proposed product
being tested. Even if unrelated to our productiaberevents can nevertheless adversely impactlmical trials. As a result, our
ability to ultimately develop and market the prothuand obtain revenues would suffer.

Even promising results in preclinical studies amtal clinical trials do not ensure successfulutesin later clinical trials, which test
broader human use of our products. Many companiear industry have suffered significant setbackadvanced clinical trials,
despite promising results in earlier trials. Evancgssful clinical trials may not result in a mdakde product or be indicative of the
efficacy or safety of a product. Many factors oriables could affect the results of clinical trialsd cause them to appear more
promising than they may otherwise be. Product a@atds that successfully complete clinical trialsldailtimately be found to be
unsafe or ineffective.

In addition, our ability to complete clinical trsatlepends on many factors, including obtaining adtxclinical supplies and having a
sufficient rate of patient recruitment. For examplatient recruitment is a function of many factansluding:

» the size of the patient populatic

« the proximity of patients to clinical site

» the eligibility criteria for the trial

»  the perceptions of investigators and patients diggrsafety; an
» the availability of other treatment optiot

Even if we obtain regulatory approval of any of oproduct candidates, the approved products may uigject to pos-approval
studies and will remain subject to ongoing regulagaequirements. If we fail to comply, or if conces are identified in subsequel
studies, our approval could be withdrawn and ourgpluct sales could be suspend:

If we are successful at obtaining regulatory applréer MultiStem or any of our other product caratigs, regulatory agencies in the
United States and other countries where a prodilich&sold may require extensive additional clalitrials or post-approval clinical
studies that are expensive and time consumingridu. In particular, therapeutic products admérist for the treatment of
persistent or chronic conditions, such as obeaity likely to require extensive followp studies and close monitoring of patients ¢
regulatory approval has been granted, for any si§asiverse effects that occur over a long peridithme. These studies may be
expensive and time consuming to conduct and magateside effects or other harmful effects in pdtie¢hat use our therapeutic
products after they are on the market, which maultén the limitation or withdrawal of our drug®i the market. Alternatively, we
may not be able to conduct such additional trialsich might force us to abandon our efforts to dewy@r commercialize certain
product candidates. Even if post-approval studiesat requested or required, after our produetsapproved and on the market,
there might be safety issues that emerge overttiaterequire a change in product labeling or tegtire withdrawal of the product
from the market, which would cause our revenueetdide.
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Additionally, any products that we may successfdiyelop will be subject to ongoing regulatory riegiments after they are
approved. These requirements will govern the mantufang, packaging, marketing, distribution, ané o$ our products. If we fail 1
comply with such regulatory requirements, apprdeabur products may be withdrawn, and productsaiay be suspended. We
may not be able to regain compliance, or we may balable to regain compliance after a lengthyyjedmnificant expense, lost
revenues and damage to our reputation.

We may rely on third parties to manufacture our Mitem product candidate.

Our current business strategy relies on third @atth manufacture our MultiStem product candidatescordance with good
manufacturing practices established by the FDAsimilar regulations in other countries. These tipagties may not deliver
sufficient quantities of our MultiStem product cédates, manufacture MultiStem product candidatesctordance with
specifications, or comply with applicable governmgulations. Additionally, if the manufacturedducts fail to perform as
specified, our business and reputation could bersévimpacted.

We expect to enter into additional manufacturingeagents for the production of product materidlany manufacturing agreement
is terminated or any third party collaborator ex@eces a significant problem that could result oetay or interruption in the supply
of product materials to us, there are very few @mtmanufacturers who currently have the capghitproduce our MultiStem
product on acceptable terms, or on a timely antiefbsctive basis. We cannot assure you that matwfars on whom we will
depend will be able to successfully produce ourti@tém product on acceptable terms, or on a tiroelyost-effective basis. We
cannot assure you that manufacturers will be abfeanufacture our products in accordance with oodyct specifications or will
meet FDA or other requirements. We must have safficand acceptable quantities of our product medeto conduct our clinical
trials and ultimately to market our product cantidaif and when such products have been approyéluieb-DA for marketing. If w
are unable to obtain sufficient and acceptable tifiesof our product material, we may be requitedelay the clinical testing and
marketing of our products.

If we do not comply with applicable regulatory remements in the manufacture and distribution of oyroduct candidates, w
may incur penalties that may inhibit our ability toommercialize our products and adversely affect oevenue.

Ouir failure or the failure of our potential collabtors or third party manufacturers to comply vétiplicable FDA or other regulatc
requirements including manufacturing, quality cohttabeling, safety surveillance, promoting anplaiting may result in criminal
prosecution, civil penalties, recall or seizureof products, total or partial suspension of praiducor an injunction, as well as other
regulatory action against our product candidatassoDiscovery of previously unknown problems vatproduct, supplier,
manufacturer or facility may result in restrictioms the sale of our products, including a withdreefssuch products from the
market. The occurrence of any of these events woedgtively impact our business and results of atjmars.

If we are unable to create and maintain sales, matikg and distribution capabilities or enter intoggeements with third parties t
perform those functions, we will not be able to comarcialize our product candidate

We currently have no sales, marketing or distriuttapabilities. Therefore, to commercialize owrduct candidates, if and when
such products have been approved and are readyaideting, we expect to collaborate with third @erto perform these functions.
We will either need to share the value generatma fthe sale of any products and/or pay a fee tadhéract sales organization. If
establish any such relationships, we will be depahdpon the capabilities of our collaboratorsantract service providers to
effectively market, sell, and distribute our produtthey are ineffective at selling and distrilmgt our product, or if they choose to
emphasize other products over ours, we may noeeelihe level of product sales revenues that wddnlike. If conflicts arise, we
may not be able to resolve them easily or effettjvend we may suffer financially as a result. B wannot rely on the sales,
marketing and distribution capabilities of our eblbrators or of contract service providers, we tmayorced to establish our own
capabilities. We have no experience in developirining or managing a sales force and will inauvstantial additional expenses if
we decide to market any of our future productsadiye Developing a marketing and sales force is &itme consuming and could
delay launch of our future products. In additior, will compete with many companies that currentlydextensive and well-funded
marketing and sales operations. Our marketing ated £fforts may be unable to compete successfghynst these companies.
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If we are unable to attract and retain key persorred advisors, it may adversely affect our abilttyobtain financing, pursue
collaborations or develop our product candidates.

We are highly dependent on our executive officaétd/@n Bokkelen, Ph.D., our Chief Executive Officas well as other executive
and scientific officers, including William LehmanhpD., M.B.A., President and Chief Operating Offic®hn Harrington, Ph.D.,
Chief Scientific Officer and Executive Vice PresitleRobert Deans, Ph.D., Senior Vice PresidenteRegtive Medicine, and Lau
Campbell, CPA, Vice President of Finance, as webther personnel.

These individuals are integral to the developmentiategration of our technologies and to our pmeés@d future scientific
collaborations, including managing the complex aesle processes and the product development andtj@btsommercialization
processes. Given their leadership, extensive teahrgcientific and financial expertise and managetnand operational experience,
these individuals would be difficult to replace.rGequently, the loss of services of one or motdede named individuals could
result in product development delays or the faikfreur collaborations with current and future ablbrators, which, in turn, may hi
our ability to develop and commercialize producid generate revenues.

Our future success depends on our ability to ditratain and motivate highly qualified managenamd scientific, development and
commercial personnel and advisors. If we are untabégtract and retain key personnel and advisomsay negatively affect our
ability to successfully develop, test and commédim@aour product candidates.

Our ability to compete in the biopharmaceutical ni@t may decline if we do not adequately protect puoprietary technologies.

Our success depends in part on our ability to atdad maintain intellectual property that protemis technologies and our
pharmaceutical products. Patent positions may ¢feljhuncertain and may involve complex legal arziiufal questions, including tl
ability to establish patentability of compounds amethods for using them for which we seek pateottotion. We cannot predict t
breadth of claims that will ultimately be allowedaur patent applications, if any, including thegehave in-licensed or the extent to
which we may enforce these claims against our ctitopg We have filed multiple patent applicatidhat seek to protect the
composition of matter and method of use relateslitosmall molecule programs. In addition, we a@spcuting numerous distinct
patent families directed to composition, methodprofiuction, and methods of use of MultiStem analteel technologies. If we are
unsuccessful in obtaining and maintaining thesergatrelated to products and technologies, we rtaaiely be unable to
commercialize products that we are developing oy atect to develop in the future.

The degree of future protection for our proprietagts is therefore highly uncertain and we carassture you that:

. we were the first to file patent applicationg@invent the subject matter claimed in patentigptibns relating to the
technologies or product candidates upon which e

. others will not independently develop similar ceatative technologies or duplicate any of our tetbgies;

. others did not publicly disclose our claimed temlogy before we conceived the subject matter ohetlin any of our
patent applications

. any of our pending or future patent applicationt result in issued patent

. any of our patent applications will not result imarferences or disputes with third parties regaydgiriority of invention:
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. any patents that may be issued to us, our caolldétas or our licensors will provide a basis fongoercially viable
products or will provide us with any competitivevadtages or will not be challenged by third part

« we will develop additional proprietary technologthat are patentabl
»  the patents of others will not have an adverseceffie our ability to do business;

. new proprietary technologies from third partiesjuding existing licensors, will be available faensing to us on
reasonable commercial terms, if at

In addition, patent law outside the United Stasasricertain and in many countries intellectual proplaws are undergoing review
and revision. The laws of some countries do notggtdntellectual property rights to the same ekéendomestic laws. It may be
necessary or useful for us to participate in opgpwsproceedings to determine the validity of oampetitors’patents or to defend t
validity of any of our or our licensor’s future pats, which could result in substantial costs andld/divert our efforts and attention
from other aspects of our business. With respecettain of our inventions, we have decided ngiursue patent protection outside
the United States, both because we do not beligseost effective and because of confidentialiiymcerns. Accordingly, our
international competitors could develop and recéiveign patent protection for gene sequences amctibns for which we are
seeking United States patent protection, enabliegitto sell products that we have developed.

Technologies licensed to us by others, or in-lieengchnologies, are important to our business.stbpe of our rights under our
licenses may be subject to dispute by our licensotkird parties. Our rights to use these techgiekband to practice the inventions
claimed in the licensed patents are subject tdioemsors abiding by the terms of those licensekrant terminating them. In
particular, we depend on certain technologiesirgab our MultiStem technology licensed from theitérsity of Minnesota, and tl
termination of this license could result in ourdas some of the rights that enable us to utilige technology, and our ability to
develop products based on MultiStem could be ssiydiampered.

In addition, we may in the future acquire rightatilitional technologies by licensing such rightsf existing licensors or from thi
parties. Such in-licenses may be costly. Also, emegally do not control the patent prosecution ntesiance or enforcement of in-
licensed technologies. Accordingly, we are unablexercise the same degree of control over thédléatual property as we do over
our internally developed technologies. Moreoveme®f our academic institution licensors, collabarsaand scientific advisors he
rights to publish data and information to which ke rights. If we cannot maintain the confideitifadf our technologies and other
confidential information in connection with our Edorations, our ability to protect our proprietamformation or obtain patent
protection in the future may be impaired, whichldduave a significant adverse effect on our businfisancial condition and resu
of operations.

We may not have adequate protection for our unpatshproprietary information, which could adversedffect our competitive
position.

In addition to patents, we will substantially rely trade secrets, know-how, continuing technoldgmevations and licensing
opportunities to develop and maintain our compatiposition. However, others may independently tigveubstantially equivalent
proprietary information and techniques or othervgaa access to our trade secrets or discloseechnblogy. To protect our trade
secrets, we may enter into confidentiality agreemeiith employees, consultants and potential collators. However, these
agreements may not provide meaningful protectionuoftrade secrets or adequate remedies in the effanauthorized use or
disclosure of such information. Likewise, our tragerets or knowow may become known through other means or bearntientl
discovered by our competitors. Any of these eveatdd prevent us from developing or commercializing product candidates.

Disputes concerning the infringement or misapprogtion of our proprietary rights or the proprietarsights of others could bi
time consuming and extremely costly and could detay research and development efforts.

Our commercial success, if any, will be signifidgitarmed if we infringe the patent rights of thpdrties or if we breach any licer
or other agreements that we have entered intoredhrd to our technology or business.
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We are aware of other companies and academicutistis that have been performing research in thasaof adult derived stem
cells. In particular, other companies and acadénstitutions have announced that they have idextifionembryonic stem cells
isolated from bone marrow or other tissues thathhe ability to form a range of cell types, omdiy the property of pluripotency.
To the extent any of these companies or acadermiitutions currently have, or obtain in the futusepad patent claims, such patents
could block our ability to use various aspectsf discovery and development process and mightepitavs from developing or
commercializing newly discovered applications of MultiStem technology, or otherwise conducting business. In addition, it is
possible that some of the pharmaceutical produddidates we are developing may not be patentabieagrbe covered by
intellectual property of third parties.

We are not currently a party to any litigation girierence, opposition, protest, reexamination grather potentially adverse
governmental, ex parte or intparty proceeding with regard to our patent or tnaak positions. However, the life sciences andr
technology industries are characterized by exten#figation regarding patents and other intellatfuroperty rights. Many life
sciences and other technology companies have eetpiajellectual property litigation as a way torgaicompetitive advantage. If
we become involved in litigation, interference medings, oppositions, reexamination, protest ogrgbotentially adverse intellect
property proceedings as a result of alleged inéingnt by us of the rights of others or as a refuitiority of invention disputes wi
third parties, we might have to spend significanbants of money, time and effort defending our pasiand we may not be
successful. In addition, any claims relating toitiféngement of third-party proprietary rights mroprietary determinations, even if
not meritorious, could result in costly litigatidengthy governmental proceedings, divert managé&matiention and resources, or
require us to enter into royalty or license agressiéhat are not advantageous to us. If we do aes the financial resources to
support such litigation or appeals, we may forbeitose certain commercial rights. Even if we hthefinancial resources to
continue such litigation or appeals, we may losghe event that we lose, we may be forced to gay substantial damages; we n
have to obtain costly license rights, which mayb@available to us on acceptable terms, if abalye may be prohibited from
selling products that are found to infringe theepatights of others.

Should any person have filed patent applicationsbtéained patents that claim inventions also clditme us, we may have to
participate in an interference proceeding declaénethe relevant patent regulatory agency to detmpriority of invention and, thu
the right to a patent for these inventions in theté States. Such a proceeding could result istankial cost to us even if the
outcome is favorable. Even if successful on pryogitounds, an interference action may result is lfsclaims based on patentability
grounds raised in the interference action. Litigatinterference proceedings or other proceedingidaivert management’s time
and efforts. Even unsuccessful claims could resudignificant legal fees and other expenses, digvarof management’s time and
disruption in our business. Uncertainties resulfnogn initiation and continuation of any patent geeding or related litigation could
harm our ability to compete and could have a sigaift adverse effect on our business, financiatitmm and results of operations.

An adverse ruling arising out of any intellectuedperty dispute, including an adverse decisiorodhe priority of our inventions,
could undercut or invalidate our intellectual prapeosition. An adverse ruling could also subjesto significant liability for
damages, including possible treble damages, prexefiom using technologies or developing produmtsequire us to negotiate
licenses to disputed rights from third partieshaligh patent and intellectual property disputehétechnology area are often set
through licensing or similar arrangements, costeeiated with these arrangements may be substantiatould include license fees
and ongoing royalties. Furthermore, necessarydiegmay not be available to us on satisfactoryggeifrat all. Failure to obtain a
license in such a case could have a significan¢sdveffect on our business, financial conditioth masults of operations.

Many potential competitors, including those who tegreater resources and experience than we do, deyelop products ¢
technologies that make ours obsolete or noncompeit

We face significant competition with respect to puvduct candidates. With regard to our effortdeégelop MultiStem as a novel
stem cell therapy, currently, there are a numbeoaipanies that are actively developing stem celfipcts, which encompass a
range of different cell types, including embryosiem cells, adult-derived stem cells, and procebsed marrow derived cells. Our
future success will depend on our ability to mamt&competitive position with respect to technaafjadvances. Technological
developments by others may result in our MultiSpoduct platform and technologies, as well as darmaceutical formulations,
becoming obsolete.
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We are subject to significant competition from phaceutical, biotechnology and diagnostic compaieagdemic and research
institutions, and government or other publicly faddagencies that are pursuing the developmentaddpeutic products and
technologies that are substantially similar to puposed therapeutic products and technologigbabiotherwise address the
indications we are pursuing. Our most significasrthpetitors include major pharmaceutical companies sis Pfizer, Bristol-Myers
Squibb, Merck, Roche, Johnson & Johnson, Sanofiriseand GlaxoSmithKline as well as smaller biotealbgy or
biopharmaceutical companies such as Arena PharniealsuOrexigen, Celgene, Vivus, Osiris, Geronst#tam, Stem Cells Inc., al
Cytori Therapeutics. Most of our current and pasmompetitors have substantially greater reseanthdevelopment capabilities
and financial, scientific, regulatory, manufactgrimarketing, sales, human resources, and experttao we do. Many of our
competitors have several therapeutic productshinat already been developed, approved and sucligssionmercialized, or are in
the process of obtaining regulatory approval feirttherapeutic products in the United States atetmationally.

Many of these companies have substantially greafgital resources, research and development resant experience,
manufacturing capabilities, regulatory expertisdes and marketing resources, established relaijpmsvith consumer products
companies and production facilities.

Universities and public and private research in8tihs are also potential competitors. While thegmgnizations primarily have
educational objectives, they may develop propnetachnologies related to stem cells or securenpai®tection that we may need
for the development of our technologies and praaluate may attempt to license these proprietaryngolgies, but these licenses
may not be available to us on acceptable ternad,afl.

Our competitors, either alone or with their colledtove partners, may succeed in developing teclyiedoor products that are more
effective, safer, more affordable or more easiljnowrcialized than ours, and our competitors magiobntellectual property
protection or commercialize products sooner thamweDevelopments by others may render our proctuedidates or our
technologies obsolete.

Our current product discovery and development bollators are not prohibited from entering into aesh and development
collaboration agreements with third parties in prgduct field. Our failure to compete effectivelpwd have a significant adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

We will use hazardous and biological materials inrdbusiness. Any claims relating to improper hanadgj, storage or disposal of
these materials could be time consuming and costly.

Our products and processes will involve the cotgdostorage, use and disposal of certain hazaraiodidiological materials and
waste products. We and our suppliers and othealwothtors are subject to federal, state and lecallations governing the use,
manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of maé&geand waste products. Even if we and theselssp@nd collaborators comply
with the standards prescribed by law and regulatlearisk of accidental contamination or injurgrfr hazardous materials cannot be
completely eliminated. In the event of an accidesmt,could be held liable for any damages that teantl any liability could exceed
the limits or fall outside the coverage of any isice we may obtain and exceed our financial reesuiVe may not be able to
maintain insurance on acceptable terms, or ai\&Imay incur significant costs to comply with cuntrer future environmental laws
and regulations.

If we acquire products, technologies or other bussses, we will incur a variety of costs, may hawegration difficulties and may
experience numerous other risks that could adveyseffect our business.

To remain competitive, we may decide to acquirdatathl businesses, products and technologies. ¥Wewtly have no
commitments or agreements with respect to, andaractively seeking, any material acquisitions. Ngge limited experience in
identifying acquisition targets, successfully acong them and integrating them into our currentasfructure. We may not be able
successfully integrate any businesses, productsnédogies or personnel that we might acquire énfthiure without a significant
expenditure of operating, financial and managemesdurces, if at all. In addition, future acqudsis could require significant capi
infusions and could involve many risks, includibgt not limited to the following:

. we may have to issue convertible debt or equtusties to complete an acquisition, which wouldte our stockholders
and could adversely affect the market price ofammmon stock

. an acquisition may negatively impact our resoftsperations because it may require us to inagelane-time charges to
earnings, amortize or write down amounts relategbimdwill and other intangible assets, or incuassume substantial
debt or liabilities, or it may cause adverse tamssmuences, substantial depreciation or deferneghensation charge
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we may encounter difficulties in assimilating antkgrating the business, technologies, prodpetssonnel or operations
of companies that we acquil

certain acquisitions may disrupt our relationshithvexisting collaborators who are competitivetie icquired busines

acquisitions may require significant capital sifins and the acquired businesses, products ardkxfies may not
generate sufficient revenue to offset acquisitiosts;

an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesgriiresources, increase our expenses and distrachanagemen
acquisitions may involve the entry into a geogragibusiness market in which we have little oipnior experience; an

key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonwbrk for us.

Any of the foregoing risks could have a significadterse effect on our business, financial comtligind results of operations.

To the extent we enter markets outside of the Udif&tates, our business will be subject to politimtonomic, legal and social
risks in those markets, which could adversely affear business.

There are significant regulatory and legal barrienmarkets outside the United States that we mwustcome to the extent we ente
attempt to enter markets in countries other tharthited States. We will be subject to the burdecomplying with a wide variety
of national and local laws, including multiple goaossibly overlapping and conflicting laws. We afsay experience difficulties
adapting to new cultures, business customs antidggeems. Any sales and operations outside theetisitates would be subject to
political, economic and social uncertainties inahgd among others:

changes and limits in import and export contr

increases in custom duties and tari

changes in currency exchange ra

economic and political instability

changes in government regulations and le

absence in some jurisdictions of effective lawpratect our intellectual property rights; a

currency transfer and other restrictions and legguns that may limit our ability to sell certgimoducts or repatriate profits
to the United State:

Any changes related to these and other factorslamersely affect our business to the extent vier enarkets outside the United

States.
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Foreign governments often impose strict price carlr on approved products, which may adversely affaa future profitability
in those countries, and the re-importation of dru¢s the United States from foreign countries thapose price controls may
adversely affect our future profitability.

Frequently foreign governments impose strict pcaetrols on newly approved therapeutic productaidfobtain regulatory approval
to sell products in foreign countries, we may behle to obtain a price that provides an adequasmfial return on our investment.
Furthermore, legislation in the United States mesnpt re-importation of drugs from foreign counsri@to the United States,
including re-importation from foreign countries whehe drugs are sold at lower prices than in thitdd States due to foreign
government-mandated price controls. Such a praagmecially if it is conducted on a widespreadsyasay significantly reduce our
potential United States revenues from any drugsvileeare able to develop.

If we elect not to sell our products in foreign cotries that impose government mandated price cotdroecause we decide it
uneconomical to do so, a foreign government or pateffice may attempt to terminate our intellectuptoperty rights in that
country, enabling competitors to make and sell quoducts.

In some cases we may choose not to sell a prodactdreign country because it is uneconomicaltsa under a system of
government-imposed price controls, or becauseuldcseverely limit our profitability in the UniteStates or other markets. In such
cases, a foreign government or patent office mayiteate any intellectual property rights we mayadttwith respect to that product.
Such a termination could enable competitors to peedand sell our product in that market. Furtheemsuch products may be
exported into the United States through legislati@t authorizes the importation of drugs from mé&gshe United States. In such an
event, we may have to reduce our prices, or welmaynable to compete with low-cost providers ofdnugs, and we could be
financially harmed as a result.

We may encounter difficulties managing our growtWwhich could adversely affect our business.

At various times we have experienced periods afirgpowth in our employee numbers as a resultdrfaanatic increase in activity
technology programs, genomics programs, collabaratisearch programs, discovery programs, and sifamgerations. At other
times, we have had to reduce staff in order togooiar expenses in line with our financial resour€sr success will also depend on
the ability of our officers and key employees tatiaue to improve our operational capabilities and management information and
financial control systems, and to expand, train mathage our work force.

We may be sued for product liability, which couldhgersely affect our business.

Because our business strategy involves the developand sale by either us or our collaboratorsoafroercial products, we may be
sued for product liability. We may be held liabi@ny product we develop and commercialize, or pnoguct our collaborators
commercialize that incorporates any of our techgwle@auses injury or is found otherwise unsuitahlgng product testing,
manufacturing, marketing, sale or consumer usedttition, the safety studies we must perform aedégulatory approvals requir
to commercialize our pharmaceutical products, moll protect us from any such liability.

We carry product liability insurance, as well abllity insurance for conducting clinical trialsuently, we carry a $5 million per
event, $5 million annual aggregate coverage foh oot products liability policy and our clinicalals protection. We also intend to
seek product liability insurance for any approveadpicts that we may develop or acquire. Howevethénevent there are product
liability claims against us, our insurance may tufficient to cover the expense of defending agfasnch claims, or may be
insufficient to pay or settle such claims. Furtherej we may be unable to obtain adequate prodatutity insurance coverage for
commercial sales of any of our approved produ€®udh insurance is insufficient to protect us, mgults of operations will suffer.

If any product liability claim is made against osy reputation and future sales will be damagednefwe have adequate insurance
coverage.
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The availability, manner, and amount of reimbursemtefor our product candidates from government andyate payers are
uncertain, and our inability to obtain adequate mabursement for any products could severely limitrqaroduct sales.

We expect that many of the patients who seek tresattvith any of our products that are approvediarketing will be eligible for
Medicare benefits. Other patients may be coveregrivate health plans. If we are unable to obtairetain adequate levels of
reimbursement from Medicare or from private hepldns, our ability to sell our products will be sesly limited. The application of
existing Medicare regulations and interpretive cage and payment determinations to newly approvedytts is uncertain and
those regulations and interpretive determinatiorssabject to change. The Medicare PrescriptiorgDmprovement and
Modernization Act, enacted in December 2003, presifbr a change in reimbursement methodology #thiaes the Medicare
reimbursement rates for many drugs, which may agemaffect reimbursement for any products we neyetbp. Medicare
regulations and interpretive determinations alsg determine who may be reimbursed for certain sessiand may limit the pool of
patients our product candidates are being develapserve.

Federal, state and foreign governments continyedpose legislation designed to contain or red@adth care costs. Legislation and
regulations affecting the pricing of products liker potential products may change further or begtatbbefore any of our potential
products are approved for marketing. Cost conhitibtives by governments or third-party payersldalecrease the price that we
receive for any one or all of our potential produat increase patient coinsurance to a level tlaenour products under
development become unaffordable. In addition, gowemt and private health plans persistently chg#ethe price and cost-
effectiveness of therapeutic products. Accordintitgse third parties may ultimately not consider anall of our products under
development to be cost effective, which could reisubroducts not being covered under their healiims or covered only at a lower
price. Any of these initiatives or developmentsldquevent us from successfully marketing and isglany of our products that are
approved for commercialization.

Public perception of ethical and social issues sounding the use of adu-derived stem cell technology may limit or discoueathe
use of our technologies, which may reduce the demh&or our therapeutic products and technologies aretluce our revenues.

Our success will depend in part upon our abilitdéwelop therapeutic products incorporating oraigced through our adult-derived
stem cell technology. For social, ethical, or otte&rsons, governmental authorities in the UnitedeStand other countries may call
for limits on, or regulation of the use of, aduéirived stem cell technologies. Although we do res the more controversial stem
cells derived from embryos or fetuses, claims #uatlit-derived stem cell technologies are ineffegtivnethical or pose a danger to
the environment may influence public attitudes. $hbject of stem cell technologies in general basived negative publicity and
aroused public debate in the United States and sthee countries. Ethical and other concerns aboutdult-derived stem cell
technology could materially hurt the market accepéaof our therapeutic products and technologésjlting in diminished sales and
use of any products we are able to develop usin§-ddrived stem cells.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal offices are located at 3201 Carndgienue in Cleveland, Ohio. We currently lease apipnately 45,000 square feet
space for our corporate offices and laboratoriéth state-of-the-art laboratory space. The leaseently expires in March 2012, and
we have an option to extend the lease in annueginents through March 2013 at our current rent267$000 per year. Also, we
currently lease office and laboratory space for®eigian subsidiary. The lease currently expire3anuary 2012, and we have an
option to renew annually through December 2014. arivaual rent in Belgium is subject to adjustmerisell on an inflationary
index.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may become subject to varlegal proceedings that are incidental to the @dirtonduct of our business.
Currently, there are no such proceedings.

ITEM 3A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information under this Item is furnished purgua Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of RegulatiorkKS-

There exists no arrangement or understanding bataeg executive officer and any other person punsicawhich such executive
officer was elected. Each executive officer serwatdi his or her successor is elected and qualified

The following sets forth the name, age, currenitfpzsand principal occupation and employment dgiine past five years of our
executive officers.

Gil Van Bokkelen, Ph.D.
Age: 50

Dr. Van Bokkelelhas served as our Chief Executive Officer and @tnair since August 2000. Dr. Van Bokkelen co-founded
Athersys in October 1995 and served as Chief Exac@fficer and Director since Athersys’ foundirRyior to May 2006, he also
served as Athersys’ President. Dr. Van Bokkelghéscurrent Chairman of the Alliance for RegengmMedicine, a Washington
D.C. based consortium of companies, patient adyogeaups, disease foundations, and clinical aneameh institutions that are
committed to the advancement of the field of regatnee medicine. He is also the Chairman of thert@d Governors for the
National Center for Regenerative Medicine, andseged on a number of other boards, including tleéeBhnology Industr
Organizations ECS board of directors (from 2001 to 2004, anchfR008 to present) and the Kent State UniversitgrB of Trustee
from 2001 to 2004. He received his Ph.D. in Gesdtiom Stanford University, his B.A. in Economieerh the University of
California at Berkeley, and his B.A. in Moleculaiokgy from the University of California at Berkele

William (BJ) Lehmann, Jr., J.D.
Age: 45

Mr. Lehmanrhas served as our President and Chief Operatiriggdiince June 2006. Mr. Lehmann joined Atherays i
September 2001 and was Athersys’ Executive Vicsi@eat of Corporate Development and Finance fromgusti2002 until

June 2006, when he became Athersys’ President hiedl Operating Officer. From 1994 to 2001, Mr. Ledmm was with McKinsey
& Company, Inc., an international management cdimgufirm, where he worked extensively with newrtrology and service-based
businesses in the firm’s Business Building practior to joining McKinsey, he worked at Wilsomr&ini, Goodrich & Rosati, a
Silicon Valley law firm, and worked with First Cliigo Corporation, a financial institution. Mr. Lehmmareceived his J.D. from
Stanford University, his M.B.A. from the University Chicago, and his B.A. from the University of tkmDame.
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John J. Harrington, Ph.D.
Age: 43

Dr. Harrington has served as our Chief Scientific Officer, ExamiWice President and Director since Athersys’ fiting.

Dr. Harrington co-founded Athersys in October 199b.Harrington led the development of the RAGEhtemogy as well as its
application for gene discovery, drug discovery aoachmercial protein production applications. He Isted inventor on over 20
issued or pending United States patents, has aahmmerous scientific publications, and has reckivumerous awards for his
work, including being named one of the top inteioral young scientists by MIT Technology Review2®02. Dr. Harrington has
overseen the therapeutic product development pmogyed Athersys since their inception, and duriregdaireer he has also held
positions at Amgen and Scripps Clinic. He receilisdB.A. in Biochemistry and Cell Biology from tluniversity of California at
San Diego and his Ph.D. in Cancer Biology from fthUniversity.

Robert J. Deans, Ph.D.
Age: 59

Dr. Deanshas served as our Senior Vice President, Regenetdtdicine since June 2006. Dr. Deans has ledréyseregenerative
medicine research and development activities dieteuary 2003 and has served as Vice Presiderggérierative Medicine since
October 2003, until he was named Senior Vice Peasidf Regenerative Medicine in June 2006. Dr. Basaumighly regarded as an
expert in stem cell therapeutics, with over fiftgears of experience in this field. From 2001 t602Dr. Deans worked for early-
stage biotechnology companies. Dr. Deans was fdyrttez Vice President of Research at Osiris Thartigg, Inc., a biotechnology
company, from 1998 to 2001 and Director of ResearchDevelopment with the Immunotherapy DivisiorBakter International,
Inc., a global healthcare company, from 1992 to81%%. Deans was also previously on faculty at U&tlical School in Los
Angeles, between 1981 and 1998, in the departnoémdiicrobiology and Neurology at the Norris Compeekive Cancer Center.
Dr. Deans was an undergraduate at MIT, receive@hiB. at the University of Michigan, and did haspdoctoral work at UCLA in
Los Angeles.

Laura K. Campbell, CPA
Age: 47

Ms. Campbelhas served as our Vice President of Finance sinee 2006. Ms. Campbell joined Athersys in Janu@88las
Controller and has served as Vice President ofrfé@aince June 2006. Prior to joining Athersys,wshe at Ernst & Young LLP, a
public accounting firm, for 11 years, in the aysfiactice. During her tenure with Ernst & Young LINs. Campbell specialized in
entrepreneurial services and the biotechnologystrgisector and participated in several initial [pubfferings. Ms. Campbell
received her B.S., with distinction, in Businesswistration from The Ohio State University.

ITEM 4. RESERVED
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capitafhdaunder the symbol “ATHX.” Set forth below afeethigh and low sale
prices for our common stock on the NASDAQ Capitarkkt for the periods indicated.

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2010:

First Quartel $ 4.4C $ 2.32
Second Quarte $ 3.6: $ 2.5¢€
Third Quartel $ 3.5¢ $ 2.3¢2
Fourth Quarte $ 3.1¢ $ 2.4z
Year ended December 31, 200!

First Quartel $ 1.2¢ $ 0.4t
Second Quarte $ 1.04 $ 0.7t
Third Quartel $ 1.3t $ 0.7¢
Fourth Quarte $ 6.4(C $ 0.97

Holders

As of February 28, 2011, the number of holderseobrd was approximately 694 of which one is Cedea%, a nominee for The
Depository Trust Company, or DTC. Shares of comstook that are held by financial institutions asniteees for beneficial owners
are deposited into participant accounts at DTC,aradcconsidered to be held of record by Cede & &ogne stockholder.

Dividend Policy

We would have to rely upon dividends and other payt® from our wholly-owned subsidiary, ABT HoldiGgmpany, to generate
the funds necessary to make dividend paymentayif@ our common stock. ABT Holding Company, hoereys legally distinct
from us and has no obligation to pay amounts td bs.ability of ABT Holding Company to make dividkéand other payments to us
is subject to, among other things, the availabdityunds and applicable state laws. However, tlaegeno restrictions such as
government regulations or material contractualrayeanents that restrict the ability of ABT Holdingi@pany to make dividend and
other payments to us. We did not pay cash dividemdsur common stock during the past two yearsdé/aot anticipate that we

will pay any dividends on our common stock in tbeebeeable future. Rather, we anticipate that Mlaetain earnings, if any, for
use in the development of our business.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Consolidated Statement o

Operations Data:
Revenues

Contract revenu $ 6,68t $ 1,07¢ $ 1,88( $ 1,43 $ 1,90¢

Grant revenu 2,254 1,08( 1,22¢ 1,82 1,81
Total revenue 8,93¢ 2,15¢ 3,10¢ 3,26( 3,72¢
Costs and expense

Research and developmt 14,77¢ 11,92( 16,50( 15,811 9,741

General and administratiy 5,381 5,621 5,47¢ 7,97¢ 3,34

Depreciatior 284 233 21¢ 283 52¢

Loss from operation (11,51) (15,619 (19,099 (20,81YH (9,897

Other (expense) incom

Other (expense) income, r (69 (12€) 48 2,017 20¢

Interest incom: 20z 37¢ 1,14¢ 1,591 11¢

Interest expens — — (99 (1,269 (1,047

Accretion of premium on convertib

debt — — — (45€) (260)

Loss before cumulative effect of char

in accounting principl (11,377 (15,36¢) (17,999 (18,92¢) (10,877
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principlt — — — — 30€
Net loss $ (1137) $ (15366 $ (1799) $ (18,920 $  (10,56H
Preferred stock dividenc — — — (659) (1,409¢)
Deemed dividend resulting from

induced conversion of convertible

preferred stocl — — — (4,800 —
Net loss attributable to common

stockholders $ (Q137) $ (15366 $ (17,99) $ (2438) $ (11,979
Basic and diluted net loss pe

common share attributable to

common stockholders:
Loss before cumulative effect of char

in accounting principls $ (0.60) % (0.8) % 095 % (2.2¢) % (41.89)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principlt — — — — 1.0t
Net loss per share $ (0.60) $ (0.81) $ (0.95) $ (2.26) $ (40.8¢)
Weighted average shares outstanding,

basic and dilute 18,929,74 18,928,37 18,927,98 10,811,11 293,14
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December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,10¢ $ 11,167 $ 12,55: $ 13,24¢ $ 1,52¢
Available-for-sale securities, shr-tem 13,07¢ 10,13¢ 15,46( 22,47 —
Working capital (deficit 9,10¢ 16,29: 26,78¢ 32,84¢ (3,20€)
Available-for-sale securities, loi-tem — 5,08( 3,601 13,85( —
Total asset 19,10¢ 28,33: 33,877 52,22t 4,26¢
Long-term obligations, less current

portion — — — — 9,31(
Accrued dividend: — — — — 8,88:
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 9,00t 18,957 31,56: 47,63 (20,007
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysconjunction with “ltem 8. Financial Statemgmind Supplementary Data”
included below in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Overview and Recent Developments

We are a biopharmaceutical company engaged iniseevkry and development of therapeutic productiickates designed to extend
and enhance the quality of human life. Throughathglication of our proprietary technologies, we dasgtablished a pipeline of
therapeutic product development programs in matiibease areas. Our current product developmetfivlpmincludes MultiStem,
patented and proprietary stem cell product thameedeveloping as a treatment for multiple disé@adieations, and is currently
being evaluated in clinical trials. In addition, we developing novel pharmaceuticals to treatcatibns such as obesity and related
metabolic conditions such as diabetes.

Current Programs

By applying our proprietary cell therapy platforMultiStem, we have established therapeutic prodegelopment programs in the
areas of treating cardiovascular disease, neudbdisease, and immune system disorders. To watbave advanced four
programs to clinical development stage, including:

. An ongoing Phase Il clinical study involving achisiration of MultiStem to patients suffering frartcerative colitis, the
most common form of IBD. This study was authoribgdhe FDA in November 2010, and is being conduetitd our
partner Pfizer. This trial began enrolling patieintthe study in February 201

. A Phase | clinical study involving administratiohMultiStem to patients that have suffered an AMbre commonly
referred to as a heart attack. We successfully tetegb patient enrollment for this study in Febru2@1 0 and announced
initial results in July 2010, demonstrating a ceteit safety profile and encouraging signs of iapreent in heart
function among patients that had received treatmetintend to initiate a Phase Il study with oartper, Angiotech, to
evaluate the safety and efficacy of MultiStem adstiation to AMI patients in 201:

. An ongoing Phase | clinical study involving admtration of MultiStem to patients suffering froeukemia or certain
other bloodborne cancers, in which patients undergo radiatienapy and then receive a HSC transplant. Sudébrpsiare
at risk for serious complications, including GVHBhich is an imbalance of immune system functiorseaiuby
transplanted immune cells that attack various ¢éis@and organs in the patient. In January 2011 ,nweunced that we had
successfully completed enrollment for the singleeaging dose portion of this clinical trial and egpto announce
preliminary results in the second quarter of 20t Jaddition, the multiple ascending dose portiomhi§ study is ongoin¢

. An FDA authorized Phase | clinical study to ewgduadministration of MultiStem to patients thatdauffered an
ischemic stroke. We are currently working with eolinical advisors to modify the proposed study desincluding
increasing the size of the study so that we caluate@safety and efficac

In addition to our current and anticipated clinidaelopment activities, we are also engaged ialipieal development and
evaluation of MultiStem in other disease indicasiamthe cardiovascular, neurological and immumserdier areas. We conduct such
work both through our own internal research effartd through a broad network of collaborations weehestablished with
investigators at leading research institutions s£tbe U.S. and in Europe.

We are also engaged in the development of novell smadecule therapies to treat obesity and relatedabolic conditions, including
diabetes, as well as other conditions. Currenthaveefocused on the development of potent, higblgcive compounds that act
through stimulation of a specific receptor in thmaib that controls appetite — the 5HT2c serotorteptor. We are conducting
preclinical evaluation of novel compounds that eegéhdeveloped that exhibit outstanding selectivtyd intend to select a clinical
development candidate for this program in 2011.
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In September 2010, we entered into an agreementRAiit to develop and commercialize MAPC technolbgged biologic implants
for certain orthopedic applications in the boneftggabstitutes market. The agreement provides #%.8 million license fee paid in
installments, of which $3.0 million is guaranteed &2.0 million is contingent, potential milestqueeyments and tiered royalties on
worldwide commercial sales of implants using oght®logies. We are currently working with RTI tovdtop products for these
applications.

Financial

In February 2011, we completed a registered dofeting generating net proceeds of $11.8 millibrotgh the issuance of
4,366,667 shares of common stock and five-yearamgsrto purchase 1,310,000 shares of common stiticlkaw exercise price of
$3.55 per share. The securities were sold in meftipf a fixed combination of one share of commioclsand a warrant to purchase
0.3 of a share of common stock at an offering poic®3.00 per fixed combination.

We have incurred losses since inception of oparatio December 1995 and had an accumulated defiR205 million at
December 31, 2010. Our losses have resulted paithgiftom costs incurred in research and develognaimical and preclinical
product development, acquisition and licensings;aatd general and administrative costs assoomtadur operations. We have
used the financing proceeds from private and puwegligity and debt offerings and other sources oitalap develop our technologie
to discover and develop therapeutic product canedand to acquire certain technologies and asaethave also built drug
development capabilities that have enabled usvarazk product candidates into clinical trials. Vé@dnestablished strategic
collaborations that have provided revenues andbsktpes to help further advance our product caatiéd, and we have also built a
substantial portfolio of intellectual property.

Results of Operations

Since our inception, our revenues have consistetmiact revenues and milestone payments froncaliaborators, and grant
proceeds primarily from federal and state grants.N&ve derived no revenue from therapeutic prododste. Research and
development expenses consist primarily of extethiaical and preclinical study fees, manufacturaugts, salaries and related
personnel costs, legal expenses resulting fronfiéataal property prosecution processes, faciligts, and laboratory supply and
reagent costs. We expense research and developosstas they are incurred. We expect to continumeatke significant
investments in research and development to entmmdechnologies, advance clinical trials of ouwdurct candidates, expand our
regulatory affairs and product development captésli conduct preclinical studies of our produa amnufacture our product
candidates. General and administrative expensesstgmimarily of salaries and related personnstggrofessional fees and other
corporate expenses. We expect to continue to swiostantial losses through at least the next skeyeass.

The following table sets forth our revenues andeesgs for the periods indicated. The followingdaldre stated in thousands.

Revenues
Year ended December 31
2010 2009 2008
Contract revenu $ 6,68¢ $ 1,07¢ $ 1,88(
Grant revenu 2,254 1,08( 1,22¢

$ 8,93¢ $ 2,15¢ $ 3,10¢
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Research and development expenses

Year ended December 31

Type of expens 2010 2009 2008

Personnel cosi $ 4,12¢ $ 3,601 $ 2,92¢
Research supplie 1,21¢ 907 84¢
Facilities 87C 82¢€ 817
Clinical and preclinical development co 4,39¢ 1,90¢ 7,87¢
Sponsored resear: 1,14¢ 87¢ 39:¢
Patent legal fee 1,47 1,351 1,481
Other 1,002 1,151 1,431
Stocl-based compensatic 54E 1,29¢ 727

$ 14,77¢ $ 11,92( $ 16,50(

General and administrative expenses

Year ended December 31,

Type of expens 2010 2009 2008

Personnel cosi $ 1,897 $ 1,97¢ $ 1,72¢
Facilities 27¢ 29¢ 34z
Legal and professional fe 1,007 91€ 1,03
Other 1,28: 91¢ 1,25(
Stocl-based compensatic 921 1,51 1,12¢

$ 5,381 $ 5,621 $ 547¢

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2009

RevenuesRevenues increased to $8.9 million for the yeaedridecember 31, 2010 from $2.2 million for 2009ntact revenue
increased $5.6 million for the year ended Decer8tie2010 compared to the year ended December 89, @marily as a result of
our collaboration with Pfizer that we entered imdecember 2009 and our collaboration with RTk thia entered into in
September 2010. Contract revenues for the yeardeddeember 31, 2010 primarily consist of the redmmof revenue from these
multi-element arrangements. We expect our contea@nues related to the Pfizer collaboration in128dd 2012 to reflect the
amortization of the $6.0 million non-refundable fupnt license fee, research and development fundind the performance of
manufacturing services over the estimated perfoom@eriod, and expect our contract revenues retatdte RTI collaboration to
reflect the amortization of the $3.0 million licenfee over the next several quarters aligned witrestimated performance period.
Grant revenue increased $1.2 million for the yewteel December 31, 2010 compared to the year endeeniber 31, 2009 primari
due a grant received in October 2010 from the hatelRevenue Service under section 48D of the IatdRevenue Code aggregating
$733,000 for qualifying therapeutic discovery invesnts, as well as additional new grants that béeganin 2009 and in 2010. Our
grant revenues could fluctuate from period to gkehased on the timing of grant-related activitied the award of new grants.
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Research and Development Exper. Research and development expenses increased.®éilion for the year ended

December 31, 2010 from $11.9 million in 2009. Theréase of approximately $2.9 million related priitgao an increase in clinical
and preclinical development costs of $2.5 millian,increase in personnel costs of $517,000, apaserin research supply costs of
$311,000 and an increase in sponsored researchafdg271,000 for the year ended December 31, 26trpared to 2009. These
increases were partially offset by a decreaseoicksbased compensation expense of $751,000, whkicindd as a result of a
significant number of options becoming fully vestail-2010. The increase in clinical and preclinidaVelopment costs for the year
ended December 31, 2010 related primarily to irsedananufacturing and process development cosis;aats associated with our
MultiStem clinical trials. Our clinical costs fdne year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 aretesfleet of Angiotech’s cost-
sharing amount of $628,000 and $847,000, respégtiVhe increase in personnel costs and reseamtiisa related to the addition
of personnel in support of our preclinical and iclh programs and regulatory affairs. Sponsoredaeh costs increased primarily
due to grant-funded programs that require collaimravith certain academic research institutiong &pect our research and
development expenses to increase in 2011, primawiéyto increased MultiStem clinical trial and @al manufacturing expenses.
Other than external expenses for our clinical amdlmical programs, we do not track our reseasqieases by project; rather, we
track such expenses by the type of cost incurred.

General and Administrative Expens&gneral and administrative expenses decreased4afion in 2010 from $5.6 million in
2009. The $234,000 decrease was due primarilydieceease in stockased compensation expense of $591,000, partidlgtdy ar
increase in other expenses of $364,000 in 2010 aoedto 2009. The decrease in stock-based comp@msapense related to a
significant number of options becoming fully vesteitl-2010. The increase in other expenses for 2HDprimarily a result of
increased investor and public relations costs emt costs. We expect our general and adminigg@&kpenses to continue at sim
levels in 2011.

Depreciation.Depreciation expense increased to $284,000 in 8019 $233,000 in 2009. The increase in depreciagipense was
due to depreciation on capital purchases madeif.20

Other Expensdncluded in other expense are impairment loss&gl6f000 and $115,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectivepted to a
investment in a privately-held company.

Interest Incomelnterest income decreased to $203,000 in 2010 $8%5,000 in 2009. The change in interest incomeduasto the
decline in cash and investment balances duringénied. We expect our 2011 interest income to omtiat similar levels in 2011,
taking into consideration the expected increagmuinclinical development costs in 2011 and the stwent of the proceeds from the
February 2011 equity offering.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2008

RevenuesRevenues decreased to $2.2 million for the yeae@mkbcember 31, 2009 from $3.1 million for 2008n{Cact revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2009 included $0D19f revenues from Pfizer in connection with coltaboration agreement
entered into in December 2009. Also included intiamt revenues are license fees and milestone pagrfrem our collaboration
with Bristol-Myers Squibb, which decreased in 2@3% result of a decline in activity and as a tesfud clinical development
milestone achieved in September 2008. We interndmdinue to prepare and deliver validated drugesrgs needed by Bristol-
Myers Squibb for use in its drug discovery effoasd will remain entitled to receive license faafiestone payments and royalties
on compounds developed by Bristol-Myers Squibbaisiar technology. Grant revenue decreased $14500@vrily due to the
completion of a state grant in 2008 and due tdithing of expenditures that are reimbursed witmgirroceeds.

Research and Development ExpenResearch and development expenses decreased $ondillibn in 2009 from $16.5 million in
2008. The decrease of $4.6 million related prirgadla decrease in clinical and preclinical develept costs of $6.0 million, a
decrease in other research and development expei$280,000 and a decrease in patent legal feersepof $130,000 in 2009
compared to 2008. These decreases were partiddigtdfy an increase in personnel costs of $683 @0 crease in stock-based
compensation expense of $569,000, an increaseitssped research of $485,000, and an increasseéaneh supplies and facilities
expenses of $67,000 in 2009 compared to 2008.€$6h0 million decrease in clinical and preclinidalelopment costs,

$5.3 million related to costs associated with thepletion of an ATHX-105 Phase | clinical trialtimne first half of 2008 and
preparations for a Phase Il clinical trial of ATHXO5 in 2008, which included several preclinicabdgts and manufacturing costs.
ATHX-105 development was suspended early in 20@bBthere will be no future costs incurred for thieguct candidate. The
remaining $700,000 decrease in clinical and praairdevelopment costs related primarily to a $288,credit from a renegotiated
contract with a contract research organizatioruimeJ2009, reduced manufacturing costs associatadowr MultiStem clinical trials
and reduced external costs for regulatory congutimd preclinical studies. Our clinical costs i92@nd 2008 are reflected net of
Angiotech’s cost-sharing reimbursements relatemlLioMultiStem acute myocardial infarction collabtiwa in the amount of
$847,000 and $943,000, respectively. Patent legaékpense for 2009 decreased compared to 2008omiitued to be significant
a result of further development and maintaining mantfolio of patent applications. The increas@énsonnel costs related to the
addition of personnel in support of our clinicabgrams and regulatory affairs, a 2009 company-w&hormance bonus, salary
increases and increased benefit costs. The incieaseck-based compensation expense relatedharage in our estimated
forfeiture rate, increased expense related to nptiwld by certain consultants that are computedyusriable accounting, and the
issuance of stock option awards in 2009. Spons@sehrch costs increased primarily due to grardédrprograms that require
collaboration with certain academic research iastins. Other than external expenses for our @dirand preclinical programs, we
not track our research expenses by project; ratveetrack such expenses by the type of cost indu
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General and Administrative Expens€g&neral and administrative expenses increased.orfilion in 2009 from $5.5 million in
2008. The $100,000 increase was due primarily tmenease in stock-based compensation expense83{#30 and an increase in
personnel costs of $249,000, partially offset liearease in other expenses of $331,000, a dedrelegml and professional fees of
$116,000 and a decrease in facilities expense 3$0 in 2009 compared to 2008. The increase tkdtased compensation
expense related to a change in our estimated fioreiate and the issuance of stock option awar@909. The increase in personnel
costs related to a 2009 companmige performance bonus, salary increases and isedeaenefit costs. The decrease in other exp:
for 2009 was primarily a result of reduced tempptalp and outsourced accounting services in 2008.decrease in legal and
professional fees in 2009 was primarily a resulteafuced legal fees incurred in connection with $i@s and transactional work.

Depreciation.Depreciation expense increased to $233,000 in 2009 $218,000. The increase in depreciation expa@sedue to
depreciation on capital purchases made in 2009.

Other Expensdncluded in other expense for 2009 is an impairnhesg of $115,000 related to an investment in eapely-held
company.

Interest Incomelnterest income decreased to $375,000 in 2009 $brh million in 2008. The change in interest incomas due to
the decline in cash and investment balances dtimgeriod. While we received $6.0 million in féesm Pfizer in 2009, this
payment had limited impact on interest income gigmeceipt in late December 2009.

Interest Expensdnterest expense decreased to $0 in 2009 from 804102008 due to the repayment of our senior inalune 200¢
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity include our cash balaraed available-for-sale securities. At December2B1,0, we had $2.1 million in
cash and cash equivalents and $13.1 million inlavigi-for-sale securities. We have primarily finedour operations through
private equity and debt financings. We conducbatur operations through our subsidiary, ABT HolfiCompany. Consequently,
our ability to fund our operations depends on ABdldihg Company'’s financial condition and its alyilib make dividend payments
or other cash distributions to us. There are nwicéisns such as government regulations or mdtedatractual arrangements that
restrict the ability of ABT Holding Company to ma#lividend and other payments to us.

In February 2011, we completed a registered dofeting generating net proceeds of $11.8 millibrotigh the issuance of
4,366,667 shares of common stock and five-yearamésrto purchase 1,310,000 shares of common stitlclaw exercise price of
$3.55 per share. The securities were sold in meftipf a fixed combination of one share of commioclsand a warrant to purchase
0.3 of a share of common stock at an offering poic®3.00 per fixed combination.

42




Table of Contents

Our former lenders retain a right to receive a stdae payment of $2.25 million upon the occurresfoeertain events as follows:

(1) the entire amount upon (a) the merger witmtw another entity where our stockholders do ntd hbleast a majority of the
voting power of the surviving entity, (b) the safeall or substantially all of our assets, or (o) tiquidation or dissolution; or (2) a
portion of the amount from proceeds of equity ficiags not tied to specific research and developraetiities that are part of a
research or development collaboration, in whiclectise lenders will receive an amount equal to Ddfroceeds above $5.0 million
in cumulative gross proceeds until the milestonewamis paid in full. The milestone payment is dalgadn cash, except that if the
milestone event is (2) above, we may elect to i of the milestone in shares of common stockeaptr-share offering price. No
amounts have been recorded for the milestone irmber 31, 2010, 2009 or 2008. In connection withdffering in February 2011,
the lenders were entitled to a milestone paymedeuthis obligation in the amount of $810,000, dicth $202,500 was paid in cash
in February 2011 and $607,500 was paid througlistheance of our common stock to the former lendef2.96 per share. The
senior lenders also received warrants to purch48#26 shares of common stock with an exercise @fi&5.00 upon the closing of
our equity offering in June 2007. The exerciseunfrswarrants could provide us with cash proceedswBirrants were exercised at
December 31, 2010.

In December 2009, we entered into a collaboratgre@ment with Pfizer to develop and commercializéti@tem for the treatment
of IBD for the worldwide market. Under the termstioé agreement, we received a non-refundable upg-&@sh payment of

$6 million from Pfizer and will also receive reselafunding and support. In addition, we are alsgilge to receive milestone
payments of up to $105 million upon the successthievement of certain development, regulatory@mmercial milestones,
though there can be no assurance that we will eelday milestones. Pfizer pays us for manufactypirogluct for clinical
development and commercialization purposes. Pliasrresponsibility for development, regulatory aathmercialization and will
pay us tiered royalties on worldwide commerciaksalf MultiStem IBD products. Alternatively, in lief royalties and certain
commercialization milestones, we may elect to ceetlgp with Pfizer and the parties will share depeh@nt and commercialization
expenses and profits/losses on an agreed basisegiat Phase 11l clinical development.

In connection with our MultiStem collaboration wiéfmgiotech, upon the successful achievement ofiipéclinical development
and commercialization milestones, we may also vecep to $63.75 million of aggregate cash paymants$3.75 million from an
additional equity investment, though there can ®assurance that we will achieve any milestonesletthe terms of the
collaboration, the parties are jointly funding atil development activity, whereby preclinical coate borne solely by us, costs for
Phase | and Phase Il clinical trials are borne B9%s and 50% by Angiotech, costs for the firstdehidl clinical trial will be borne
33% by us and 67% by Angiotech, and costs for alwgaquent Phase lll clinical trial will be borne2by us and 75% by
Angiotech. We have lead responsibility for preaaliand early clinical development and manufactuahthe MultiStem product,
and Angiotech has lead responsibility for latenickl trials and commercialization. Upon produatneoercialization, we will receive
nearly half of the net profits from the sale of gointly developed, approved products. In Janu&i/12 Angiotech announced its
plans to pursue a recapitalization transactionutpnaits voluntary filing under the Companies’ Cteds Arrangement Act in Canada.
In the event that Angiotech elects not to contiwith our collaboration, Angiotech would return agihts to us and we would have
outstanding claim related to Angiotech’s reimburseatrof our fourth quarter 2010 collaboration c@std the costs through

January 28, 2011, which was Angiotech’s petitiotedl the event that Angiotech fails to fund itdigations under the terms of our
collaboration agreement, our net costs for subsaqi| clinical trials would increase or alternagivunding would be required for
such clinical trials.

In September 2010, we entered into an agreementRiit to develop and commercialize MAPC technolbgged biologic implants
for certain orthopedic applications in the boneftggabstitutes market. Under the terms of the agee#, we are entitled to a

$5.0 million license fee paid in installments, diieh $3.0 million is guaranteed and $2.0 milliorc@tingent, of which $2.0 million
has been received by December 31, 2010. We arelidgiole to receive an additional $35.5 milliondash payments upon the
successful achievement of certain development andrercial milestones, though there can be no asseithat we will achieve ar
milestones. In addition, we will receive tiered ailes on worldwide commercial sales of implant&ig®ur technologies.

Our collaboration agreement with Bristol-Myers Sijyiwhich was initially established in 2001, is niowits final phase since the
requirement for BristoMyers Squibb to nominate new targets ended in 20®are preparing and delivering the final validadieuc
target for use by Bristol-Myers Squibb in its didigcovery efforts under the collaboration and dbengect any significant demand
for new targets. We will remain entitled to recelieense fees for targets that were delivered istBrMyers Squibb over the course
of the collaboration, as well as milestone paymants$ royalties on compounds developed by BristobMySquibb using our
technology, though there can be no assurance thatilvachieve any milestones or royalties.
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In October 2010, we were awarded grants from therhial Revenue Service under section 48D of therhial Revenue Code
aggregating $733,000 for qualifying therapeuticdigery investments that have been incurred.

Our available-for-sale securities typically includeS. government obligations and corporate dehirgtéexs. As of December 31,
2010, approximately 85% of our investments werd i8. government obligations, including governmeatked agencies. We have
been investing conservatively due to economic dadi and have prioritized liquidity and the presgion of principal in lieu of
potentially higher returns. As a result, we havpezienced no losses on the principal of our investimand have held our
investments until maturity. Also, although theséaworable market and economic conditions have teguh a decrease to our
market capitalization, there has been no impairrteettie value of our assets. Our fixed assets sed for internal research and
development and, therefore, are not impacted ksetleaternal factors.

We will require substantial additional funding irder to continue our research and product developpr®grams, including
preclinical testing and clinical trials of our prax candidates. We expect to have available caBmtbour operations through 2011
based on our current business and operational plashessuming no new financings or collaborati@ns. capital requirements
beyond that will depend on a number of factorduiting scientific progress in our research and tgment programs, additional
personnel costs, progress in preclinical testirdy@imical trials, and the costs in filing and peosting patent applications and
enforcing patent claims. Further, these requiremaraty change at any time due to technological ambsaar competition from other
companies. We will continue to explore and consiw opportunities for funding our operations antivities through grants and
business partnerships involving our technologies@duct candidates, as well as selling equityisies and possibly borrowings
from financial institutions. We cannot assure yioattadequate funding will be available to us oamédilable, that it will be available
on acceptable terms. Any shortfall in funding corgdult in our having to curtail research and depeient efforts.

We expect to continue to incur substantial loskesugh at least the next several years and may losses in subsequent periods.
The amount and timing of our future losses areligighcertain. Our ability to achieve and thereaftgstain profitability will be
dependent upon, among other things, successfuligldiging, obtaining regulatory approval or cleaesitor, and commercializing
our technologies and products resulting from thiesbnologies.

Net cash used in operating activities was $10.6anjl$4.6 million and $15.7 million in 2010, 20@8d 2008, respectively, a
represented the use of cash in funding clinical@nedlinical product development activities. We esipthat net cash used in
operating activities will increase in 2011 in coatien with increased research and development esqeeof our MultiStem clinical
trials and our Pfizer and Angiotech collaborations.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $hillion in 2010, $3.2 million in 2009 and $16.8 fiwh in 2008. The fluctuation
from period to period are due to the timing of fnases and maturity dates of investments and trehase of equipment. Purchases
of equipment were $390,000, $381,000 and $532,0@010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We expectahatapital equipment
expenditures will continue at similar levels in 20dompared to 2010.

Financing activities neither used nor provided das?010 and 2009, and used cash of $1.8 millio20®8 related to repayment of
our senior loan in 2008.

Investors in our equity offering in June 2007 rgedifive-year warrants to purchase an aggregade260,000 shares of common
stock with an exercise price of $6.00 per share. [€ad investor in the June offering, Radius VemBartners, invested $10.0 milli
and received additional five-year warrants to pasehan aggregate of 500,000 shares of common stttk cash or cashless
exercise price of $6.00 per share. The placemanitador the June 2007 offering received five-ygarrants to purchase an
aggregate of 1,093,525 shares of common stockanitdish or cashless exercise price of $6.00 pee.shko, bridge investors
received in the June 2007 offering five-year watsda purchase an aggregate of 132,945 shareswhoa stock with an exercise
price of $6.00 per share. The exercise of suchamésrcould provide us with cash proceeds. No wisitaave been exercised at
December 31, 2010.
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Our contractual payment obligations as of Decem3tie2010 are as follows:
Payment due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total LessthanlYea 1 — 3Years 3 — 5Years Morethan5 Years

Operating leases for facilities and

equipment leas $ 487,000 $ 390,000 $ 97,000 $ —  $ —
Research fundin 465,00( 327,00( 138,00( — —
Total $ 952,000 $ 717,000 $ 235,000 $ —  $ —

We lease office and laboratory space under an tipgr@ase and have options to renew the leaserina increments through
March 2013 at the initial rental rate, and we exedwptions to renew through March 2012. Also, easé office and laboratory
space for our Belgian subsidiary that includesasito renew annually through December 2014 andrheal rent is subject to
adjustments based on an inflationary index. We @egcan option to renew this lease through Jan2@ty.

The research funding in the table above represemtsurrent funding commitment for a research pmogthat began in 2007. We
approved the funding for the final stage of thdatmration that will continue through August 2012.

We filed a resale registration statement with tB€Jor 18,508,251 shares of common stock, whichudes all shares of common
stock issued in the equity offering in June 200d simares of common stock issuable upon exercideeafarrants issued in the
offering (as well as the 531,781 shares of comntoacksssued to the bridge investors and the 132s&dses underlying their
warrants). The resale registration statement welsud effective by the SEC on October 18, 200 tddithe registration rights
agreement entered into in connection with the oféersubject to certain exceptions, if the resatgistration statement ceases to
remain effective, a 1% cash penalty will be asskézeeach 30-day period until the registratiortestzent becomes effective again,
capped at 10% of the aggregate gross proceedsceied from the equity offering. Because the pgrialbased on the number of
unregistered shares of common stock held by inve#tahe offering, our maximum penalty exposuré g@écline over time as
investors sell their shares of common stock thatweluded in the registration statement.

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Management Estimags

The SEC defines critical accounting policies as¢hthat are, in management'’s view, important tgtirérayal of our financial
condition and results of operations and demandimganagement’s judgment. Our discussion and arsabfdinancial condition and
results of operation are based on Athersys’ codatdd financial statements, which have been prdparaccordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principle§/&P. The preparation of these financial statemesiuires us to make estimates
on experience and on various assumptions that lievbeare reasonable under the circumstancesethdts of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying valuesssiss and liabilities that are not readily appafiemh other sources. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.
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A discussion of the material implications of uneérties associated with the methods, assumptiotigstimates underlying our
critical accounting polices is as follows:

Revenue Recognitio

Our license and collaboration agreements may comtaitiple elements, including license and techgglaccess fees, research and
development funding, manufacturing revenue, coatiah, milestones and royalties. The deliverabteden such an arrangement are
evaluated under Accounting Standards CodificatiorASC, 605-25, Multiple-Element Arrangements, (@horiginated primarily
from the guidance in EITF 00-21) to assess wheti®r have standalone value and objective and tel@ldence of fair value, and
if so, are accounted for as a single unit. We tleengnize revenue for each unit based on the calinimof the earnings process
under ASC 605-S25 (issued as SAB Topic 13) andestimated performance period for the single urfiecoounting based on the
specific terms of each collaborative agreementsilessequently adjust the estimated performancedgsribappropriate, on a
prospective basis based upon available facts aodnstances. Future changes in estimates of tlierpemce period may material
impact the timing of future revenue recognized. Aims received prior to satisfying the revenue redamn criteria for contract
revenues are recorded as deferred revenue in thenpanying balance sheets. Reimbursement amouhes tban those accounted
for using collaboration accounting) paid to us@®orded on a gross basis in the statements otipes as contract revenues.

We entered into collaboration agreements with Pfirel RTI that contain multiple elements and deéitées. For a description of t
collaboration agreement and the determination ofraeat revenues, see Note E to our consolidateshfiial statements included in
this annual report on Form 10-K.

Also included in contract revenue are license feesived from Bristol-Myers Squibb, which are sfieally set forth in the license
and collaboration agreement as amounts due tosesltem our completion of certain tasks (e.g., égjivand acceptance of a cell
line) and development milestones (e.g., clinical fhases), and as such, are not based on estithateare susceptible to change.
Such amounts are invoiced and recorded as reventasles are completed and as milestones are adhieve

Similarly, grant revenue consists of funding unclest reimbursement programs primarily from fedaral state sources for qualified
research and development activities performed bgng as such, are not based on estimates thstisceptible to change. Such
amounts are invoiced (unless prepaid) and recandedvenue as tasks are completed.

Collaborative Arrangements

Collaborative arrangements that involve cost aureifprofit sharing are reviewed to determine theimeaof the arrangement and the
nature of the collaborative parties’ businessesg. diinangements are also reviewed to determinesifpanty has sole or primary
responsibility for an activity, or whether the pasthave shared responsibility for the activityreléponsibility for an activity is shar
and there is no principal party, then the relatestcof that activity are recognized by us on aasts in the statement of operations
(e.g., total cost less reimbursement from collatoojalf we are deemed to be the principal partydo activity, then the costs and
revenues associated with that activity are recaghon a gross basis in the statement of operafldresaccounting may be
susceptible to change if the nature of a collalmimbusiness changes. Currently, our only collabion accounted for on a net basis
is our cost-sharing collaboration with Angiotech.

Clinical Trial Costs

Clinical trial costs are accrued based on workgreréd by outside contractors who manage and pettoertrials. We obtain initial
estimates of total costs based on enrollment gésts) project management estimates and otheritativActual costs are typically
charged to us and recognized as the tasks are etadfly the contractor. Accrued clinical trial costay be subject to revisions as
clinical trials progress, and any revisions arerded in the period in which the facts that giwerio the revisions become known.
Since such actual costs are typically invoicechaarired or based on contractual amounts for sesvedered, the amounts are
generally not susceptible to significant changessitimates.
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Investments in Availabl-for-Sale Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of gtreent securities at the time of purchase and aéiate such designation as of
each balance sheet date. Our investments typicafigist primarily of United States government adfigns and corporate debt
securities, which are classified as available-fde-sind are valued based on quoted prices in at@rkets for identical assets (Level
1). Available-for-sale securities are carried atV¥alue, with the unrealized gains and lossesph&dx, reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The amadrtinst of debt securities is adjusted for amditinaof premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amort@air accretion is included in interest income.IRed gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are included in iestiincome. The cost of securities sold is basati@specific identification method.
Interest earned on securities classified as avedf-sale is included in interest income. Sinloe €lements related to accounting for
these investments are reflected on monthly statesngre amounts are not based on estimates thatisgceptible to change. None of
our financial assets are in markets that are roteac

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation expenseeatright-line method and use a Black-Schole®pgiricing model to
estimate the grant-date fair value of share-bagedds. The expected term of options granted reptéke period of time that option
grants are expected to be outstanding. We usestimplified” method to calculate the expected lifeoption grants given our limited
history and beginning in 2010, determine volatibty using our historical stock volatility. Prior 8910, we determined volatility by
using the historical stock volatility of other coames with similar characteristics since we did mmie meaningful historical
volatility of our own stock at that time. Estimatefsfair value are not intended to predict actudlife events or the value ultimately
realized by persons who receive equity awards.

Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantranibed, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifshdbrfeitures differ from those
estimates and if our expectations on forfeitureenges. If actual forfeitures vary from the estimate will recognize the difference
in compensation expense in the period the actufdifores occur or when options vest.

All of the aforementioned estimates and assumptiwa®valuated on a quarterly basis and may chasépects and circumstances
warrant. Changes in these assumptions can mayeaiédict the estimate of the fair value of our ghbhased payments and the related
amount recognized in our financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2009, ASC 605-2ultiple-Element Arrangementsvas updated (Accounting Standards Update, or AL 2009-
13) related to revenue recognition for arrangemenitts multiple elements. The revised guidance ptesifor two significant chang
to the existing guidance, the first relates todatermination of when the individual deliverablesluded in a multiple-element
arrangement may be treated as separate units afi@otg, which will likely result in the requiremieto separate more deliverables
within an arrangement leading to less revenue ddférhe second change modifies the manner in wthielransaction considerati
is allocated across the separately identified dedibles. Together, these changes are likely tdtriesearlier recognition of revenue
for multiple-element arrangements than under prevguidance. The new guidance also significanthaers the disclosures
required for multiple-element revenue arrangemértis.new guidance is effective for the Companyriew arrangements entered
into on or after January 1, 2011. The future adwptf this new guidance may have the potentiacefiéless revenue deferral for
new collaborations than we have historically exgered.

In March 2010, ASC 605-28Jilestone Method of Revenue Recognitiaras amended (ASU No. 2010-17) related to thécation
of the application of the proportional performamncedel of revenue recognition when applied to mileet in research and
development arrangements. Accordingly, the congesisies that an entity can make an accountingypeléction to recognize a
payment that is contingent upon the achievemeatsafbstantive milestone in its entirety in the @ein which the milestone is
achieved. The new guidance is effective for the @amy for new arrangements entered into on or détruary 1, 2011. This new
guidance will not have a material effect on ouafinial statements upon adoption, since we have istarically recognizing
milestone revenue consistent with this guidance.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forwardkiog statements within the meaning of the Privgeurities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertaintieke$e forward-looking statements relate to, amohgrdahings, the expected
timetable for development of our product candidabes growth strategy, and our future financialfpenance, including our
operations, economic performance, financial coadjtprospects, and other future events. We haeeated to identify forward-
looking statements by using such words as “antiefpa“believes,” “can,” “continue,” “could,” “esthates,” “expects,” “intends,”
“may,” “plans,” “potential,” “should,” “will,” or ather similar expressions. These forward-lookingesteents are only predictions and
are largely based on our current expectations. & farsvard-looking statements appear in a numbetaifes in this annual report.

In addition, a number of known and unknown risks;artainties, and other factors could affect thmueacy of these statements.
Some of the more significant known risks that weefare the risks and uncertainties inherent ipptheess of discovering,
developing, and commercializing products that afe and effective for use as human therapeutickjding the uncertainty
regarding market acceptance of our product canesdatd our ability to generate revenues. The fatigwisks and uncertainties m
cause our actual results, levels of activity, peri@ance, or achievements to differ materially framy future results, levels of activity,
performance, or achievements expressed or implidddse forward-looking statements:

» the possibility of delays in, adverse results af arcessive costs of the development proc
. our ability to successfully initiate and completimical trials;

. changes in external market factc

. changes in our indust's overall performance

. changes in our business strate

. our ability to protect our intellectual propertyrgfolio;

. our possible inability to realize commercialluable discoveries in our collaborations with phaceutical and other
biotechnology companie

. our ability to meet milestones under our collabhioraagreements

. our collaborator ability to continue to fulfill their obligations wler the terms of our collaboration agreeme
. our possible inability to execute our strategy ttuehanges in our industry or the economy gener

. changes in productivity and reliability of supp$g

»  the success of our competitors and the emergenuevotompetitors; an

»  the risks mentioned elsewhere in this annual regpader Item 1A Risk Factor¢”

Although we currently believe that the expectaticeftected in the forward-looking statements agsomable, we cannot guarantee
our future results, levels of activity or perfornsan\We undertake no obligation to publicly updateveird-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future ésem otherwise, except as otherwise required Wy ¥ou are advised, however, to
consult any further disclosures we make on relatdgjects in our reports on Forms 10-Q, 8-K and lfowKished to the SEC. You
should understand that it is not possible to ptemfitdentify all risk factors. Consequently, ycdwosild not consider any such list to
a complete set of all potential risks or uncertast
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Interest Rate Risl

Our exposure to interest rate risk is related toimeestment portfolio and our borrowings, if aifyxed rate investments and
borrowings may have their fair market value adgrsepacted from changes in interest rates. Dugairt to these factors, our future
investment income may fall short of expectationgtiier, we may suffer losses in investment prindipae are forced to sell
securities that have declined in market value dughtanges in interest rates. We invest our exa&ss grimarily in debt instruments
of the U.S. government and its agencies and copadebt securities. As of December 31, 2010, apprately 85% of our
investments were in U.S. government obligationsluiting governmenbacked agencies. We have been investing conseslative
to the current economic conditions, including therent credit crisis, and have prioritized liquidénd the preservation of principal
in lieu of potentially higher returns. As a reswg have experienced no losses on the principalipinvestments.

We enter into loan arrangements with financialiinsbns when needed and when available to us. &tdmber 31, 2010, we had no
borrowings outstanding.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Athersys, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Athersys, Inc. as of December 31, 268009, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty and cash flows for each of the three yéathe period ended

December 31, 2010. These financial statementdareesponsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements basedipaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintgcial statements are free of
material misstatement. We were not engaged to perdém audit of the Company’s internal control ofieancial reporting. Our

audits included consideration of internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as a basis for designindigprocedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose pfessing an opinion on the effectiveness of the @y's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit also includes examining, omst basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statgsy assessing the accounting principles usedignificant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. We believe that our auditgige a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all materggpects, the consolidated finan

position of Athersys, Inc. at December 31, 2010 20@9, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31,20 conformity with U. S. generally accepted@atting principles.

Cleveland, Ohic /sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
March 25, 201:

F-2
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Athersys, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

December 31

2010 2009

Assets
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,10t $ 11,16"

Available-for-sale securitie 13,07¢ 10,13¢

Accounts receivabl 2,32¢ 352

Receivable from Angiotec 10€ 22¢

Investment interest receivak 71 93

Prepaid expenses and otl 25¢ 172
Total current asse 17,94 22,14¢
Available-for-sale securitie — 5,08(
Deposits and othe 38 38
Equipment, ne 95& 84¢
Equity investment 16¢ 21F
Total asset $ 19,10¢ $ 28,33
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 1,49¢ $ 1,12¢

Accrued compensation and related ben: 58C 667

Accrued clinical trial cost 207 83

Accrued expense 1,01z 857

Deferred revenu 5,541 3,12:
Total current liabilities 8,83¢ 5,85¢
Deferred revenu 1,26: 3,51¢
Stockholder' equity:

Preferred stock, at stated value; 10,000,000 slautt®rized, and no shares issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2010 and DecemberQ8B, — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 stard®rized, 18,930,678 and 18,929,333
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,8l December 31, 2009, respectiv 19 19

Additional paic-in capital 214,17 212,70

Accumulated other comprehensive inca 26 71

Accumulated defici (205,21 (193,83)
Total stockholder equity 9,00¢ 18,951
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 19,10¢ $ 28,33

See accompanying notes.
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Athersys, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Revenues
Contract revenu $ 6,68t $ 1,07¢ $ 1,88(
Grant revenu 2,254 1,08( 1,22¢

Total revenue 8,93¢ 2,15¢ 3,10¢
Costs and expenses
Research and development (including stock compiemsexpense of $545,

$1,296 and $727 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respegji 14,77¢ 11,92( 16,50(
General and administrative (including stock compéns expense of $921,

$1,512 and $1,129 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respsbe}i 5,38 5,621 5,47¢
Depreciatior 284 233 21¢

Total costs and expens 20,45( 17,77¢ 22,19;
Loss from operation (11,51) (15,619 (19,099
Other (expense) income, r (69) (12¢) 48
Interest incom 203 37t 1,14¢
Interest expens — — (99
Net loss $ (1137) $ (15366 $  (17,99)
Basic and diluted net loss per common shal $ 060 % 08) % (0.95)
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and dikd 18,929,74 18,928,37 18,927,98

See accompanying notes.
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Athersys, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

Accumulated

Preferred Stock Common Stock  Additional Other Total
Number Stated Number Par Paid-in  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
of Shares Value of Shares Value Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balance at January 1, 20 — $ — 18,927,98 $ 1S $ 208,03¢ $ 52 $ (160,479 $ 47,63
Stock based compensati — — — — 1,85¢ — — 1,85¢
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — — — — (17,997 (17,999
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie — — — — — 68 — 68
Total comprehensive lo: (17,929
Balance at December 31, 20C — — 18,927,98 19 209,89! 12C (178,47) 31,56:
Stock based compensati — — — — 2,80¢ — — 2,80¢
Issuance of common sto — — 1,34¢ — 1 — — 1
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — — — — (15,36¢€) (15,36¢€)
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie — — — — — (49 — (49
Total comprehensive lo: (15,41F)
Balance at December 31, 20C — — 18,929,33 19 212,70« 71 (193,83) 18,951
Stock based compensati — — — — 1,46¢€ — — 1,46¢€
Issuance of common sto — — 1,34¢ — 4 — — 4
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — — — — (11,377 (11,377
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie — — — — — (45) — (45
Total comprehensive lo: (11,427)
Balance at December 31, 2010 — $ — 18,930,67 $ 18 $ 214,17: $ 26 $ (205,219 $ 9,00t

See accompanying notes.
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Athersys, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)

Operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciatior
Gain on sale of equipme
Provision on notes receivak
Stocl-based compensatic
Amortization of premium on availat-for-sale securities and oth
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Receivable from Angiotec
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activit

Investing activities

Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie

Proceeds from maturities of availa-for-sale securitie
Investment in private-held compan

Proceeds from sale of equipmi

Purchases of equipme

Net cash provided by investing activiti
Financing activities

Principal payments on de

Net cash used in financing activiti

Decrease in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008

$ (11,37) $ (15360 $  (17,99)

284 232 21¢
— (27) (29)

— — 74
1,46€ 2,80¢ 1,85¢
22F 30¢ 28
(1,976) (92) 61¢
122 5 (171)
(63) 44¢ 17¢
562 47¢ (467)
165 6,581 (29)
(10,59:) (4,619 (15,71
(8,839 (11,69:) (26,59
10,75: 15,30( 43,91’
— (14) —

— 21 24
(390) (381) (532)
1,52¢ 3,23¢ 16,81¢
— — (1,800)

— — (1,800)
(9,062) (1,385) (69€)
11,16° 12,55: 13,24¢

$ 2,10¢ $ 11,16; $ 12,55:
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A. Background

We are a biopharmaceutical company engaged iniseewery and development of therapeutic productsim business segment.
Operations consist primarily of research and prodegelopment activities.

B. Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include eapants and results of operations and those oivbotly-owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation. Investments in joint ttges are accounted for using
the equity method when we do not control the ireesbut have the ability to exercise significafiuience over the investee’s
operations and financial policies.

Revenue Recognition

Our license and collaboration agreements may comtaitiple elements, including license and techgglaccess fees, research and
development funding, manufacturing revenue, coatiah, milestones and royalties. The deliverabteden such an arrangement are
evaluated under Accounting Standards Codificati&$C") 605-25,Multiple-Element Arrangementgwhich originated primarily
from the guidance in EITF 00-21) to assess wheti®r have standalone value and objective and tel@ldence of fair value, and
if so, are accounted for as a single unit. We tleengnize revenue for each unit based on the calinimof the earnings process
under ASC 605-S25 (issued as SAB Topic 13) andestimated performance period for the single urfiscoounting based on the
specific terms of each collaborative agreementsilessequently adjust the estimated performancedgsribappropriate, on a
prospective basis based upon available facts aodnstances. Future changes in estimates of tlierpemce period may material
impact the timing of future revenue recognized. Aims received prior to satisfying the revenue redamn criteria for contract
revenues are recorded as deferred revenue in thenpanying balance sheets. Reimbursement amouhes ban those accounted
for using collaboration accounting) paid to us@®orded on a gross basis in the statements otipes as contract revenues.
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
B. Accounting Policies, continued
Revenue Recognition, continued

Also included in contract revenue are license feesived from Bristol-Myers Squibb, which are sfieally set forth in the license
and collaboration agreement as amounts due tosesltem our completion of certain tasks (e.g., éejivand acceptance of a cell
line) and development milestones (e.g., clinidal whases), and as such, are not based on esithateare susceptible to change.
Such amounts are invoiced and recorded as reventasles are completed and as milestones are adhieve

Similarly, grant revenue consists of funding unclest reimbursement programs primarily from fedaral state sources for qualified
research and development activities performed bgng as such, are not based on estimates thstisceptible to change. Such
amounts are invoiced (unless prepaid) and recaaidedvenue as tasks are completed. Included in @@t revenues is a grant of
$733,000 received from the Internal Revenue Semvizker section 48D of the Internal Revenue Codetialifying therapeutic
discovery investments that have been incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with atority of three months or less when purchased todsh equivalents. Cash
equivalents are primarily invested in money mafatls and commercial paper. The carrying amounuofcash equivalents
approximates fair value due to the short maturitthe investments.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures, which aqnsisarily of costs associated with external aaliand preclinical study fees,

manufacturing costs, salaries and related persamusts, legal expenses resulting from intellegbuaperty application processes, .
laboratory supply and reagent costs, includingaieed allocated overhead expenses, are chargeghémse as incurred.
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
B. Accounting Policies, continued
Collaborative Arrangements

Collaborative arrangements that involve cost aureifprofit sharing are reviewed to determine theimeaof the arrangement and the
nature of the collaborative parties’ businesseg. diinangements are also reviewed to determinesifpanty has sole or primary
responsibility for an activity, or whether the pasthave shared responsibility for the activityreléponsibility for an activity is shar
and there is no principal party, then the relatestis of that activity are recognized by us on &asis in the statement of operations
(e.g., total cost less reimbursement from collatoojalf we are deemed to be the principal partydo activity, then the costs and
revenues associated with that activity are recaghon a gross basis in the statement of operafldresaccounting may be
susceptible to change if the nature of a collalmimbusiness changes. Currently, our only collatbion accounted for on a net basis
is our cost-sharing collaboration with AngiotechaRhaceuticals, Inc. (“Angiotech”).

Clinical Trial Costs

Clinical trial costs are accrued based on workgreréd by outside contractors, who manage and pertioe trials. We obtain initial
estimates of total costs based on enrollment gésts) project management estimates and othertaetivActual costs are typically
charged to us and recognized as the tasks are etadfly the contractor. Accrued clinical trial costay be subject to revisions as
clinical trials progress, and any revisions arerded in the period in which the facts that giwerio the revisions become known.

Royalties

We may be required to make royalty payments tagegarties based on product sales under licensemgnts. We did not pay any
royalties during the three-year period ended Deeer8l, 2010.

Investments in Available-for-Sale Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of girent securities at the time of purchase and aéiiate such designation as of
each balance sheet date. Our investments typicafigist of U.S. government obligations and cormodatbt securities, which are
classified as available-for-sale and are value@das quoted prices in active markets for identisslets (Level 1). Available-for-
sale securities are carried at fair value, withuheealized gains and losses, net of applicablerégported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The amdrtimst of debt securities is adjusted for amditinaof premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortaatr accretion is included in interest income.|Red gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are included in ies¢income. The cost of securities sold is baseati@specific identification method.
Interest earned on securities classified as ave#falr-sale is included in interest income. Noneof financial assets are in markets
that are not active.
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
B. Accounting Policies, continued
Long-Lived Assets

Equipment is stated at acquired cost less accuetuti#preciation. Laboratory and office equipmeatdapreciated on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives (thcesetven years).

Longived assets are evaluated for impairment whentswanchanges in circumstances indicate that thwging amount of the ass
or related group of assets may not be recoverHttee expected future undiscounted cash flowdess than the carrying amount of
the asset, an impairment loss is recognized atithat Measurement of impairment may be based appnaisal, market value of
similar assets or discounted cash flows.

In connection primarily with a milestone that wabigved in 2006, we and an affiliate own prefestmtk in a privately-held
company with an aggregate value of approximateGO0¥0. We evaluated this cost-method investmethtd@emed the investment
to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 2110 and December 31, 2009, recognizing $46,00%&m8,000 of impairment
loss in 2010 and 2009, respectively. No impairmesges were recorded in 2008.

Patent Costs and Rights

Costs of prosecuting and maintaining patents atehpsights are expensed as incurred. As of DeceBihe2010, we have filed for
broad intellectual property protection on our prefary technologies. We currently have numerous pagent applications and
corresponding international patent applicationatesl to our technologies, as well as many issu&d &hd international patents.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Unrealized gains and losses on our available-fta-securities are the only components of accumdilatieer comprehensive income
(loss). Total comprehensive income or loss is dsmdl in the consolidated statement of stockholaegity.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Accounts receivable are subject to concentraticeredit risk due to the absence of a large numbeustomers. At December 31,
2010, three customers accounted for 83% of accaan&vable. We do not require collateral from oustomers.
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
B. Accounting Policies, continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae amounts reported in the financial statetmeand accompanying notes.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation expenseeatrtight-line method and use a Black-Schole®pgiricing model to
estimate the grant-date fair value of share-basedds. The expected term of options granted reptéke period of time that option
grants are expected to be outstanding. We usestimplified” method to calculate the expected lifeoption grants given our limited
history and beginning in 2010, determine volatibity using our historical stock volatility. Prior 8910, we determined volatility by
using the historical stock volatility of other coarpes with similar characteristics since we didmmte meaningful historical
volatility of our own stock at that time. Estimatgfsfair value are not intended to predict actuslife events or the value ultimately

realized by persons who receive equity awards.

Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantrentsed, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifehédrfeitures differ from those
estimates. If actual forfeitures vary from the mastie, we recognize the difference in compensatiperse in the period the actual

forfeitures occur or when options vest.

All of the aforementioned estimates and assumptoasvaluated on a quarterly basis and may chasfgcts and circumstances

warrant. Changes in these assumptions can mayeaiédict the estimate of the fair value of our ghbased payments and the related

amount recognized in our financial statements

The following weighted-average input assumptionsawesed in determining the fair value:

December 31

2010 2009 2008
Volatility 119.5% 89.5% 69.6%
Risk-free interest rat 1.C% 2.4% 3.C%
Expected life of optiol 4.09 years 5.01 year 5.09 year:
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
B. Accounting Policies, continued
Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determbeskd on the differences between the financialrtieggoand tax basis of assets and
liabilities and are measured using the tax ratelawd currently in effect. We evaluate our defelirembme taxes to determine if a
valuation allowance should be established agdiestieferred tax assets or if the valuation allowastwuld be reduced based on
consideration of all available evidence, both pesiand negative, using a “more likely than noéirstard.

We had no liability for uncertain income tax pasits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. Our politty iscognize potential accru
interest and penalties related to the liability docertain tax benefits, if applicable, in incorag €xpense. Net operating loss and
credit carryforwards since inception remain opeaxamination by taxing authorities, and will foperiod post utilization.

Net Loss per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share has been dechpsing the weighted-average number of sharesmamon stock outstanding
during the period. We have outstanding optionswadants that are not used in the calculation lofteldl net loss per share because
to do so would be anti-dilutive. The following instnents were excluded from the calculation of ditlibet loss per share because
their effects would be anti-dilutive:

. Outstanding stock options to purchase 4,308,0,081,149 and 3,738,473 shares of common stodkéoyears ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively

Warrants to purchase 5,125,496 shares of commohk &ioeach of the years ended December 31, 20009 and 200¢
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Athersys, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)

B. Accounting Policies, continued
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2009, ASC 605-2ultiple-Element Arrangementsvas updated (Accounting Standards Update (“ASNW) 2009-
13) related to revenue recognition for arrangemeitts multiple elements. The revised guidance pitesifor two significant chang
to the existing guidance, the first relates todatermination of when the individual deliverablesluded in a multiple-element
arrangement may be treated as separate units adi@toteg, which will likely result in the requiremieto separate more deliverables
within an arrangement leading to less revenue d@férhe second change modifies the manner in witiehransaction considerati
is allocated across the separately identified dediiles. Together, these changes are likely tdtriesgarlier recognition of revenue
for multiple-element arrangements than under preyguidance. The new guidance also significanthaeds the disclosures
required for multiple-element revenue arrangemerits.new guidance is effective for the Companynfaw arrangements entered
into on or after January 1, 2011. The future adwptf this new guidance may have the potentiacefiéless revenue deferral for
new collaborations than we have historically exgered.

In March 2010, ASC 605-28Jilestone Method of Revenue Recognitiosras amended (ASU No. 2010-17) related to thécation
of the application of the proportional performameedel of revenue recognition when applied to miless in research and
development arrangements. Accordingly, the consesiaies that an entity can make an accountingypeléction to recognize a
payment that is contingent upon the achievemeatsafbstantive milestone in its entirety in the @eih which the milestone is
achieved. The new guidance is effective for the Gamy for new arrangements entered into on or déteuary 1, 2011. This new
guidance will not have a material effect on ouafinial statements upon adoption, since we have listarically recognizing
milestone revenue consistent with this guidance.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifietform with current year presentations.

C. Equipment
December 31
Equipment consists of (in thousanc 2010 2009
Laboratory equipmer $ 5,91¢ $ 6,262
Office equipment and leasehold improveme 3,731 3,63¢
9,64¢ 9,901
Accumulated depreciatic (8,69 (9,059
$ 95¢ $ 84¢
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
D. Financial Instruments
Investments in Availak-for-Sale Securities

Our available-for-sale securities typically includeS. government obligations and corporate dehirgézs. As of December 31,
2010, approximately 85% of our investments werd.i8. government obligations, including governmeatied agencies.

We classify the inputs used to measure fair vaite the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilitie:

Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets forlaingissets or liabilities, or unadjusted quotedgmifor identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ao¢ active, or inputs other than quoted prices énatobservable for the
asset or liability

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liabil

The following table provides a summary of the ficiahassets and liabilities measured at fair valne recurring basis as of
December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Using

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Balance as o Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable
Description December 31, 201 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Available-for-sale securitie $ 13,07¢ $ 13,07¢ $ = $ =

Fair value is based upon quoted market pricestimeamarkets. We had no Level 2 or Level 3 asseBeaember 31, 2010. We
review and reassess the fair value hierarchy ¢leasons on a quarterly basis. Changes from oratquto the next related to the
observability of inputs to a fair value measurenraay result in a reclassification between hierarelvgls. There have been no such
reclassifications.
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Athersys, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)

D. Financial Instruments, continued

The following is a summary of available-for-salewwsties (in thousands) at December 31, 2010 af® 2@spectively:

December 31, 201!
U.S. government obligations, including government-
backed agencie
Corporate debt securitit

December 31, 200!
U.S. government obligations, including government-
backed agencie
Corporate debt securitit

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Losses Gains Value
$ 11,03¢ $ — $ 23 $ 11,057
2,01¢ — 3 2,01¢
$ 13,05( $ — $ 26 $ 13,07¢
$ 12,61 $ 12 $ 52 $ 12,65:
2,531 — 31 2,56
$ 15,14« $ (12) $ 83 $ 15,21°¢

We had no realized gains or losses on the saleailtible-for-sale securities for any of the peripdssented. Unrealized gains and
losses on our available-for-sale securities aréudrd from earnings and are reported as a separatponent of stockholdersguity
within accumulated other comprehensive income wadlized. When available-faale securities are sold in the future, the coste
securities will be specifically identified and useddetermine any realized gain or loss. The netalized gain on available-for-sale
securities was $26,000 and $71,000 as of Decenihe03.0 and 2009, respectively.

The amortized cost of and estimated fair valuevailable-forsale securities at December 31, 2010 by contrantaturity are show

below (in thousands). Actual maturities may difiemm contractual maturities because the issuetBeo$ecurities may have the right

to repay the obligations without prepayment peeslti

Due in one year or le:
Due after one year through two ye

December 31, 2010

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
$ 13,05( $ 13,07¢
$ 13,05( $ 13,07¢
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Athersys, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
D. Financial Instruments, continued
Financing Arrangement

We lease office and laboratory space under an tipgraase and have options to renew the leaserina increments through
March 2013 at the initial rental rate, and we exedwptions to renew through March 2012. Also, weed into a lease agreement
for office and laboratory space for our Belgiansdlary, which includes options to renew annudiisotigh December 2014, subject
to adjustments based on an inflationary index,thedease included an option to expand that wascmesl in 2009. We executed an
option to renew this lease through January 2012.

Aggregate rent expense was approximately $387 $88)7,000, and $314,000 in 2010, 2009 and 2008ectisply. The future
annual minimum lease commitments at December 310 26e approximately $390,000 for 2011, $93,00@4#2 and $4,000 for
2013.

Our former lenders retain a right to receive a stdae payment of $2.25 million upon the occurresfogertain events as follows:
(1) the entire amount upon (a) the merger witmtw another entity where our stockholders do néd holeast a majority of the
voting power of the surviving entity, (b) the safeall or substantially all of our assets, or (oy dquidation or dissolution; or (2) a
portion of the amount from proceeds of equity ficiags not tied to specific research and developraetitities that are part of a
research or development collaboration, in whiclecttee lenders will receive an amount equal to Ddfroceeds above $5.0 million
in cumulative gross proceeds until the milestonewmis paid in full. The milestone payment is gdagan cash, except that if the
milestone event is (2) above, we may elect to [ of the milestone in shares of common stockeaptr-share offering price. No
amounts have been recorded for the milestone irmber 31, 2010, 2009 or 2008. In connection withFabruary 2011 equity
offering, the lenders were entitled to a milestpagment under this obligation in the amount of $8Q0, of which $202,500 was
paid in cash in February 2011 and $607,500 wastpaidigh the issuance of our common stock to thméo lenders at $2.96 per
share. We paid no interest during the years enamgmber 31, 2010 and 2009, and $76,000 duringehegnded December 31,
2008.

E. Collaborations and Revenue Recognition
Pfizer

In December 2009, we entered into a collaboratidh Rfizer to develop and commercialize MultiStemtreat inflammatory bowel
disease (“IBD”) for the worldwide market. Under tigems of the agreement, we received a non-refuadghfront license and
technology access payment of $6.0 million from &fiand receive research funding and support. Iitiaddwe are also eligible to
receive milestone payments upon the successfubaamient of certain development, regulatory and ceroial milestones, for
which we evaluated the nature of the events triggahese contingent payments and concluded tkeaetbvents constituted
substantive milestones that will be recognizedeasmue in the period in which the underlying trigigg event occurs. No revenue
for milestones was recognized in 2010 or 2009.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
E. Collaborations and Revenue Recognition, contingke
Pfizer, continuec

Pfizer pays us for manufacturing product for clalidevelopment and commercialization purposesePfias responsibility for
development, regulatory and commercialization aidpay us tiered royalties on worldwide commeraales of MultiStem IBD
products. Alternatively, in lieu of royalties anérain commercialization milestones, we may electd-develop with Pfizer and the
parties will share development and commercializeéigpenses and profits/losses on an agreed bagimbey at phase Il clinical
development.

We evaluated the facts and circumstances of theeaggnt and determined the Pfizer agreement haghiblins constituting
deliverables and concluded that it had multiplevéehbles, including deliverables relating to tharg of a license and access to our
technology, performance of research and developsernices, and performance of certain manufactigérgices, and concluded
that these deliverables should be combined intoglesunit of accounting, and further concluded tha participation on a joint
steering committee was primarily for governandgpe activities and did not represent a substamtbligation or deliverable. We a
recognizing the license and technology accessrdeesearch and development funding ratably oneégt-line basis over the
estimated performance period, which began in Deeer2®09 and is estimated to be completed in 20i® age recognizing
manufacturing revenue beginning upon the culmimatibthe earnings process and amortizing it overémainder of the
performance period of the bundled unit of accountPrepaid license and technology access fee apaiorresearch and
development funding are recorded as deferred revand is amortized on a straight-line basis oveptrformance period.

Angiotech

In our co-development collaboration with Angioteale bear all preclinical costs and the partiestjpifund clinical development
activity. We have primary responsibility for pregtal and early clinical development and clinicalmafacturing, and Angiotech will
take the lead on pivotal and later clinical triatsl commercialization. The parties will share mefifs from the future sale of
approved products and we may receive cash payraadtan equity investment and based on the suctessfievement of specified
clinical development and commercialization milegtan

We continue to jointly fund clinical developmentigities with Angiotech in accordance with our cevelopment collaboration. Our
clinical costs are recorded net of Angiotech’s «sre, which amounted to $628,000, $847,000 aAd,800 in 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. The amount due from Angioteals 106,000 and $229,000 at December 31, 201000%] Bspectively, and is
disclosed separately on the balance sheet.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)
E. Collaborations and Revenue Recognition, contingke
RTI Biologics, Inc

In September 2010, we entered into an agreementRiit, a provider of orthopedic and other biologiplants, under which we
provided RTI a license to our Multipotent Adult Bemitor Cell (“MAPC”) technologies to enable RTldevelop and commercialize
MAPC technology-based biologic implants exclusivielycertain orthopedic applications in the bonafigsubstitutes market. Under
the terms of the agreement, we will receive a Hianilicense fee in installments, of which $3.0lioh is guaranteed and

$2.0 million is contingent on future milestone etgeThe first $1.0 million of guaranteed fees waxeived at inception, with the
remaining $2.0 million to be received in $1.0 noifliinstallments in each of December 2010 and Maedtl. The December 2010
installment was received timely, and the final $hilion to be received in March 2011 is reflectadeceivables on the balance
sheet at December 2010. We are also eligible wiveanilestone payments upon the successful aahnieneof certain development
and commercial milestones. Included in these natess are two $1.0 million license fee paymentsadhatcontingent on certain
events. We evaluated the nature of the eventsatriigg) these contingent payments and concludedhkae events are substantive
that revenue will be recognized in the period irclitthe underlying triggering event occurs. In giddi, we will receive tiered
royalties on worldwide commercial sales, if anyjroplants using our technologies. No milestoneogalty revenue was recognized
in 2010.

We evaluated the facts and circumstances and detxirthe RTI agreement had obligations constitudieliverables and concluded
that it has multiple deliverables, including defiakles relating to the grant of a license to oaht®logy and performance of resea
and development services, and concluded that tiedserables should be combined into a single ofétccounting. We recognize
the license fee ratably on a straidgine basis over the estimated performance peridigiwbegan in September 2010 and is estim
to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2011.

F. Capitalization

At December 31, 2010, we had 100.0 million shafemmon stock and 10.0 million shares of undegephareferred stock
authorized. No shares of preferred stock have tsseed as of December 31, 2010.

We may issue shares of common stock to our foremetdrs and to Angiotech in connection with futuilestones. Also, we entered
into a license and sponsored research agreem2a0ihwith an academic institution whereby, in addito annual research funding,
the institution may receive 1,345 shares of comstonk on each of four anniversary dates.
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F. Capitalization, continued
The following shares of common stock were resefeeéuture issuance (in thousands):

December 31

2010 2009
Stock option plan 4,50( 4,50(
Warrants to purchase common st— 2007 offering 4,97¢ 4,97¢
Warrants to purchase common st— Lenders 14¢ 14¢
9,62¢ 9,62¢

In February 2011, we completed a registered do#eting with net proceeds of $11.8 million throutjie issuance of 4,366,667
shares of common stock and five-year warrants tolase 1,310,000 shares of common stock with artiereprice of $3.55 per
share. The securities were sold in multiples aked combination of one share of common stock an@ugant to purchase 0.3 of a
share of common stock at an offering price of $80fixed combination.

G. Stock-Based Compensation

We have two incentive plans that authorized aneggge of 4,500,000 shares of common stock for asmarémployees, directors
and consultants. These equity incentive plans azththe issuance of equity-based compensatiomeiidrm of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restrictiatls units, performance shares and units, and stoek-based awards to qualified
employees, directors and consultants.

As of December 31, 2010, a total of 193,063 sharrg available for issuance under our equity coragion plans and options to
purchase 4,308,013 shares of common stock wer&aadtsg (including certain assumed options from7200vering 1,075 shares).
We recognized $1,466,000, $2,808,000 and $1,85&06ck compensation expense in 2010, 2009 af#,28spectively, which
included approximately $264,000 in 2009 related tthange in estimate of our forfeiture rate. At&aber 31, 2010, total
unrecognized estimated compensation cost relatedvwested stock options was approximately $798,a0i;h is expected to be
recognized by the end of 2014 using the straigig-thethod.

The weighted average fair value of option sharastgd in 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $2.22, $2.04 a2 $er share, respectively.
The total fair value of option shares vested inG@®D09 and 2008 was $1,835,000, $2,257,000 ard3$D00, respectively. There
no aggregate intrinsic value of fully vested optifrares and option shares expected to vest ascehfiirer 31, 2010 since the market
value was less than the exercise price of the ppta the end of the year.
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G. Stock-Based Compensation, continued

A summary of our stock option activity and relabefibrmation is as follows:

QOutstanding January 1, 20

Granted

Exercisec

Forfeited / Terminated / Expire
Outstanding December 31, 20

Granted

Exercisec

Forfeited / Expirec
Outstanding December 31, 20

Granted

Exercisec

Forfeited / Expirec

Outstanding December 31, 20

Vested during 201

Vested and exercisable at December 31, :

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (comidal)

December 31, 2010

Weighted

Average

Number Exercise

of Options Price

3,679,88. $ 5.24
218,00( 3.3¢
(159,41) 6.64
3,738,47. 5.07
272,00( 3.17
(9,329 8.2¢
4,001,14 4,94
390,43 2.9¢
(83,579 6.3¢
4,308,01 $ 4.7
680,57( $ 4.4¢€
3,921,60. $ 5.0t

Options Outstanding

Options Vested and Exercisablt

Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average Number Remaining Average
of Contractual Exercise of Contractual Exercise
Exercise Price Options Life Price Options Life Price
$1.35-3.20 584,93t 5.2¢ $ 2.5¢ 234,31 4.62 $ 24C
$4.00-4.99 137,00( 6.8¢ $ 4.3z 101,20¢ 6.8 $ 434
$5.00-7.80 3,585,001 5.6 $ 5.07 3,585,001 5.6 $ 5.07
$90.66 1,07t 2.3¢ $ 90.6¢ 1,07t 2.3¢ $ 90.6¢
4,308,01 3,921,60:

The weighted average contractual life of unvesgtbas at December 31, 2010 was 5.84 years.
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H. Income Taxes
At December 31, 2010, we had net operating lossesearch and development tax credit carryforwaf@pproximately
$40,526,000 and $2,990,000, respectively, for inetax purposes. Such losses and credits may betaseduce future taxable
income and tax liabilities and will expire in 2030.
We have net operating loss carryforwards of appnaxely $7,626,000 (“Pre-Merger NOL”") that are liedtfor use under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code to anammet operating loss carryforward of $464,000. Phe-Merger NOL may be
used to reduce future taxable income and tax iiesiland will expire at various dates between 28i@ 2026.

Significant components of our deferred tax assetsa follows (in thousands):

December 31

2010 2009
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 13,77¢ $ 9,89
Net operating loss carryforwar— Pre-Merger NOL 2,59: 2,751
Research and development credit carryforw. 2,99( 2,07(
License fee 1,19¢ 2,011
Compensation expen 2,71% 2,432
Other 63€ 50€
Total deferred tax asse 23,90¢ 19,66:
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (23,909 (19,667)
Net deferred tax asse $ = $ =

Because of our cumulative losses, the deferreddagts have been fully offset by a valuation altoyea We have not paid income
taxes for the three-year period ended Decembe2(BIQ.

I. Profit Sharing Plan and 401(k) Plan

We have a profit sharing and 401(k) plan that cegaibstantially all employees and allows for disorary contributions by us. We
made no contributions to this plan for the threarygeriod ended December 31, 2010.
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J. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Athersys, Inc.

The following table presents quarterly data forykars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, in thdsisaercept per share data:

Revenues
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss pe
common share

Revenue:!
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per commi
share

2010
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
$ 1,74C $ 1,871 $ 1,99¢ $ 3,33¢ $ 8,93¢
$ (2,567 $ (3,077%) $ (3,689 $ (2,05 $  (1.,37)
$ (0.19 $ (0.16) $ (0.19) $ (0.17) $ (0.60)
2009
First Seconc Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
$ 37C $ 43¢ $ 484 $ 86¢ $ 2,15¢
$ (3,625 $ (3,347 $ (3,380 $ (5,019 $ (15,366
$ (0.19) $ (0.1¢) $ (0.1¢) $ (0.26) $ (0.87)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceduresAn evaluation was carried out under the supervisioth with the participation
our management, including our principal executiffecer and our principal financial officer, of thedfectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the pededred by this annual report. Based on that etialo, these officers have
concluded that as of December 31, 2010, our disodosontrols and procedures are effective.

Management’s report on internal control over finandal reporting: Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiimg
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13&-1Under the supervision and
with the participation of management, including ptincipal executive officer and principal finanlcidficer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contretr financial reporting based on the frameworknbernal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@mgtions of the Treadway Commission. Based andwaluation under the
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framekyonanagement concluded that our internal contvet éinancial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2010.

Changes in internal control: During the fourth quarter of 2010, there has beeohange in our internal control over financial
reporting that has materially affected, or is remddy likely to materially affect, our internal dool over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On March 25, 2011, the Board of Directors of thepany, upon the recommendation of the Compens&mmmittee of the Board
of Directors of the Company, approved a cash bamentive plan, or the Plan, for the year endeddbdmer 31, 2011 for the named
executive officers of the Company. The Plan prositiat each participant is eligible to earn a baturing the award term of
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011. Theprtandes for the following target bonus percentagkthe named executive
officer’s salary during the award term, weightedsasforth below on the achievement of specifiegbamate goals, with the
remainder based on individual/functional perfornaarikhe corporate goals include advancing the Cowipatinical programs for
MultiStem, executing against the established opggailan and capital acquisition objectives, andastement of strategic
partnership and program activities. There is nanfdly adopted plan document for the Plan.

Target Weighting on
Title Bonus Corporate Goa
Chief Executive Office 40% 10(%
President & Chief Operating Offic: 33% 80%
Executive Vice President & Chief Scientific Offic 33% 80%
Sr. Vice President, Regenerative Medic 3% 60%
Vice President of Financ 25% 60%
A summary of the plan is attached to this annyabreon Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.41 and is herelmpiporated herein by reference
thereto.
PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information regarding Athersys’ directors, udihg the identification of the audit committee d@hd audit committee financial
expert, is incorporated by reference to the infdromacontained in Athersys’ Proxy Statement withpect to the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, or the 2011 Proxy Statamarder the headings “Election of Directors” affdhé Board of Directors and
Committees”. Information concerning executive dafig is contained in Item 3A of Part | of this anmegort on Form 10-K under
the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”
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The information regarding Section 16(a) benefioi@hership reporting compliance is incorporateddfgnrence to the material under
the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership é&tépg Compliance” in the 2011 Proxy Statement.

Athersys has adopted a code of ethics that apiliiés principal executive officer, principal fineial officer and principal accounting
officer. Athersys’ code of ethics is posted undher investors tab of its website at www.athersys.otiersys will post any
amendments to, or waivers of, its code of ethies &pply to its principal executive officer, pripai financial officer and principal
accounting officer on its website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information regarding executive officer ancedior compensation is incorporated by referent¢bednformation contained in
the 2011 Proxy Statement under the heading “Exez@bmpensation”.

The compensation committee report is incorporateteference to the information contained in the2Btoxy Statement under the
heading “Compensation Committee Report”.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information regarding security ownership oftair beneficial owners and management is incorpdrhy reference to the
information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statememnten the heading “Beneficial Ownership of Commaooc§t.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information regarding certain relationships egldted transactions and director independenice@porated by reference to the
information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statememntan the heading “The Board of Directors and itsn@uttees”.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding fees paid to and servicesigexl by our independent registered public accagrfirm during the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the pre-adppolicies and procedures of the audit commitséagorporated by reference
to the information contained in the 2011 Proxy &tant under the heading “Ratification of the Appwiant of Independent
Auditors”.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(2) Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statement#\dfersys, Inc. are included in Item 8:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&£812009
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eachejears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityefach of the years ended December 31, 2010, 2@D2G08
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow for eachef/#ars ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules for which provision is made in thekgable accounting regulation of the SEC are equired under the related
instructions or are inapplicable and, thereforeitiemh.
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(a)(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit No.

Exhibit Descriptior

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.7*

10.2*

10.&

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1CF

10.11F

Certificate of Incorporation of Athersys, Inc.,asended as of August 31, 2007 (incorporated hénxenmeference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant’s Registrationt8taent on Form S-3/A (Registration No. 333-144488) with
the Commission on October 10, 20l

Bylaws of Athersys, Inc., as amended as of Oct80eR007 (incorporated herein by reference to EkBil to
the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Corgiois No. 000-52108) filed with the Commission on
October 31, 2007

Form of Warrant (incorporated herein by referemcExthibit 4.1 to the registrant’s Current ReportFamrm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-33876) filed with the Commission on January 28,1(

Research Collaboration and License Agreement, deted December 8, 2000, by and between Athersgsahc
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s i€at
Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Cell Line Collaboration and License Agreement, date of July 1, 2002, by and between Athersys,dnd.
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant’s i€at
Report on Form -K/A (Commission No. 00-52108) filed with the Commission on September 207
Extended Collaboration and License Agreement, daseaf January 1, 2006, by and between Athersgsaimd
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated herejrrdference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s i@at
Report on Form -K/A (Commission No. 00-52108) filed with the Commission on September 2072
License Agreement, effective as of May 5, 2006abg between Athersys, Inc. and Angiotech Pharmaedsit
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilit4ito the registrant’s Current Report on Forid @2ommissiol
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Sublicense Agreement, effective as of May 5, 2@096and between Athersys, Inc. and Angiotech
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporated herein by esfee to Exhibit 10.5 to the registrant’s Currenp&eon
Form &K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreerdated as of April 28, 2000, by and among Atherbys,
and the stockholders of Athersys, Inc. partiesettefincorporated herein by reference to Exhibi610 the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Athersys, Inc. Amended and RegtRegistration Rights Agreement, dated as of
January 29, 2002, by and among Athersys, Inc.Nthe Stockholders, the Investors, Biotech and the
Stockholders (each as defined in the Amended asthRel Registration Rights Agreement, dated ad A8ri
2000, by and among Athersys, Inc. and the stocldnsldf Athersys, Inc. parties thereto) (incorpaitdterein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the registrant’s Catiieeport on Form 8-K (Commission No. 000-5210&dfiwith
the Commission on June 14, 20!

Amendment No. 2 to Athersys, Inc. Amended and RestRegistration Rights Agreement, dated as of
November 19, 2002, by and among Athersys, Inc.Niw& Stockholders, the Investors, Biotech anc
Stockholders (each as defined in the Amended asthRel Registration Rights Agreement, dated ad A8ri
2000, as amended, by and among Athersys, Inc.renstockholders of Athersys, Inc. parties thereto)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.8e registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Cassion
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Registr&ights Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2007, gy an
among Athersys, Inc. and the Existing Stockholdassdefined therein) (incorporated herein by refeegto
Exhibit 10.9 to the registrant’s Current Reportrmrm 8-K (Commission No. 000-52108) filed with the
Commission on June 14, 20(

Athersys, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorpechherein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to thestegnt’s
Current Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Axthersys, Inc. Equity Incentive Compensation Riaocorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd fhe
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)
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10.12

10.1:

10.1¢

10.15F

10.1¢€f

10.1%

10.1¢&F

10.1¢t

10.2(F

10.21t

10.2%F

10.2%F

10.24F

10.25F

Loan and Security Agreement, and Supplement, detexd November 2, 2004, by and among Athersys, Inc.
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Venture Lending €aking IV, Inc., and Costella Kirsch IV, L.P. (inporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the regrteaQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission BI@0-
52108) filed with the Commission on November 1402

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemetegddss of October 30, 2007, by and among ABT Haldin
Company, Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Venturedireg and Leasing IV, Inc., and Costella Kirsch L\P.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2he registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-@r{hission
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on November 1402X

Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dateaf &eptember 29, 2006, by and among Athersys, Inc.,
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Venture Lending €aking IV, Inc., and Costella Kirsch IV, L.P. (inporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the regisfs Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission Nd)-32108)
filed with the Commission on June 14, 20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiscember 1, 1998 but effective as of April 298,

by and between Athersys, Inc. and Dr. Gil Van Ba&kdincorporated herein by reference to ExhibitldQo the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employigrdement, dated as of May 31, 2007, by and between
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Gil Van Bokkdlieeorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1aGd the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datecbdDecember 1, 1998, by and between Athersys, Inc
and Dr. Gil Van Bokkelen (incorporated herein bference to Exhibit 10.16 to the registrant’s Cutiieaport on
Form &K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefilzscember 1, 1998 but effective as of April 298,

by and between Athersys, Inc. and Dr. John J. Rigtiwh (incorporated herein by reference to ExHibitL7 to the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employgrdement, dated as of May 31, 2007, by and between
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and John Harrindiocorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd.&e
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datedbdDecember 1, 1998, by and between Athersys, Inc
and Dr. John J. Harrington (incorporated hereimdfgrence to Exhibit 10.19 to the registrant’s @atrReport on
Form ¢&-K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 22, 199&ruybetween Athersys, Inc. and Laura K. Campbell
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1G@€he registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (@uission

No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Laura Campbell (incorfedderein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to thestegnt’s
Current Report on Formr-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Employment Agreement, dated as of September 2%),230and between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Ind. an
Kurt Brunden (incorporated herein by referencexhibit 10.22 to the registrant’'s Current Reportmrm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Kurt Brunden (incorpadaterein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the regig’s
Current Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datecb&September 25, 2000, by and among Athersys, Inc
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Kurt Brunderdiporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2th&o
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)
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Employment Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2609pa&nd between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. avttbkR
Deans, Ph.D. (incorporated herein by referencextoliit 10.25 to the registrant’s Current Reportrmrm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Robert Deans (incorpdrhegein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the regig’s
Current Report on Formr-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datecb&October 3, 2003, by and among Athersys, Inc.,
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Robert Dearco(porated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2th&
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2004nd between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and
William Lehmann (incorporated herein by referere&xhibit 10.28 to the registrant’s Current ReportForm 8-
K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and William Lehmann (incogted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to thgsteant’s
Current Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datetb&September 10, 2001, by and among Athersys, Inc
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and William Lehméimeorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1G@3¢he
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Form Incentive Agreement by and between AdvancethBrapeutics, Inc. and named executive officerd, a
acknowledged by Athersys, Inc. and ReGenesys, lihédfporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1081he
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Form Amendment No. 1 to Incentive Agreement by beitveen Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and named
executive officers, and acknowledged by Athersys, &nd ReGenesys, LLC (incorporated herein byeate to
Exhibit 10.32 to the registrant’s Current Reportramm 8-K (Commission No. 000-52108) filed with the
Commission on June 14, 20(

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of JU@08, by and among Athersys, BTHC VI, Inc. and Btoes
(as defined therein) (incorporated herein by refeeeto Exhibit 10.33 to the registrant’s Currenp&t on

Form ¢&-K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Exclusive License Agreement, dated as of May 10220y and between Regents of the University ofridsota
and MCL LLC, assumed by ReGenesys, LLC throughatjmer of merger on November 4, 2003 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the regiss Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission Nd)-32108)
filed with the Commission on June 14, 20

Strategic Alliance Agreement, by and between Aygrkic. and Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dagedf
May 5, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference thilik 10.35 to the registrant’s Current Report amri 8-K/A
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on October 9, 2C

Amendment No. 1 to Cell Line Collaboration and ltise Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and
between Athersys, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb @any (incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBiB86 to
the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Consiois No. 000-52108) filed with the Commission ondd 4,
2007)

Consulting Agreement, by and among Athersys, ldyanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Dr. Kurt Brundgatec
as of July 23, 2007 (incorporated herein by refeeen Exhibit 10.13 to the registrant’s QuarteriypRrt on
Form 1(-Q (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on August 17, 20

Form Indemnification Agreement for Directors, Offis and Directors and Officers (incorporated helgin
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Cottfieeport on Form 8-K (Commission No. 000-5210&dfiwith
the Commission on August 6, 20(
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10.41t Summary of Athersys, Inc. 2011 Cash Bonus IncerRiem
10.4x Collaboration and License Agreement, dated as ckbBber 18, 2009, by and between Athersys, Inc., ABT
Holding Company, and Pfizer Inc. (incorporated heby reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the registramthnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ9 (Commission No. 001-33876) filed with the
Commission on March 11, 201
10.4% Stand-by License Agreement, dated as of DecemhexQ®, by and between Regents of the University of
Minnesota, ABT Holding Company and Pfizer Inc. érorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.43to t
registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the iyeaded December 31, 2009 (Commission No. 001-33876
filed with the Commission on March 11, 20:
10.4¢ Amendment dated as of March 31, 2009 to the Exet#laboration and License Agreement, by and betwe
Athersys, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb Compangefive January 1, 2006 (incorporated herein byregfee to
Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s Current Reportrmrm 8-K (Commission No. 001-33876) filed with the
Commission on April 9, 200¢
10.4¢ Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated Registr&ights Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2010,raly a
among Athersys, Inc. and the Existing Stockholdassdefined therein) (incorporated herein by refeeeto
Exhibit 10.45 to the registrant’s Annual ReportFmrm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009
(Commission No. 0(-33876) filed with the Commission on March 11, 20
10.4¢€* License and Technical Assistance Agreement, dated September 10, 2010, between ABT Holding Compan
and RTI Biologics, Inc. (incorporated herein byereihce to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’'s Quayt&&port on
Form 1(-Q (Commission No. 0(-33876) filed with the Commission on November 8,2
10.4%t Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme
10.4¢t Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for -Employee Director
21 List of Subsidiarie!
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registétablic Accounting Firn
24.1 Power of Attorney
31.1 Certification of Gil Van Bokkelen, Chairman and €hExecutive Officer, pursuant to SEC Rules 13aa})46d
15c¢-14(a) adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sas-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Laura Campbell, Vice Presidentafiance, pursuant to SEC Rules 13a-14(a) and 1614
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Gil Van Bokkelen, Chairman and €hixecutive Officer, and Laura Campbell, Vice Rtest of

Finance, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, adgmiesuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

*  Confidential treatment requested as to cenpairiions, which portions have been filed separatétii the Securities and
Exchange Commissic

t Indicates management contract or compensatary gontract or arrangement in which one or manectbrs or executive
officers of the registrant may be participa
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetirgo duly authorized, in the city of Clevelandgt8tof Ohio, on March 25, 2011.

ATHERSYS, INC.
By: /s/ Gil Van Bokkelen

Gil Van Bokkelen
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Gil Van Bokkelen Chief Executive Officer and March 25, 2011
Gil Van Bokkelen Chairman of the Board of Directors

(Principal Executive Officer’

/sl Laura K. Campbell Vice President of Finance March 25, 2011
Laura K. Campbell (Principal Financial Officer

and Principal Accounting Officer
* Executive Vice President, March 25, 2011
John J. Harringto Chief Scientific Officer and Director
* Director March 25, 2011
Lorin J. Randal
* Director March 25, 2011
George M. Milne, Jr
* Director March 25, 2011
Jack L. Wyszomierst
* Director March 25, 2011
Lee Babiss
* Director March 25, 2011
Ismail Kola

*  Gil Van Bokkelen, by signing his name heretoed hereby sign this Form 10-K on behalf of eacthefabove named and
designated directors of the Company pursuant toePouf Attorney executed by such persons and Vildld the Securities and
Exchange Commissiol

By: /s/ Gil Van Bokkelen
Gil Van Bokkelen
Attorney-in-fact
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3.1

3.2

4.1

10.7*

10.2*

10.&

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1CF

Certificate of Incorporation of Athersys, Inc.,asended as of August 31, 2007 (incorporated hénxenmeference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant’s Registrationt8taent on Form S-3/A (Registration No. 333-144488) with
the Commission on October 10, 20l

Bylaws of Athersys, Inc., as amended as of Oct80eR007 (incorporated herein by reference to EkBil to
the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Consiois No. 000-52108) filed with the Commission ortdber
31, 2007)

Form of Warrant (incorporated herein by referemcExthibit 4.1 to the registrant’s Current ReportFamrm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-33876) filed with the Commission on January 28,1(

Research Collaboration and License Agreement, deted December 8, 2000, by and between Athersgsahc
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant’s i€at
Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Cell Line Collaboration and License Agreement, date of July 1, 2002, by and between Athersys,dnd.
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 10.2 to the registrant’s i€at
Report on Form -K/A (Commission No. 00-52108) filed with the Commission on September 207
Extended Collaboration and License Agreement, daseaf January 1, 2006, by and between Athersgsaimd
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (incorporated herejrrdference to Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s i@at
Report on Form -K/A (Commission No. 00-52108) filed with the Commissicon September 27, 200
License Agreement, effective as of May 5, 2006abg between Athersys, Inc. and Angiotech Pharmaedsit
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilit4ito the registrant’s Current Report on Forid @2ommissiol
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Sublicense Agreement, effective as of May 5, 2@096and between Athersys, Inc. and Angiotech
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporated herein by esfee to Exhibit 10.5 to the registrant’s Currenp&eon
Form &K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreerdated as of April 28, 2000, by and among Atherbys,
and the stockholders of Athersys, Inc. partiesettefincorporated herein by reference to Exhibi610 the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Athersys, Inc. Amended and RegtRegistration Rights Agreement, dated as of
January 29, 2002, by and among Athersys, Inc.Nthe Stockholders, the Investors, Biotech and the
Stockholders (each as defined in the Amended asthRel Registration Rights Agreement, dated ad A8ri
2000, by and among Athersys, Inc. and the stocldnsldf Athersys, Inc. parties thereto) (incorpaitdterein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the registrant’s Catiieeport on Form 8-K (Commission No. 000-5210&dfiwith
the Commission on June 14, 20!

Amendment No. 2 to Athersys, Inc. Amended and RestRegistration Rights Agreement, dated as of
November 19, 2002, by and among Athersys, Inc.Niw& Stockholders, the Investors, Biotech anc
Stockholders (each as defined in the Amended asthRel Registration Rights Agreement, dated ad A8ri
2000, as amended, by and among Athersys, Inc.renstockholders of Athersys, Inc. parties thereto)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.8e registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Cassion
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Registr&ights Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2007, gy an
among Athersys, Inc. and the Existing Stockholdassdefined therein) (incorporated herein by refeegto
Exhibit 10.9 to the registrant’s Current Reportrmrm 8-K (Commission No. 000-52108) filed with the
Commission on June 14, 20(

Athersys, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorpechherein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to thestegnt’s
Current Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
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Athersys, Inc. Equity Incentive Compensation Plandrporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10d.the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Loan and Security Agreement, and Supplement, detad November 2, 2004, by and among Athersys, Inc.
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Venture Lending &aking 1V, Inc., and Costella Kirsch 1V, L.P. (imporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the regigteaQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission BI@0-
52108) filed with the Commission on November 142X

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemetegddss of October 30, 2007, by and among ABT Haldin
Company, Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Ventunedireg and Leasing IV, Inc., and Costella Kirsch L\P.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.2hie registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-@r{ithission
No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on November 1402

Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, datexf &eptember 29, 2006, by and among Athersys, Inc.,
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc., Venture Lending &aking 1V, Inc., and Costella Kirsch 1V, L.P. (imporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the regiss Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission Nd)-32108)
filed with the Commission on June 14, 20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefilzscember 1, 1998 but effective as of April 298,

by and between Athersys, Inc. and Dr. Gil Van Bd&kdincorporated herein by reference to Exhibitldto the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employigrdement, dated as of May 31, 2007, by and between
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Gil Van Bokkdlieeorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1ad the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datedbdDecember 1, 1998, by and between Athersys, Inc
and Dr. Gil Van Bokkelen (incorporated herein bference to Exhibit 10.16 to the registrant’s Cutii@aport on
Form ¢&-K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiscember 1, 1998 but effective as of April 298,

by and between Athersys, Inc. and Dr. John J. Kigton (incorporated herein by reference to ExHibitL7 to the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employigrdement, dated as of May 31, 2007, by and between
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and John Harringtecorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd.&e
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datecbdDecember 1, 1998, by and between Athersys, Inc
and Dr. John J. Harrington (incorporated hereimdfgrence to Exhibit 10.19 to the registrant’s @atrReport on
Form &K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 22, 199&ruybetween Athersys, Inc. and Laura K. Campbell
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1G®@€he registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (@assion

No. 00(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Laura Campbell (incorpedderein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to thestegnt's
Current Report on Formr-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Employment Agreement, dated as of September 2%),280and between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Ind. an
Kurt Brunden (incorporated herein by referencexhibit 10.22 to the registrant’'s Current ReportFarm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Kurt Brunden (incorpoddaterein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the regig’s
Current Report on Formr-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
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Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datscb&September 25, 2000, by and among Athersys, Inc
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Kurt Brundeediporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2th&
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2093&nd between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. avttbkR
Deans, Ph.D. (incorporated herein by referencextolit 10.25 to the registrant’s Current ReportFkorm 8-K
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Robert Deans (incorpdratzein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the regig’s
Current Report on Form-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datecb&October 3, 2003, by and among Athersys, Inc.,
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Robert Dearcofporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2th&
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2004nd between Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and
William Lehmann (incorporated herein by referere&xhibit 10.28 to the registrant’s Current ReportForm 8-
K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf &ay 31, 2007, by and between Advanced
Biotherapeutics, Inc. and William Lehmann (incoigted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to thgsteant’s
Current Report on Formr-K (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(
Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement, datscb&September 10, 2001, by and among Athersys, Inc
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and William Lehmgimeorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1a3¢he
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Form Incentive Agreement by and between AdvancethBrapeutics, Inc. and named executive officard, a
acknowledged by Athersys, Inc. and ReGenesys, lih€édfporated herein by reference to Exhibit 108the
registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commisdim 000-52108) filed with the Commission on Jude 1
2007)

Form Amendment No. 1 to Incentive Agreement by beitveen Advanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and named
executive officers, and acknowledged by Athersys, iand ReGenesys, LLC (incorporated herein byeafs to
Exhibit 10.32 to the registrant’s Current Reportramm 8-K (Commission No. 000-52108) filed with the
Commission on June 14, 20C

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of JUR@0&, by and among Athersys, BTHC VI, Inc. and Bioes
(as defined therein) (incorporated herein by refeecto Exhibit 10.33 to the registrant’s Currenp&e on

Form &K (Commission No. 0C-52108) filed with the Commission on June 14, 2(

Exclusive License Agreement, dated as of May 10220y and between Regents of the University ofridsota
and MCL LLC, assumed by ReGenesys, LLC throughatpmer of merger on November 4, 2003 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the regiss Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission Nd)-32108)
filed with the Commission on June 14, 20

Strategic Alliance Agreement, by and between Aygrkic. and Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dagedf
May 5, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference thilik 10.35 to the registrant’s Current Report amri 8-K/A
(Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on October 9, 2C

Amendment No. 1 to Cell Line Collaboration and lise Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and
between Athersys, Inc. and Bristol-Myers Squibb @any (incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBiBé to
the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Conwiois No. 000-52108) filed with the Commission ondd 4,
2007)

Consulting Agreement, by and among Athersys, ldvyanced Biotherapeutics, Inc. and Dr. Kurt Brundgatec
as of July 23, 2007 (incorporated herein by refeeen Exhibit 10.13 to the registrant’s QuarterlypRrt on
Form 1(-Q (Commission No. 0(-52108) filed with the Commission on August 17, 200
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EXHIBIT 10.41

SUMMARY OF ATHERSYS, INC.
2011 CASH BONUS INCENTIVE PLAN

On March 25, 2011, the Board of Directors of Atlysrdnc. (the “Company”), upon the recommendatibthe Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Compapproved a cash bonus incentive plan (the “Plior)he year ended
December 31, 2011 for the named executive offiobteke Company. The Plan provides that each ppétitiis eligible to earn a
bonus during the award term of January 1, 201utfirdecember 31, 2011. The Plan provides for theviing target bonus
percentages of the named executive officer’s salaring the award term, weighted as set forth bedovthe achievement of
specified corporate goals, with the remainder baseihdividual/functional performance. The corpergbals include advancing the
Company’s clinical programs for MultiStem, execgtigainst the established operating plan and dauitaisition objectives, and
advancement of strategic partnership and progrdivitaes. There is no formally adopted plan docuirfen the Plan.

Target Weighting on
Title Bonus Corporate Goa
Chief Executive Office 40% 10C%
President & Chief Operating Offic: 33% 80%
Executive Vice President & Chief Scientific Offic 33% 80%
Sr. Vice President, Regenerative Medic 3% 60%

Vice President of Financ 25% 60%



Exhibit 10.47

ATHERSYS, INC. EMPLOYEE
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of , (the “Date of Grant”) by and between Aglys, Inc., a

Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and Ontionee™) with respect to the grant of an Incemt8tock Option by the
Company to Optionee pursuant to the Athersys,lUong-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). (Capitalizedms used in this
Agreement and not otherwise defined have the mgardasigned to them in the Plan).

1.

Grant of Stock Option. Subject to and upon the terms, conditions, andicéshs set forth in this Agreement, the Company
hereby grants to Optionee an option (the “Optidn”purchase ( ) Shares (the “OptiomeShrof Common Stock
of the Company or any security unto which suchehanay be changed by reason of any transactioveot ef the type
referred to in Section 10 of this Agreement (“Conm&hares”). The Option may be exercised from tionénte in accordance
with the terms of this Agreemel

Type of Option. Except to the extent of the $100,000 limitationfeeth in Section 422(d) of the Internal Revenual€of

1986, as amended from time to time, or any succgsswision thereto (the “Code”), the Option isdntled to be an “incentive
stock option” within the meaning of that term un@erction 422 of the Code, and this Agreement $featlonstrued in a manner
that will enable this Option to be so qualified. fhe extent, if any that the $100,000 limitatiohfeeth in Section 422(d) of the
Code is exceeded, the Option shall constitute ®pasate options with the first option covering tluenber of Common Shares
up to the $100,000 limitation intended to be areimive stock option and the second option covesimgexcess Common
Shares intended to be a nonqualified stock op

Option Price. The Option Shares may be purchased pursuant t@ftien at a price of (% ) per Commoar§h
subject to adjustment as hereinafter provided ‘{@mion Price”). The Option Price shall in no event be less tharfalienarket
value of an Option Share on the Date of Gr

Term of Option/Agreement. The term of the Option shall commence on the D&térant and, unless earlier terminated in
accordance with Section 7 hereof, shall terminatkexpire automatically and without further notiea (10) years from the
Date of Grant




Right to Exercise.

(&) Subject to Sections 5(b) and (c), Sectiamd Section 10 below, the Option will vest anddmee exercisable as provided
in the attached Exhibit A, for so long as Optionemains continuously employed with the Companyit8ubsidiaries.
To the extent the Option is exercisable, it magkercised in whole or in part. In no event shalti@pee be entitled to
acquire a fraction of one Option Share pursuattitoOption. Optionee shall be entitled to the ieiyes of ownership
with respect to Option Shares purchased and delivier Optionee upon the exercise of all or pathisf Option.

(b) Notwithstanding Section 5(a) above, the OptionIidiedome immediately exercisable in full, if at a&imge prior to the
termination of the Option, a Change in Control khetur.

(c) Notwithstanding Section 5(a) above, if the Optiosheuld die or become permanently disabled whitaénemploy of th
Company or any Subsidiary, this Option shall imrmaggly become exercisable in full and shall remaeresable until
terminated in accordance with Section 7 below. Op&onee shall be considered to have become pentigrésabled if
the Optionee’s employment terminates on accoutti@Optionee having become “permanently and tothfigbled”, as
defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Co

Notice of Exercise; PaymentTo the extent then exercisable, the Option mayxeecised in whole or in part by written notice
to the Company stating the number of Option Shimewhich the Option is being exercised and thended manner of
payment. The date of such notice shall be the eseedate. The Option Price shall be payable (gash or by check acceptable
to the Company, (b) by actual or constructive tiran® the Company of nonforfeitable, unrestricBammon Shares that have
been owned by the Optionee for more than six (&)timoprior to the date of exercise, (c) for exasisf Options that occur
more than one (1) year following the Date of Grégttransfer to the Company of shares or vesteib@p{including Options
under this Agreement) for the purchase of shar&oofimon Stock having a fair market value (net efeéRercise price) at the
time of exercise equal to the portion of the Op#ite for which such transfer is made, or (d) lmpmbination of such
methods of payment. The requirement of paymenaghshall be deemed satisfied if the Optionee blaak made
arrangements satisfactory to the Company with & bama broker who is a member of the National Asstaan of Securities
Dealers, Inc. to sell on the exercise date a safftmumber of the shares being purchased sotthatet proceeds of the sale
transaction will at least equal the Option Priagsgpbayment of any applicable withholding taxes pmduant to which the bank
or broker undertakes to deliver the full Optioncerplus payment of any applicable withholding taceethe Company on a date
satisfactory to the Company, but not later thandde on which the sale transaction will settléhim ordinary course of
business. As soon as practicable upon the Compasgeipt of Optionee’s notice of exercise and payithe Company shall
direct the due issuance of the Option Shares sthpeed




As a further condition precedent to the exercisthisf Option in whole or in part, Optionee shalhgay with all regulations an
the requirements of any regulatory authority havdogtrol of, or supervision over, the issuancenef€ommon Shares and in
connection therewith shall execute any documenishwihe Board shall in its sole discretion deemessary or advisable.

Termination. This Option shall terminate on the earliest offihllowing dates

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

(f)

The date on which the Optionee ceases tmlmmployee of the Company or any Subsidiarjaf@ptionees employmer
with the Company or a Subsidiary is terminatedGause (“Cause” being defined as (i) the commissifaamn act of fraud,
embezzlement, theft or other criminal act constityt felony; or (ii) the material breach of anyyision contained in a
written non-competition, confidentiality or non-dissure agreement between the Company or any Stitsidiaries and
Optionee);

Three (3) months after the Optionee cetses an employee of the Company or a Subsidiargss the Optionee ceases
to be such employee by reason of death, permandrtbtal disability, Retirement or termination fdause

One (1) year after the death of the Opiioifiche Optionee dies (i) while an employee of @@mpany or a Subsidiary (in
which case the Option becomes immediately exerigsabfull pursuant to Section 5(c) herein), (iilthin the three
(3) month period following a termination without @ or (iii) within the three (3) month period faMling Retirement

One (1) year after the permanent and thitalbility of the Optionee if the Optionee becorpesmanently and totally
disabled (as described in Section 5(c) above) verilemployee of the Company or a Subsidiary (irctvicase the Option
becomes immediately exercisable in full pursuargeation 5(c) herein

Five (5) years after the date that the @te shall Retire. For this purpose, “Retire” shadlan that Optionee terminates
Optionee’s employment by reason of Optionee’segt@nt entitling Optionee to early, normal or latrement benefit
sunder the provisions of any retirement plan ofGloenpany or its Subsidiaries in which Optioneeipigdtes (or if no
such plan exists, at or after age s-five (65); and

Ten (10) years from the Date of Gra

Option Nontransferable. This Option is not assignable or transferable ley@ptionee otherwise than by will or the laws of
descent and distribution. This Option may be esewati during the lifetime of the Optionee, only bytiOnee, or in the event of
Optionee’s legal incapacity, by Optionee’s guardiategal representative acting on behalf of O a fiduciary capacity
under state law and court supervisi




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Compliance with Law. This Option shall not be exercisable if such ex@reiould involve a violation of any applicable feal¢
state or other securities la

Adjustments. The Board (or a committee of the Board) shall makeh adjustments in the Option Price and in thelbarror
kind of Common Shares or other securities coveyetthils Option as the Board (or a committee of tloam8) shall determine is
equitably required to prevent dilution or enlargeinaf the rights of the Optionee that otherwise ldaesult from (a) any stock
dividend, extraordinary dividend, stock split, candiion of shares, recapitalization or other chaingbe capital structure of
the Company, or (b) any Change in Control, mergemsolidation, spin-off, split-off, spin-out, splip, reorganization or partial
or complete liquidation, or other distribution afsats, issuance of rights or warrants to purchesrisies, or (c) any other
corporate transaction or event having an effeciiairto any of the foregoing. Moreover, in the evehany such transaction or
event, the Board (or a committee of the Boardijtsimiscretion, may provide in substitution for agyall of the Option Rights
provided for herein such alternative considera#ieiit may determine to be equitable in the circamsgs

Taxes and Withholding.If the Company shall be required to withhold angdieal, state, local or foreign tax in connectiothwi
exercise of this Option, it shall be a conditiorstch exercise that the Optionee pay or make pooviatisfactory to the
Company for payment of all such taxes. The Optianag elect that all or any part of such withholdieguirement be satisfied
by retention by the Company of a portion of therehgurchased upon exercise of this Option. If ®lebtion is made, the
shares so retained shall be credited against sitbhalding requirement at the Market Value per &ham the date of exercise.
In no event, however, shall the Company accept Com&hares for payment of taxes in excess of redjtiine withholding
rates.

Mandatory Notice of Disqualifying Disposition. Without limiting any other provision hereof, Optemhereby agrees that if
Optionee disposes (whether by sale, exchangepmyiftherwise) of any of the Option Shares acqumeduant to the exercise
an incentive stock option within two (2) years lo¢ Date of Grant or within one (1) year after tlamsfer of such share or
shares to Optionee, Optionee shall notify the Comipd such disposition in writing within thirty (3@ays from the date of
such disposition. Such written notice shall sthgegrincipal terms of such disposition and the tgpd amount of the
consideration received for such share or shar&3gtipnee in connection therewit

Continuous Employment.For purposes of this Agreement, the continuous eympént of the Optionee with the Company or a
Subsidiary shall not be deemed to have been imtd,) and the Optionee shall not be deemed to ¢eased to be an employ

of the Company or Subsidiary, by reason of thergajsfer of the Optionee’s employment among the @omg and its
Subsidiaries or (b) an approved leave of abse

No Employment Contract. This Option is a voluntary, discretionary awardnigeinade on a one-time basis and it does not
constitute a commitment to make any future awartigs Option and any payments made hereunder wilbaaonsidered
salary or other compensation for purposes of angra@ce pay or similar allowance, except as otterwnéquired by law.
Nothing in this Agreement will give the Optionegyaight to continue employment with the Companyny Subsidiary, as tt
case may be, or interfere in any way with the rigfithe Company or a Subsidiary to terminate thpleyment of the Optione:




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Information. Information about the Optionee and the Optioneatsigipation in the Plan may be collected, recorded held,
used and disclosed for any purpose related todhenastration of the Plan. The Optionee understahdssuch processing of
this information may need to be carried out by@wenpany and its Subsidiaries and by third partyiathtnators whether such
persons are located within the Optionee’s countrglgewhere, including the United States of Amerida Optionee consents
to the processing of information relating to theti@pee and the Optionee’s participation in the Rtaany one or more of the
ways referred to abov

Relation to Plan.This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditiaf the Plan. In the event of any inconsisteretyben
the provisions of this Agreement and the PlanRtlaa shall govern. All terms used herein with alitapital letters and not
otherwise defined herein that are defined in tle Bhall have the meanings assigned to them iRltve The Board (or a
committee of the Board) acting pursuant to the Pdarconstituted from time to time, shall, excepegpressly provided
otherwise herein, have the right to determine amstjons which arise in connection with the grdrihe Option hereunde

Amendments.Any amendment to the Plan shall be deemed to laeremdment to this Agreement to the extent that the
amendment is applicable hereto; providémwever, that no amendment shall adversely affect thetgsighthe Optionee under
this Agreement without the Optior’s consent

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the applicatiof any provision hereof to any person or circtamses is
held invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illeghk temainder of this Agreement and the applicatfosuch provision to any
other person or circumstances shall not be affeeted the provisions so held to be invalid, unerdable or otherwise illegal
shall be reformed to the extent (and only to thiemty necessary to make it enforceable, valid agdll

Successors and AssignWithout limiting Section 8 hereof, the provisiorfstiois Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, d@
binding upon, the successors, administrators, Heiygal representatives and assigns of the Optjarekthe successors and
assigns of the Compan

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deemed to be gmati
but all of which together shall constitute one #melsame Agreemer




21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and constm@d¢ordance with the internal substantive lanthef
State of Delaware, without giving effect to anyngiple of law that would result in the applicatiohthe law of any other
jurisdiction.

22. Notices.Any notice to the Company provided for herein shallin writing to the Company, marked Attentione$tdent, and
any notice to Optionee shall be addressed to spib@ee at Optionee’s address on file with the Canypat the time of such
notice. Except as otherwise provided herein, angtemrnotice shall be deemed to be duly given @ aen delivered
personally or deposited in the United States rfiesk, class registered mail, postage and fees mtepad addressed as afores
Any party may change the address to which noticescabe given hereunder by written notice to ttheepparty as herein
specified (provided that for this purpose any nthitetice shall be deemed given on the third busidey following deposit of
the same in the United States me

Executed in the name and on behalf of the ComptaBg@il Carnegie Avenue, Cleveland, OH, as of the _th day of ,

ATHERSYS, INC.

Name:
Title:

The undersigned Optionee hereby accepts the ORigints evidenced by this Incentive Stock Optionegmnent on the terms
and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan.

Dated: ,




EXHIBIT A

Vesting Date Shares Vesting Total Shares Vestec Price/share




Exhibit 10.48

ATHERSYS, INC.
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of , (the “Date of Grant”) by and between Adlysr Inc., a

Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and Ortionee™) with respect to the grant of a NonquedifStock Option by the
Company to Optionee pursuant to the Athersys,Haglity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”)Capitalized terms used in this Agreement
not otherwise defined have the meanings assigntéeeto in the Plan).

1.

Grant of Stock Option. Subject to and upon the terms, conditions, andicéshs set forth in this Agreement, the Company
hereby grants to Optionee an option (the “Optidn”purchase ( ) Shares (the “Optionesipof Common Stock
of the Company or any security unto which suchehanay be changed by reason of any transactioveot ef the type
referred to in Section 9 of this Agreement (“Comn&irares”). The Option may be exercised from timgnte in accordance
with the terms of this Agreemel

Type of Option. The Option is intended to be a nonqualified stogam and shall not be treated as an “incentivekstption”
within the meaning of that term under Section 42the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendexl firae to time, or any
successor provision there

Option Price. The Option Shares may be purchased pursuant t@ftien at a price of % ) per Commbar§,
subject to adjustment as hereinafter provided‘{@mion Price”). The Option Price shall in no event be less tharfalienarket
value of an Option Share on the Date of Gr

Term of Option/Agreement. The term of the Option shall commence on the Dat@rant and shall terminate and expire
automatically and without further notice Five (®ays from the Date of Grai

Right to Exercise.Subject to Section 4 above, the Option will vest Bacome exercisable as provided in the attached
Exhibit A, for so long as Optionee continues tof@en services for the Company or any Subsidiarye Tption may be
exercised in whole or in part. In no event shalti@pee be entitled to acquire a fraction of onei@pShare pursuant to this
Option. Optionee shall be entitled to the privileg@é ownership with respect to Option Shares pusetiand delivered to
Optionee upon the exercise of all or part of thigian.




Notice of Exercise; PaymentTo the extent then exercisable, the Option mayxeecésed in whole or in part by written notice
to the Company stating the number of Option Shimewhich the Option is being exercised and thended manner of
payment. The date of such notice shall be the eseedate. The Option Price shall be payable (gash or by check acceptable
to the Company, (b) by actual or constructive tian® the Company of nonforfeitable, unrestricBammon Shares that have
been owned by the Optionee for more than six (&)thmoprior to the date of exercise, (c) for exasisf Options that occur
more than one (1) year following the Date of Gragttransfer to the Company of shares or vesteib@p{including Options
under this Agreement) for the purchase of shar&@oofimon Stock having a fair market value (net efeékercise price) at the
time of exercise equal to the portion of the Op#ite for which such transfer is made, or (d) mpmbination of such
methods of payment. The requirement of paymenaghshall be deemed satisfied if the Optionee blagk made
arrangements satisfactory to the Company with & bam broker who is a member of the National Agsiaan of Securities
Dealers, Inc. to sell on the exercise date a safftmumber of the shares being purchased sotthatet proceeds of the sale
transaction will at least equal the Option Priagsgbayment of any applicable withholding taxes pmcsuant to which the bank
or broker undertakes to deliver the full Optioncerplus payment of any applicable withholding taxethe Company on a date
satisfactory to the Company, but not later thandde on which the sale transaction will settléhim ordinary course of
business. As soon as practicable upon the Compaagédpt of Optionee’s notice of exercise and paytithe Company shall
direct the due issuance of the Option Shares sthpsed

As a further condition precedent to the exercisthisf Option in whole or in part, Optionee shalhgay with all regulations an
the requirements of any regulatory authority havdogtrol of, or supervision over, the issuancenef€ommon Shares and in
connection therewith shall execute any documenishwihe Board shall in its sole discretion deemessary or advisable.

Option Nontransferable. This Option is not transferable by the Optioneeenilise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution. This Option may be exercised, dutiihg lifetime of the Optionee, only by Optioneejrothe event of Optionee’s
legal incapacity, by Optionee’s guardian or leggresentative acting on behalf of Optionee in adigry capacity under state
law and court supervisio

Compliance with Law. This Option shall not be exercisable if such ex@reiould involve a violation of any applicable feal¢
state or other securities la

Adjustments. The Board (or a committee of the Board) shall makeh adjustments in the Option Price and in thelbrarror
kind of Common Shares or other securities coveyetthis Option as the Board (or a committee of tloamd) shall determine is
equitably required to prevent dilution or enlargeinaf the rights of the Optionee that otherwise ldaesult from (a) any stock
dividend, extraordinary dividend, stock split, candiion of shares, recapitalization or other chaingbe capital structure of
the Company, or (b) any Change in Control, mergemsolidation, spin-off, split-off, spin-out, splip, reorganization or partial
or complete liquidation, or other distribution afsats, issuance of rights or warrants to purchesrisies, or (c) any other
corporate transaction or event having an effecilairto any of the foregoing. Moreover, in the evehany such transaction or
event, the Board (or a committee of the Boardijtsimiscretion, may provide in substitution for agryall of the Option Rights
provided for herein such alternative consideradéieiit may determine to be equitable in the circamsgs




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Taxes and Withholding.If the Company shall be required to withhold angdieal, state, local or foreign tax in connectiothwi
exercise of this Option, it shall be a conditiorstch exercise that the Optionee pay or make pooviatisfactory to the
Company for payment of all such taxes. The Optianag elect that all or any part of such withholdieguirement be satisfied
by retention by the Company of a portion of therehgurchased upon exercise of this Option. If flebtion is made, the
shares so retained shall be credited against sitbhalding requirement at the Market Value per &ham the date of exercise.
In no event, however, shall the Company accept Com&hares for payment of taxes in excess of redjtigoe withholding
rates.

Information. Information about the Optionee and the Optioneaisigpation in the Plan may be collected, recorded held,
used and disclosed for any purpose related todhenastration of the Plan. The Optionee understahdssuch processing of
this information may need to be carried out by@wenpany and its Subsidiaries and by third partyiathtnators whether such
persons are located within the Optionee’s countrglgewhere, including the United States of Amerida Optionee consents
to the processing of information relating to theti@pee and the Optionee’s participation in the Rtaany one or more of the
ways referred to abov

Relation to Plan.This Agreement is subject to the terms and conthitiof the Plan. In the event of any inconsisteretyben
the provisions of this Agreement and the PlanPtlaa shall govern. All terms used herein with alitiapital letters and not
otherwise defined herein that are defined in tle Bhall have the meanings assigned to them iRlthve The Board (or a
committee of the Board) acting pursuant to the Pdarconstituted from time to time, shall, excepegpressly provided
otherwise herein, have the right to determine argstjons which arise in connection with the grdrthe Option hereunde

Amendments.Any amendment to the Plan shall be deemed to lz@reamdment to this Agreement to the extent that the
amendment is applicable hereto; providédwever, that no amendment shall adversely affect theisighthe Optionee under
this Agreement without the Optior’s consent

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the applicatiof any provision hereof to any person or circtamees is
held invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illeghk temainder of this Agreement and the applicatfosuch provision to any
other person or circumstances shall not be affeeted the provisions so held to be invalid, unesdable or otherwise illegal
shall be reformed to the extent (and only to thiemty necessary to make it enforceable, valid agdll

Successors and AssignWithout limiting Section 7 hereof, the provisiorfstiois Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, d®
binding upon, the successors, administrators, Heiygal representatives and assigns of the Optjarekthe successors and
assigns of the Compan




16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deemed to be ginaii
but all of which together shall constitute one #melsame Agreemer

17. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and constmuedc¢ordance with the internal substantive lawthef
State of Delaware, without giving effect to anyngiple of law that would result in the applicatiohthe law of any other
jurisdiction.

18. Notices.Any notice to the Company provided for herein sballin writing to the Company, marked Attentione$tdent, and
any notice to Optionee shall be addressed to spih@ee at Optionee’s address on file with the Canypat the time of such
notice. Except as otherwise provided herein, artemrnotice shall be deemed to be duly given @ asmen delivered
personally or deposited in the United States rfiesk, class registered mail, postage and fees mtepad addressed as afores
Any party may change the address to which noticescabe given hereunder by written notice to ttheepparty as herein
specified (provided that for this purpose any nthitetice shall be deemed given on the third busidey following deposit of
the same in the United States me

Executed in the name and on behalf of the Compatr3201 Carnegie Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, 44115f #se th day
of ,

ATHERSYS, INC.

Name:
Title:

The undersigned Optionee hereby accepts the ORigints evidenced by this Nonqualified Stock Optikgreement on the
terms and conditions set forth herein and in tlzen Pl

Dated: ,




EXHIBIT A

Vesting Date Shares Vesting Total Shares Vestec Price/share




SUBSIDIARIES OF ATHERSYS, INC.

Name of Subsidiary

EXHIBIT 21

Jurisdiction
ABT Holding Company (formerly Athersys, Inc Delaware
Advanced Biotherapeutics, Ir Delaware
Athersys Limitec United Kingdon
ReGenesys LL( Delaware
ReGenesys BVB!/ Belgium

Oculus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (50% owners

Delaware



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Forn-3, No. 33.-164336) dated January 14, 20

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 338331/9) dated November 14, 2007 pertaining to theemslys, Inc. Equity
Incentive Compensation Ple

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 3833B0) dated November 14, 2007 pertaining to theistys, Inc. Long-Term
Incentive Plan, an

(4) Registration Statement (Forn-3/A, No. 33:-144433) dated October 10, 20!

of our report dated March 25, 2011, with resped¢hoconsolidated financial statements of Atherbys,included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decembe£281.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 25, 2011



EXHIBIT 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned officers and directors of Athersys, lad)elaware
corporation, hereby constitutes and appoints oMai Bokkelen, William Lehmann, Jr., and Laura Kan@pbell, and each of them,
as his true and lawful attorney or attorneys-irt;fagth full power of substitution and revocatidar each of the undersigned and in
the name, place, and stead of each of the undeibigm sign on behalf of each of the undersignedramual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 putdoa®ection 13 of the Securities Exchange Actd84land to sign any and all
amendments to such Annual Report, and to file #mees with all exhibits thereto, and other documéntnnection therewith
including, without limitation, a Form 12b-25 witha Securities and Exchange Commission, grantisgitbattorney or attorneys-in-
fact, and each of them, full power and authoritgdoso and perform each and every act and thingsiée) and necessary to be done
in and about the premises, as fully to all intexrtd purposes as the undersigned might or could derison, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorney or attorneys-awtfor any of them or their substitute or subsgunay lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue thereof.

This power of attorney may be executed in multgmanterparts, each of which shall be deemed amatigith respect to the
person executing it.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereuetoheir hands as of the 23rd day of February 2011.

Signature Title

/s/ Gil Van Bokkelen Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Boafdoectors
Gil Van Bokkelen

/sl Laura K. Campbell Vice President of Finance
Laura K. Campbel

/s/ John J. Harrington Executive Vice President, Chief Scientific Offi@erd Director
John J. Harringto

/s/ Lorin J. Randall Director
Lorin J. Randal

/sl Jack L. Wyszomierski Director
Jack L. Wyszomierst

/sl George M. Milne, Jr. Director
George M. Milne, Jr

/sl Ismail Kola Director
Ismail Kola

/sl Lee Babiss Director

Lee Babiss



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Gil Van Bokkelen, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Athersys, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included ifstreport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andegfores, or caused such disclosure controls ameguoes to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

(b) Designed such internal control over ficiahreporting, or caused such internal controlrdirencial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsarable assurance regarding the reliability afrfaial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaateptec
accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigts disclosure controls and procedures and pteden this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeoverec
by this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change mttbgistrant’s internal control over financial rejorg that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quafttee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the cafan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; an

5.  The registrand’other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(&) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of intexmatrol over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; at

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, tiratolves management or other employees who haignédisant role in
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

March 25, 2011

/s/ Gil Van Bokkelen

Gil Van Bokkelen
Chief Executive Officer an
Chairman of the Board of Directa




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Laura K. Campbell, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Athersys, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facinoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iistheport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerém)d | are responsible for establishing and maiirigidisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andegfores, or caused such disclosure controls ameguoes to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

(b) Designed such internal control over ficiahreporting, or caused such internal controlrdirencial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsarable assurance regarding the reliability afrfaial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaateptec
accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigts disclosure controls and procedures and pteden this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeoverec
by this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change mttbgistrant’s internal control over financial rejorg that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quafttee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the cafan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; an

The registrarg’ other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(&) All significant deficiencies and matenedaknesses in the design or operation of intexmatrol over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; at

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, tiratolves management or other employees who haignédisant role in
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

March 25, 2011

/sl Laura K. Campbell

Laura K. Campbel
Vice President of Financ



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Athersys;.I(the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year en@lmtember 31, 2010, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), each of the usideed officers of the
Company certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectids01as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Baslaxley Act of 2002, that, |
such officer’s knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faplesents, in all material respects, the finanmbaldition and results of operations
of the Company as of the dates and for the peeagsessed in the Repa

Date: March 25, 2011

/s/ Gil Van Bokkelen
Name: Gil Van Bokkelen
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offict

/s/ Laura K. Campbell
Name: Laura K. Campbell
Title:  Vice President of Financ

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notdoéled as part of the Report or
as a separate disclosure document.



